
 

 Date: 27.08.2024  

 To, 

 National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. 

 Exchange Plaza, C-1, Block G, 

 Bandra Kurla Complex,  

 Bandra (E)  

 Mumbai – 400 051  

 

Dear Sir / Madam,  

Symbol: KRISHANA  
 

Sub: Submission of Annual Report and Notice of the 20th Annual General Meeting.  
 

Ref: Disclosure under Regulation 34 SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 ("Listing Regulations")  
 

Pursuant to Regulation 34 of SEBI Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 

we enclosed Annual Report and Notice of the 20th Annual General Meeting of the Members of our 

Company shall be held on Friday, 20th September, 2024 at 12:30 pm through Video Conferencing (VC) or 

Other Audio- Visual Means (OAVM).  

We herewith enclose the Copy of the notice and annual report of Annual General Meeting for the financial 

year 2023-2024.  

Further, the Annual Report along with notice of AGM as mentioned above, has also been made available 

on website of the company at https://www.krishnaphoschem.com 

Kindly take note of the above.  

Thanking you,  

Yours faithfully, 
 

For Krishana Phoschem Ltd.  

 

(Ankit Mundra) 

Company Secretary 

A-67949 
 

Date: 27.08.2024  

Place Bhilwara 

 

 

  

Registered off. : Wing A/2, 1st Floor, Ostwal Heights, Urban Forest, Atun Bhilwara 

311802 

https://www.krishnaphoschem.com/


Committed to 

Krishana Phoschem Ltd.
 20th Annual Report 2023-24
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Registered Office: Wing A/2, 1st Floor, 
Ostwal Heights, Urban Forest, Atun 

Bhilwara 311802 Rajasthan 
CIN: L24124RJ2004PLC019288 

 
Tel. No.: 01482-237104         Fax No.: 01482-239638 
Website: www.krishnaphoschem.com                               Email: secretarial@krishnaphoschem.com 

 
                                                                                      NOTICE  

NOTICE is hereby given that the 20th Annual General Meeting of the Members of Krishana 

Phoschem Limited will be held on Friday, 20th September, 2024 at 12:30 P.M. through two – way 

Video Conferencing (“VC”) or Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”), to transact the following 

businesses.  

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
  
1. To consider and adopt (a) the audited financial statement of the Company for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2024 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon and in this 
regard, pass the following resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions: 

 
“RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2024 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon laid before this 
meeting, be and are hereby considered and adopted. 
 
2. To declare dividend on Equity shares for the Financial Year 2023-24 and in this regard, pass the 
following resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT in terms of recommendation of Board of Directors of the company, the 
approval of the members of the company be and is hereby granted for the payment of dividend 
@Rs. 0.50 per share (i.e. 5%) on the fully paid up equity shares of Rs.10/- each of the company for 
the Year 2023-24. 
 
3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Sunil Kothari (DIN 02056569), who retires by rotation 
and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment and in this regard, pass the following 
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. 
  Sunil Kothari (DIN 02056569), who retires by rotation at this meeting and being eligible has 
  offered himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company, 
  liable to retire by rotation.” 
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SPECIAL BUSINESS: 
 
4. To approve and ratify the authority of Board of directors in fixing remuneration of the Cost 
Auditor(s) for the financial year ending 31st March 2025 and, in this regard, to consider and if 
thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following as an Ordinary Resolution: 
 
"RESOLVED THAT Shareholders hereby ratify the actions of the Board of Directors pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 148(3) and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, for approving recommendation of Audit 
Committee for remuneration to M/s K.C. Moondra & Associates, Cost Auditor(s) to conduct the 
cost audit of the Company for the financial year ending 31st March 2025 at such remuneration as 
shall be fixed by the board of directors of the company. 

5. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), to Re-Appointment Mr. 
Bheru Lal Ostwal  as an Independent Director of the Company for (Second term of  five (5) 
consecutive years), the following Resolution as a Special Resolution:  
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee, and approval of the Board and subject to the provisions of Sections 149,150 and 152 any 
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and any rules made there under read with 
Schedule IV to the Act, and the applicable provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), Mr. Bheru Lal Ostwal (DIN: 
08377262), who was appointed as an Independent Director, be and is hereby re-appointed as an 
Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, and to hold office for a second 
term of 5 (Five) consecutive years on the Board of the Company up to the conclusion of the 25th 
AGM of the Company to be held in the year 2029.”” 
 
6. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), to Appointment Mrs. 
Shruti Babel  as an Independent Director of the Company for (First term of five (5) consecutive 
years), the following Resolution as a Special Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee, and approval of the Board and subject to the provisions of Sections 149,150 152, and 
any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and any rules made there under read 
with Schedule IV to the Act, and the applicable provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), Mrs. Shruti Babel , who was 
appointed as an Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company by the Board of Directors 
w.e.f. August 17, 2024 and who holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting, be and is 
hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, to 
hold office for a term of 5 (Five) consecutive years up to the conclusion of the 25th  Annual General 
Meeting of the Company to be held in the year 2029. 
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7. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), to Appointment Mr. Sunil 
Kothari as whole Time Director of the Company for the five (5) consecutive years, the following 
Resolution as a Ordinary Resolution:  
 
“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 198, 203 and all other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”), as amended and rules made thereunder, (including any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force) approval of the 
Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the appointment of Mr. Sunil Kothari 
(DIN:02056569) as Whole time Director of the Company for a period of 5 (Five) years with effect 
from 29th July, 2024 on the terms and conditions including remuneration as set out in the 
explanatory statement annexed to the Notice convening this meeting, with liberty to the Board of 
Directors to alter and vary the terms and conditions of the said appointment including 
remuneration in such manner as may be agreed between the Board of Directors and Mr. Sunil 
Kothari. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorised to do all such 
acts and take such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.” 

 
8. To approve material related party transactions between the Company and Ostwal Phoschem 
(India) Limited (OPIL), and, in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modification(s) the following as an Ordinary Resolution: 
 
 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 23(4) of the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended 
from time to time, (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), Section 188 of the companies act 2013 and other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with Rules made thereunder, other 
applicable laws/statutory provisions, if any, (including any statutory modification(s) or 
amendment(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), the Company’s Policy on 
Related Party Transactions, and subject to such approval(s), consent(s), permission(s) as may be 
necessary from time to time on basis of approval, recommendation of the Audit Committee and 
the Board of Directors of the Company, the approval of the Members of the Company be and is 
hereby accorded to enter into Material Related Party Transaction(s) / Contract(s) / 
Arrangement(s) / Agreement(s) entered into / proposed to be entered into ( (whether by way of 
an individual transaction or transactions taken together or a series of transactions or otherwise), as 
mentioned in detail in the Explanatory Statement annexed herewith, between the Company and 
Ostwal Phoschem India Limited, a holding Company of the Company and accordingly a ‘Related 
Party’ of the Company, on such terms and conditions as may be mutually agreed between the 
Company and OPIL, for an aggregate value not exceeding 600 crores for a period commencing 
from the 20th Annual General Meeting upto the date of 21st Annual General Meeting of the 
Company to be held in the year 2025, provided that such transaction(s) / contract(s) / 
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arrangement(s) / agreement(s) is / are carried out at an arm’s length pricing basis and in the 
ordinary course of business. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby 
authorized to delegate all or any of the powers conferred on it to any Committee of Board of 
Directors and/or Managing/Whole-time Director(s) of the Company and to do all such acts and 
take all such steps as may be considered necessary or expedient to give effect to the aforesaid 
resolution. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the Board in connection with any matter 
referred to or contemplated in this resolution, be and are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed 
in all respects.” 
 
9. To approve material related party transactions between the Company and Madhya Bharat Agro 
Products Limited (MBAPL), and, in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or 
without modification(s) the following as an Ordinary Resolution: 
 
 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 23(4) of the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended 
from time to time, (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), Section 188 of the companies act 2013 and other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with Rules made thereunder, other 
applicable laws/statutory provisions, if any, (including any statutory modification(s) or 
amendment(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), the Company’s Policy on 
Related Party Transactions, and subject to such approval(s), consent(s), permission(s) as may be 
necessary from time to time on basis of approval, recommendation of the Audit Committee and 
the Board of Directors of the Company, the approval of the Members of the Company be and is 
hereby accorded to enter into Material Related Party Transaction(s) / Contract(s) /Arrangement(s) 
/ Agreement(s) entered into / proposed to be entered into ( (whether by way of an individual 
transaction or transactions taken together or a series of transactions or otherwise), as mentioned in 
detail in the Explanatory Statement annexed herewith, between the Company and Madhya Bharat 
Agro Products Limited, a ‘Related Party’ of the Company, on such terms and conditions as may be 
mutually agreed between the Company and MBAPL, for an aggregate value not exceeding 600 
crores for a period commencing from the 20th Annual General Meeting upto the date of 21st  
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the year 2025, provided that such 
transaction(s) / contract(s) / arrangement(s) / agreement(s) is / are carried out at an arm’s length 
pricing basis and in the ordinary course of business. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby 
authorized to delegate all or any of the powers conferred on it to any Committee of Board of 
Directors and/or Managing/Whole-time Director(s) of the Company and to do all such acts and 
take all such steps as may be considered necessary or expedient to give effect to the aforesaid 
resolution. 
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the Board in connection with any matter 
referred to or contemplated in this resolution, be and are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed 
in all respects.” 
 

10. To approve material related party transactions between the Company and Shree Ganpati 
Fertilizers Limited (SGFL), and, in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or 
without modification(s) the following as an Ordinary Resolution: 
 
 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 23(4) of the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended 
from time to time, (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), Section 188 of the companies act 2013 and other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with Rules made thereunder, other 
applicable laws/statutory provisions, if any, (including any statutory modification(s) or 
amendment(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), the Company’s Policy on 
Related Party Transactions, and subject to such approval(s), consent(s), permission(s) as may be 
necessary from time to time on basis of approval, recommendation of the Audit Committee and 
the Board of Directors of the Company, the approval of the Members of the Company be and is 
hereby accorded to enter into Material Related Party Transaction(s) / Contract(s) /Arrangement(s) 
/ Agreement(s) entered into / proposed to be entered into ( (whether by way of an individual 
transaction or transactions taken together or a series of transactions or otherwise), as mentioned in 
detail in the Explanatory Statement annexed herewith, between the Company and Shri Ganpati 
Fertilizers Limited, a ‘Related Party’ of the Company, on such terms and conditions as may be 
mutually agreed between the Company and SGFL, for an aggregate value not exceeding 200 
crores for a period commencing from the 20th Annual General Meeting upto the date of 21st  
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the year 2025, provided that such 
transaction(s) / contract(s) / arrangement(s) / agreement(s) is / are carried out at an arm’s length 
pricing basis and in the ordinary course of business. 
 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby 
authorized to delegate all or any of the powers conferred on it to any Committee of Board of 
Directors and/or Managing/Whole-time Director(s) of the Company and to do all such acts and 
take all such steps as may be considered necessary or expedient to give effect to the aforesaid 
resolution. 
 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the Board in connection with any matter 
referred to or contemplated in this resolution, be and are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed 
in all respects.” 
 
                                                                                                          By Order of the Board of Directors 
 
Dated: 17/08/2024                                                 For Krishana Phoschem Limited 
Place: Bhilwara  
 Sd/- 
                                                                                                                                                         

                                                               (Ankit Mundra) 
                                                                            Company Secretary  
                                                                                                                            & Compliance Officer 
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NOTES: 
 
1. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its General Circulars dated April 8, 2020, April 13, 

2020, May 5, 2020, January 13, 2021, December 14, 2021 and December 28, 2022 (collectively 
referred to as MCA Circulars) and all other relevant circulars issued from time to time, has 
permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting (AGM) through Video Conferencing (VC)/ 
Other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM), without the physical presence of the Members at a common 
venue. Further, the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) vide its circulars dated May 12, 
2020, January 15, 2021, May 13, 2022 and January 5, 2023 (SEBI Circulars) and all other relevant 
circulars issued from time to time, has provided certain relaxations from compliance with certain 
provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements Regulations, 2015 (SEBI 
Listing Regulations). 

 

2. Further, pursuant to the MCA and SEBI Circulars, the Notice of the AGM along with the Annual 
Report for FY 2023-24 is sent in electronic form only to those Members whose email addresses are 
registered with the Company/ Depositories. The Notice calling the 20th AGM has been uploaded 
on the website of the Company at https://www.krishnaphoschem.com/. The Notice can also be 
accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchange i.e. The National Stock Exchange of India 
Limited (“NSE”) at www.nseindia.com and on the website of National Securities Depository 
Limited (“NSDL”) (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e. 
www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

 

3. The explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the 
Business under Item No. 4 to10 of the accompanying notice is annexed hereto.  

 

4. In respect of Resolution at item no. 5,6 and 7 a statement giving additional information on 
Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment is annexed herewith as required under SEBI 
(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (SEBI Regulations). 

 

5. Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, a member entitled to attend and vote is 
entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a 
Member of the Company. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through 
VC or OAVM, physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, in terms 
of the above-mentioned MCA and SEBI circulars, the facility for appointment of proxies by the 
Members will not be available for the AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are 
not annexed to this Notice. 

 
6. Members attending the meeting through VC or OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of 

reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act 2013. 
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7. Members seeking any information or clarification are requested to send in written queries to the 
Company, in advance, before the date of the meeting by mail at 
secretarial@krishnaphoschem.com. 

 
8. Corporate members intending to send their authorized representative to attend the AGM 

through VC or OAVM or to vote through remote e-voting, pursuant to Sections 112 and 113 of 
the Act, are requested to send a certified copy of the board resolution to the Scrutinizer by e-
mail at sourabh.bapna12@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in, authorizing 
their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the AGM. 

 
9. In case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order 

of name will be entitled to vote. 

 
10. The Notice is being sent to all the Members, whose names appear in the Register of 

Members/List of Beneficial Owners, received from National Securities Depository Limited 
(NSDL)/Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) as on Friday, 23th August 2024  for 
those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the Depositories, for procuring user 
id and password, Notice and Annual Report, are requested to provide their Mail id at 
secretarial@krishnaphoschem.com.  

 
11. The Members are requested to note that the Company is pleased to provide a two-way Video 

Conferencing Facility (VC) to view the live streaming of the proceedings of the AGM and 
facilitate participation of Members at the AGM through VC or asking their questions through a 
Chat box facility. The Members will be able to view the proceedings on NSDL’s e-Voting 
website www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

 
12. Members may use this facility by using the same login credentials as provided for remote e-

Voting. Members on the day of the AGM will login through their user ID and password on e-
Voting website of NSDL. The link will be available in Member login where the EVEN of 
Company will be displayed. On clicking this link, the Member will be able to view the 
webcasting of the AGM proceedings. The VC Facility will be available on September 20, 2024 
from 12:30 p.m. (IST) onwards till the conclusion of the Meeting. 

 
 

13. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the 
scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in 
the Notice. The Members will be able to view the proceedings on NSDL’s e-Voting website 
www.evoting.nsdl.com.The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be 
made available to at least 1,000 members on first come first served basis. This will not include 
large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional 
Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors 

mailto:secretarial@krishnaphoschem.com
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/


 KRISHANA PHOSCHEM LIMITED  

 
 

etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on account of first come first served 
basis. 

14. Dividend on Equity Shares, as recommended by the Board of Directors for the Year ended 31st 
March, 2024 and subject to approval of members at this Annual General Meeting, will be paid 
thirty days from the date of declaration to those shareholders whose name shall appear on the 
company’s register of Members on 13th September, 2024. 

The Shareholders, who have not claimed their Dividend in the past, are requested to write to 
the Registrar and Transfer Agent, M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited, Mumbai to claim the 
amount of Dividend.  

Pursuant to Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013, if the Dividend Amount is not claimed 
within 7 Years from the date it is due for payment, such unclaimed amount will be transferred 
to Investor Education and Protection Fund and thereafter no claim shall become against the 
Company. In view of this, Members/Claimants are requested to claim their unpaid/unclaimed 
dividends before the due dates. 

 

Pursuant to the Finance Act, 2020, dividend income will be taxable in the hands of the 
Shareholders w.e.f. April 1, 2020 and the Company is required to deduct Tax at Source (“TDS”) 
from dividend paid to the Members at prescribed rates in the Income Tax Act, 1961 (‘the IT 
Act’). In general, to enable compliance with TDS requirements, Members are requested to 
complete and / or update their Residential Status, PAN, Category as per the IT Act with their 
Depository Participants or in case shares are held in physical form, with the Company by 
sending documents through email at secretarial@krishnaphoschem.com on or before 13th 
September, 2024.  

 

Shareholders are requested to note that in case their PAN is not registered, or having invalid 
PAN or Specified Person as defined under section 206AB of the Income-tax Act (“the Act”), the 
tax will be deducted at a higher rate prescribed under section 206AA or 206AB of the Act, as 
applicable. 

 

A Resident individual shareholder with PAN and who is not liable to pay income tax can 
submit a yearly declaration in Form No. 15G / 15H, to avail the benefit of non-deduction of tax 
at source by e-mail to secretarial@krishnaphoschem.com . Non-resident shareholders 
[including Foreign Institutional Investors (FIIs) / Foreign Portfolio Investors (FPIs)] can avail 
beneficial rates under tax treaty between India and their country of tax residence, subject to 
providing necessary documents i.e. No Permanent Establishment and Beneficial Ownership 
Declaration, Tax Residency Certificate, Form 10F, any other document which may be required 
to avail the tax treaty benefits. For this purpose, the shareholder may submit the above 
documents (PDF / JPG Format) by e-mail to secretarial@krishnaphoschem.com. 

 

15. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (vide circular nos. 17/2011 and 18/2011 dated April 21 and 
April 29, 2011 respectively), has undertaken a ‘Green Initiative in Corporate Governance’ and 
allowed companies to share documents with its shareholders through an electronic mode. 

mailto:secretarial@krishnaphoschem.com
mailto:secretarial@krishnaphoschem.com
mailto:secretarial@krishnaphoschem.com
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Members are requested to support this green initiative by registering / updating their e-mail 
addresses, in respect of shares held in dematerialized form with their respective Depository 
Participants and in respect of shares held in physical form with Link Intime India Private 
Limited. 

 

16. Members holding shares in dematerialized form are requested to intimate all changes 
pertaining to their bank details such as bank account number, name of the bank and branch 
details, MICR code and IFSC code, mandates, nominations, power of attorney, change of 
address, change of name, e-mail address, contact numbers, etc., to their depository participant 
(DP). Changes intimated to the DP will then be automatically reflected in the Company’s 
records which will help the Company and the Company’s Registrars and Transfer Agents, 
Link Intime India Private Limited to provide efficient and better services. Members holding 
shares in physical form are requested to intimate such changes to Link Intime India Private 
Limited. 

 
17. As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act and SEBI Circular, the facility for making 

nomination is available for the Members in respect of the shares held by them. Members who 
have not yet registered their nomination are requested to register the same by submitting 
Form No. SH-13. If a member desires to opt out or cancel the earlier nomination and record a 
fresh nomination, he/ she may submit the same in Form ISR-3 or SH-14 as the case may be. 
Members are requested to submit the said details to their DP in case the shares are held by 
them in dematerialized form and to Company's Registrars and Transfer Agents, Link Intime 
India Private Limited in case the shares are held in physical form. 
 

18. Voting Through Electronic Means: The details of the process and manner of e-voting are 
explained herein below: 

 

In compliance with Sections 108 and 110 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made 
thereunder, the Company has provided the facility to the Members to exercise their votes 
electronically and vote on all resolutions through the e-voting service facility arranged by 
NSDL. The instructions for electronic voting are given in this Notice. The Members may cast 
their votes using electronic voting systems from a place other than the venue of the Annual 
General Meeting (AGM) (remote e-voting). The instructions for e-voting are given herein 
below. The resolutions passed by the Members through e-voting are deemed to have been 
passed as if they have been passed at AGM. 

 
The Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend 
the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again. 

 

The remote e-voting period begins on 17th September, 2024 (9:00 A.M.) and ends 19th 
September, 2024 (5:00 P.M.). The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting 
thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners 
as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e., 13th September, 2024, may cast their vote electronically. 
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The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity 
share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being 13th September, 2024. 

 

 How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned 
below: 

 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 

 

A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding    
securities in demat mode. 
 
In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 
Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts 
in order to access e-Voting facility. 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

         
 

Type of shareholders  Login Method 

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with NSDL. 

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of 

NSDL Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a 

Personal Computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services 

home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under 

“Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section, this 

will prompt you to enter your existing User ID and 

Password. After successful authentication, you will be 

able to see e-Voting services under Value added 

services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting 

services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click 

on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. 

NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website 

of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-

Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting 

during the meeting. 

2. If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option 

to register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. 

Select “Register Online for IDeAS” Portal or click at  

https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
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https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg

.jsp  

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser 
by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-
Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” 
which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ 
section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter 
your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account 
number held with NSDL), Password/OTP and a 
Verification Code as shown on the screen. After 
successful authentication, you will be redirected to 
NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting 
page. Click on options available against company name 
or e-Voting service provider - NSDL and you will be 
redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your 
vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining 
virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.  

 

4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL 
Mobile App “NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the 
QR code mentioned below for seamless voting 
experience. 

 

  
Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with CDSL 

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, 

can login through their existing user id and password. 

Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page 

without any further authentication. The users to login 

Easi /Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website 

www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New 

System Myeasi Tab and then user your existing my easi 

username & password. 

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able 

to see the e-Voting option for eligible companies where 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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the evoting is in progress as per the information 

provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, 

the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-

Voting service provider for casting your vote during the 

remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & 

voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also 

links provided to access the system of all e-Voting 

Service Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting 

service providers’ website directly. 

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to 

register is available at CDSL website 

www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New System 

Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option. 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page 

by providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. 

from a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com 

home page. The system will authenticate the user by 

sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded 

in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, 

user will be able to see the e-Voting option where the 

evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the 

system of all e-Voting Service Providers. 

Individual Shareholders 
(holding securities in demat 
mode) login through their 
depository participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat 
account through your Depository Participant registered with 
NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be 
able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will 
be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on 
company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and 
you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting 
your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 
meeting & voting during the meeting. 

 
 
Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget 
User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 
 

 

http://www.cdslindia.com/
http://www.cdslindia.com/
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Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues 
related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 
 
Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL 
helpdesk by sending a request at  evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at 022 - 
4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000 

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL 
helpdesk by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or 
contact at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33  

 
B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 
 
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 
 
1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.  
 
2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 
 
3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code 
as shown on the screen. 
 
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using 
your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically. 
 
4. Your User ID details are given below: 

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL or 
CDSL) or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit 
Client ID 
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and 
Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is 
IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 
For example if your Beneficiary ID is 
12************** then your user ID is 
12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in Physical Form. EVEN Number followed by Folio Number 
registered with the company 
For example if folio number is 001*** and 

mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
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EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 101456001*** 

 

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:  
 

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and 
cast your vote. 
b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial 
password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to 
enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change your password. 
c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 
(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ 
is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your 
mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to 
open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL 
account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and 
your ‘initial password’.  
(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those 
shareholders whose email ids are not registered. 
6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten your 
password: 
a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with 
NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on 
www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at 
evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name 
and your registered address etc. 
d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-
Voting system of NSDL. 
7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check 
box. 
8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 
9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 
 
Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system. 
How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system? 
1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you 
are holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status. 
2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to 
click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join General Meeting”. 
3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 
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4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number 
of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when 
prompted. 
5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  
6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the 
confirmation page. 
7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 
 
General Guidelines for shareholders 
 

1 Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send 
scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with 
attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the 
Scrutinizer by e-mail to sourabh.bapna12@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in.  
Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board 
Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution / 
Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their login. 
 

2 It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take 
utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled 
upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to 
go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option 
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.  

 

3 In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for 
Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of 
www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800-222-990 and 1800-224-430 or send a request at 
evoting@nsdl.co.in 

 

4 Any person who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company 
after the dispatch of the Notice and holding shares as on the cut-off date, i.e., 13th  September, 2024, 
may obtain the User ID and password by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or 
secretarial@krishnaphoschem.com. However, if you are already registered with NSDL for remote 
e-voting, then you can use your existing user ID and password for casting your vote. If you forgot 
your password, you may reset your password by using “Forgot User Details/Password” option 
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com or contact NSDL at the following Toll-free no. 1800-222-990. 
 

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for 
procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set 
out in this notice: 

 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned 

copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), 

AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to 

secretarial@krishnaphoschem.com 
 

mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:secretarial@krishnaphoschem.com
mailto:secretarial@krishnaphoschem.com
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2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 

digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self-

attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to 

secretarial@krishnaphoschem.com If you are an Individual shareholders holding securities in 

demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login 

method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities 

in demat mode. 
 

3. Alternatively, member may send an e-mail request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for obtaining User ID 

and Password by proving the details mentioned in Point (1) or (2) as the case may be. 

 
4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 

Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 

through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 

Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat 

account in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 
The instructions for members for e-voting on the day of the EGM/AGM are as under: - 
 

       1.The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM is same as the instructions mentioned 
above for remote e-voting. 

       2.Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the EGM/AGM through 
VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting 
and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in 
the EGM/AGM. 

       3.Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the EGM/AGM. 
However, they will not be eligible to vote at the EGM/AGM. 

      4.The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility 
for e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-
voting. 

 

     Instructions for members for attending the AGM through VC/OAVM are as under: 
(i) Member will be provided with a facility to attend the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM 
through the NSDL e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above 
for Access to NSDL e-Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of "VC/OAVM link" 
placed under "Join General meeting" menu against company name. You are requested to click on 
VC/OAVM link placed under Join General Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be 
available in Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note 
that the members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the 
User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions 
mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush. 

  
 

mailto:secretarial@krishnaphoschem.com
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(ii)  Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through laptops for better experience. Further 
Members will be required to use internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance during the 
meeting. Members connecting from their mobile devices or tablets or through laptop connecting via 
mobile hotspot may experience audio or video loss due to fluctuation in their respective network. It 
is therefore recommended to use stable Wi-Fi or LAN connection to attend the AGM without any 
interruption. 
, 

(iii)  Facility of joining the meeting shall be open 15 minutes before the time scheduled for the 
meeting and shall be closed 15 minutes after such scheduled time and will be available on first come 
first served basis. 
 

(iv)  Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their 
questions in advance mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile 
number at secretarial@krishnaphoschem.com. The same will be replied by the company suitably. 

 
 

 Other Instructions 
1) The voting rights of shareholders (for voting through remote e-Voting before the AGM and 

remote e-Voting during the AGM) shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid-up equity share 
capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, which is 13th September, 2024. A person whose name       
is recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of Beneficial Owners maintained by the 
Depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting as well 
as voting at the AGM. 

 

2) Any person who is not a member as on the cutoff- date should treat this Notice for 
information only. 
 

3) The e-voting period commences on 17th September, 2024 (9:00 A.M.) and ends 19th 
September, 2024 at 5.00 p.m. (IST) during this period, shareholders of the Company, holding shares 
in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date, i.e. 13th  September, 2024, may cast 
their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting.  

 

 

4) Members who are registered with NSDL for e-voting can use their existing user Id and 
password for casting their votes. 
 

5) The Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also 
attend/ participate in the AGM through VC or OAVM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote 
again. 

 

6) Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company 
after dispatch of the Notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date, may obtain the login ID and 
password by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in. However, if he/she is already registered with 
NSDL for remote e-voting then he/she can use his/ her existing User ID and password for casting 
the vote. 

 

7) Mr. Sourabh Bapna, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No. 51505 & CP No. 19968) 
has been appointed as the Scrutinizer by the Board for providing facility to the Members of the 
Company to scrutinize remote e-Voting process before the AGM as well as remote e-Voting during 
the AGM in a fair and transparent manner. 

 

8) The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the resolutions on which voting 
is to be held, allow voting, by use of remote e-voting system for all those Members who are present 
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during the AGM through VC/OAVM but have not cast their votes by availing the remote e-Voting 
facility. 

 

9)The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, unblock the votes 
cast and make, not later than 2 working days from the conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated 
Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person 
authorized by him in writing, who will acknowledge the receipt of the same and declare the result 
of the voting forthwith. 

10)The results will be declared within 2 working days of conclusion of the Annual General 
Meeting. The results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s 
website https://www.krishnaphoschem.com and on the website of NSDL: www. evoting.nsdl.com 
immediately after the result is declared. The Company shall simultaneously forward the results to 
The National Stock Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”) where the shares of the Company are listed 

 
11)Since the AGM will be held through VC or OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed in this      
Notice. 

                                                                                                          By Order of the Board of Directors 
 
Dated: 17/08/2024                                                 For Krishana Phoschem Limited 
Place: Bhilwara  
 Sd/- 
                                                                                                                                                         

                                                               (Ankit Mundra) 
                                                                            Company Secretary  
                                                                                                                            & Compliance Officer 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
           

https://www.krishnaphoschem.com/
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                Explanatory Statement Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 

 

 
 
Item No. 4 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, approved 
the appointment and remuneration of M/s K.C. Moondra & Associates, Cost Accountant, to 
conduct the cost audit of the Company for the financial year ending 31st March, 2025. In terms of 
the provisions of Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14(a) (ii) of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor is 
required to be ratified by the Members of the Company. Accordingly, consent of the Members is 
sought to ratify the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors.  
 
None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives, are concerned or interested 
(financially or otherwise) in this Resolution. 
 
The Board recommend the resolution for approval of members. 
 
Item No. 5 
 
Mr. Bheru Lal Ostwal (DIN: 08377262) is currently an Independent Director of the Company,  
 
Mr. Bheru Lal Ostwal was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company by the Members 
at the 15th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on September 26, 2019 for a period of 5 
(five) consecutive years up to the conclusion of the 20th AGM held in the year 2024 and is eligible 
for reappointment for a second term on the Board of the Company.  
 
Based on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee (‘NRC’), the Board of 
Directors at its meeting held on July 29, 2024, proposed the re-appointment of Mr. Bheru Lal Ostwal 
as an Independent Director of the Company for a second term of 5 (five) consecutive years 
commencing from this AGM held on September 20, 2024 up to the conclusion of the 25th AGM held 
in the year 2029, not liable to retire by rotation, for the approval of the Members by way of a Special 
Resolution.  
 
The Company has received from Mr. Bheru Lal Ostwal consent in writing to act as Director in Form 
DIR-2 pursuant to Rule 8 of the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014; 
intimation in Form DIR-8 pursuant to Rule 14 of the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of 
Directors) Rules, 2014 to the effect that they are not disqualified in accordance with sub-section (2) 
of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013 and declaration that he meet the criteria of independence 
as provided in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules framed thereunder and 
Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘SEBI Listing Regulations’). Mr. Paras Mal Surana has 
also confirmed that he is not debarred from holding the office of Director by virtue of any SEBI 
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Order or any such authority pursuant to circulars dated June 20, 2018 issued by the National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited pertaining to enforcement of SEBI Orders regarding appointment of 
Directors by the listed companies. 
 
A brief profile of Mr. Bheru Lal Ostwal, including nature of his expertise, is provided in the notice.  
 
In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Bheru Lal Ostwal fulfills the conditions for their appointment as 
Independent Directors as specified in the Companies Act, 2013 with rules thereunder and the SEBI 
Listing Regulations for re-appointment as an Independent Director. Accordingly, the Board, 
recommends the passing of the Special Resolution as set out in the Item no. 5 of the Notice.  
 
None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives, Except Mr. Bheru Lal 
Ostwal, being an appointee, are concerned or interested (financially or otherwise) in this Resolution 

 
Item No. 6  

 
The Board of Directors has approved appointment of Mrs. Shruti Babel as a  Independent Director 
in its meeting dated 17th August, 2024 for a first term w.e.f September 26, 2024, pursuant to Section 
149,150 & 152 of the Companies Act, 2013. In accordance with Section 149,150 and 152 read with 
Schedule IV of the Companies’ Act, 2013 the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) and all 
other applicable provisions, that every Listed Company is required that at least half of the board 
of directors shall comprise of independent directors, so for giving the effect and to adhere to the 
section Company has appointed Mrs. Shruti Babel, not liable to retire by rotation and subject to 
the approval of members, to hold office for a term of 5 (Five) consecutive years up to the 
conclusion of 25th AGM of the company. 
 
The Company has received from Mrs. Shruti Babel consent in writing to act as Director in Form 
DIR-2 pursuant to Rule 8 of the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 
2014; intimation in Form DIR-8 pursuant to Rule 14 of the Companies (Appointment & 
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 to the effect that they are not disqualified in accordance 
with sub-section (2) of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013 and declaration that he meet the 
criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.  
 
A brief profile of Mrs. Shruti Babel, including nature of her expertise, is provided in the notice.  
 
In the opinion of the Board, Mrs. Shruti Babel, fulfills the conditions for their appointment as 
Independent Directors as specified in the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly the Board, 
recommends the passing of the Special Resolution as set out in the Item no. 6 of the Notice.  
 
None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives, Except Mrs. Shruti Babel, 
being an appointee, are concerned or interested (financially or otherwise) in this Resolution. 
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Item No. 7 
 

Mr. Sunil Kothari is a Chartered Accountant by qualification. He is associated with our Company 
since 2008. He assisted in managing the financial matters of the company. He has been appointed 
as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company with effect from July 16, 2014 and Director with 
effect from February 14, 2008. He is young and dynamic person, having 17 years’ experience and 
he is presently looking into the financial and technical matters of the Company. 
 
Based on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee duly approved by 
the resolution passed at its meeting, the Board of Directors has appointed Mr. Sunil Kothari as 
Whole time Director of the Company for a period of 5 (Five) years w.e.f. 29th July, 2024, subject to 
approval of the members in General Meeting, upon following terms and conditions: 
 
A remuneration upto Rs. 24,00,000 p.a. (Rupees Twenty Four lakh per annum) including all the 
perquisites and benefits if any, paid to Mr. Sunil Kothari , except the perquisites falling outside the 
purview of the ceiling limit of remuneration as per applicable provisions of Schedule V of the Act, 
be allowed to Mr. Sunil Kothari and in the event of inadequacy of profits the Board shall be 
authorized to adjust the above remuneration in accordance with the provisions of Schedule V of the 
Act, subject however that in the event of inadequacy of profits the remuneration so paid shall be 
subject to review.  
 
“Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to vary, change, alter, reduce, 
increase the amount of remuneration within the maximum ceiling specified under Sections 196, 197 
and 203 read with Schedule V and other applicable provisions of if any, of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
 Notwithstanding anything contained herein above, where, during the term of employment of the 
Whole Time Director & Chief Financial officer, if in any financial year, the Company has no profits 
or its profits are inadequate, unless otherwise approved by any Statutory Authority, as may be 
required, the remuneration payable to the whole time director including Salary, perquisites and any 
other allowances shall be governed and be subject to the conditions and ceiling provided under the 
provisions of Section II of Part II of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 and all other applicable 
provisions of Companies Act, 2013 or such other limits as may be prescribed by the Government 
from time to time as minimum remuneration.    

 
The Directors recommend the resolution for approval of members.   
 
Item No.8 
 
As per the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’), transactions with related 
parties which are on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business, are exempted 
from the obligation of obtaining prior approval of shareholders.  
 
Further, As per the Regulation 23 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations), mandates prior approval of 
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the Shareholders through ordinary resolution for all ‘material’ Related Party Transactions. For this 
purpose, a transaction with a Related Party shall be considered ‘material’, if such transaction(s) to 
be entered into individually or taken together with previous transactions during a financial year, 
exceed `1,000 crores or 10% of the annual consolidated turnover of the Company as per the last 
audited financial statements of the Company, whichever is lower.  
 
Considering the quantum of transactions, approval of the Members is sought pursuant to 
Regulation 23 of the Listing Regulations read with SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/ CFD/ 
PoD2/CIR/P/2023/120 dated 11th July, 2023 (“SEBI Master Circular”), for the following specific 
Material Related Party Transactions, details of which are mentioned herein in accordance with the 
SEBI Master Circular 
 
The particulars of the contract / arrangement with related parties are as under: 
Particulars  1. 2. 3. 

Name of the 
Related Party 

Ostwal Phoschem 
(India) Limited (OPIL) 

Madhya Bharat Agro 
Products Limited 
(MBAPL) 

Shri Ganpati Fertilizers 
Limited (SGFL) 

Nature of 
Relationship 
with the 
Company 

Holding Company Entities over which Key 
Management Personnel 
are able to exercise 
significant influence 

Entities over which Key 
Management Personnel 
are able to exercise 
significant influence 

Type, 
material 
terms and 
particulars of 
the proposed 
transaction 

The Company and 
Ostwal Phoschem 
(India) Limited have 
entered into / propose 
to enter into the 
following RPTs for an 
aggregate value not 
exceeding 600 crores for 
a period commencing 
from the 20th Annual 
General Meeting up to 
the date of 21st Annual 
General Meeting of the 
Company to be held in 
the year 2025 for 
Purchase and sale of 
goods, Availing/ 
rendering of services, 
Investments made, Inter-
corporate deposits taken 
/ given. 

The Company and 
Madhya Bharat Agro 
Products Limited have 
entered into / propose to 
enter into the following 
RPTs for an aggregate 
value not exceeding 600 
crores for a period 
commencing from the 
20th Annual General 
Meeting up to the date of 
21th Annual General 
Meeting of the Company 
to be held in the year 
2025 for Purchase and 
sale of goods, Availing/ 
rendering of services, 
Investments made, Inter-
corporate deposits taken 
/ given. 

The Company and Shri 
Ganpati Fertilizers Limited 
have entered into / propose 
to enter into the following 
RPTs, for an aggregate 
value not exceeding 200 
crores for a period 
commencing from the 20th 
Annual General Meeting 
up to the date of 21th 
Annual General Meeting 
of the Company to be held 
in the year 2025 for 
Purchase and sale of 
goods, Availing/ 
rendering of services, 
Investments made, 
Intercorporate deposits 
taken / given. 

Tenure of the 
proposed 

Recurring Transactions  Recurring Transactions  Recurring Transactions  
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transaction 

Value of the 
proposed 
Transaction 

Not exceeding 600 crores  Not exceeding 600 crores  Not exceeding 200 crores 

Percentage of 
the 
Company’s 
annual 
consolidated 
turnover for 
the 
immediately 
preceding 
financial year 
that is 
represented 
by the value 
of the 
proposed 
transaction 

64.94 % 64.94 % 21.64% 

Details of proposed RPTs relating to any loans, inter-corporate 
deposits, advances or investments made or given by the Company 
or its subsidiary  

 

 (a)Details of 
the source of 
funds in 
connection 
with the 
proposed 
transaction. 
 

 Own share capital 
/Internal accruals and 
liquidity of the 
Company and OPIL 

Own share capital / 
Internal accruals and 
liquidity of the Company 
and MBAPL 

Own share capital / 
Internal accruals and 
liquidity of the Company 
and SGFL 

(b) where 
any financial 
indebtedness 
is incurred to 
make or give 
loans, inter-
corporate 
deposits, 
advances or 
investments 
(i) nature of 
indebtedness; 
(ii) cost of 

 Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable 
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funds; and 
(iii) tenure; 

(c) 
Applicable 
terms, 
including 
covenants, 
tenure, 
interest rate, 
repayment 
schedule, 
whether 
secured 
(nature of 
security) or 
unsecured 
 

Inter-corporate deposits 
taken/given at any point 
of time-demand to pay 
basis 
Tenure: Short term 
Interest rate: linked to 
the Company’s short-
term borrowing rate 
Repayment Schedule: 
Not Applicable The 
above inter-corporate 
deposits are under 
unsecured category. 

Inter-corporate deposits 
taken/given at any point 
of time-demand to pay 
basis 
Tenure: Short term 
Interest rate: linked to the 
Company’s short-term 
borrowing rate 
Repayment Schedule: 
Not Applicable The 
above inter-corporate 
deposits are under 
unsecured category. 

Inter-corporate deposits 
taken/given at any point 
of time-demand to pay 
basis 
Tenure: Short term Interest 
rate: linked to the 
Company’s short-term 
borrowing rate Repayment 
Schedule: Not Applicable 
The above inter-corporate 
deposits are under 
unsecured category. 

(d) Purpose 
for which 
funds will be 
utilized 

To meet working capital 
requirements of the 
Company 

To meet working capital 
requirements of the 
Company 

To meet working capital 
requirements of the 
Company 

Justification 
as to why the 
RPT is in the 
interest of the 
Company 

Our group companies 
having same business 
line and transactions 
between the companies 
including 
purchasing and selling 
of raw material and 
other transactions from 
time to time, help 
smoothen business 
operations for the 
companies. The 
transaction is at arm’s 
length and in the 
ordinary course of 
business of the 
respective companies. 

Our group companies 
having same business 
line and transactions 
between the companies 
including 
purchasing and selling of 
raw material and other 
transactions from time to 
time, help smoothen 
business operations for 
the companies. The 
transaction is at arm’s 
length and in the 
ordinary course of 
business of the respective 
companies. 

Our group companies 
having same business line 
and transactions between 
the companies including 
purchasing and selling of 
raw material and other 
transactions from time to 
time, help smoothen 
business operations for the 
companies. The 
transaction is at arm’s 
length and in the ordinary 
course of business of the 
respective companies. 

Details about 
valuation, 
arm’s length 
and ordinary 
course of 
business 

Arm’s length pricing; 
combination of cost-plus 
markup and market 
benchmarking 

Arm’s length pricing; 
combination of cost-plus 
markup and market 
benchmarking 

Arm’s length pricing; 
combination of cost-plus 
markup and market 
benchmarking 
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Valuation or 
other 
external 
report, if any, 
relied upon 
by the listed 
entity in 
relation to 
the proposed 
transaction 

Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable 

Any other 
information 
relevant or 
important for 
the 
shareholders 
to take an 
informed 
decision 

All relevant information 
forms a part of this 
Explanatory statement 
setting out material 
facts. 

All relevant information 
forms a part of this 
Explanatory statement 
setting out material facts. 

All relevant information 
forms a part of this 
Explanatory statement 
setting out material facts. 

 
Further, the Members are requested to note that the related party transactions mentioned in Item 
No. 8 to 10, for the period commencing from 1st April, 2024 up to the date of the 20th Annual 
General Meeting would be within the threshold prescribed under Regulation 23(1) of the Listing 
Regulations i.e. lower of Rs. 1,000 crores or 10% of the annual consolidated turnover of the 
Company as per the last audited financial statements of the Company. 
 
Upon receipt of approval(s) for related party transactions as set out in Item nos. 8 to 10, the 
Company shall additionally ensure that the transactions from 1st April, 2024 up to the date of 20th  
Annual General Meeting would be within the monetary limit as set out in Item Nos. 8 to 10 
respectively. 
 
The maximum annual value of the proposed transactions with the related parties is estimated 
based on the Company’s current transactions with them and future business projections. 
 
 All the Related Party Transaction is in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length 
basis. The transaction shall also be reviewed/monitored on an annual basis by the Audit 
Committee of the Company and shall remain within the proposed limits as placed before the 
shareholders. Any subsequent ‘Material Modification’ in the proposed transaction, as defined by 
the Audit Committee as a part of Company’s ‘Policy on Related Party Transactions’, shall be 
placed before the shareholders for approval, in terms of Regulation 23(4) of the Listing 
Regulations. 
 
Members are hereby informed that pursuant to second proviso of section 188(1) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, no member of the company shall vote on such ordinary resolution to approve any 
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contract or arrangement, if such member is a related party. None of the Directors and other KMP 
of the Company and their respective relatives (to the extent of their shareholding in the Company, 
if any) in any way, are concerned or interested either directly or indirectly, financially or otherwise 
in the Resolution set out in the accompanying Notice. 
 
The Board Recommends the ordinary Resolution set out for the approval of Members. 
 

 
 

 
                                                                                                          By Order of the Board of Directors 
 
Dated: 17/08/2024                                                 For Krishana Phoschem Limited 
Place: Bhilwara  
 Sd/- 
                                                                                                                                                         

                                                               (Ankit Mundra) 
                                                                            Company Secretary  
                                                                                                                            & Compliance Officer 
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INFORMATION PURSUANT TO REGULATION 36(3) OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS 
AND DISCLOSURES REQUIREMENTS) REGULATION, 2015  

 
As required under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulation, 2015 
the particulars of Directors who are proposed to be appointed/reappointed at the forthcoming 
Annual General Meeting are as follows: 
 

1)To Reappointment of Mr. Bheru Lal Ostwal DIN (08377262) as an Independent Director:  
 
Mr. Bheru Lal Ostwal aged 60 years, presently doing business of cloth agency. He is Master in 
Commerce, from Rajasthan University and having 35 years’ experience in the Industry and 
business. He has been appointed as an Additional Non –Executive & Independent Director of the 
Company with effect from March 26, 2019.  
 
Mr. Bheru Lal Ostwal is not a relative to the any of Directors of the Company. He is neither 
Chairman nor a Member of any Committees of the Board of Company  
 
Sh. Bheru Lal Ostwal, holds 200 shares of the Company. 

 
Certain additional information about Mr. Bheru Lal Ostwal is as under: 
 
Name of the Director Bheru Lal Ostwal 
DIN 08377262 
Date of Birth 01/01/1964 
Date of first appointment on the Board 26/03/2019 
Qualification Master in Commerce 
Nature of expertise in specific functional areas Extensive experience in the field of Strategy, Operations  

and General Management 
Disclosure of relationships between directors inter-
se 

Mr. Bheru Lal Ostwal is not a relative to any of Directors  
of the Company 

Names of listed entities in which the person also 
holds the directorship 

Madhya Bharat Agro Products Limited and  
Krishana Phoschem Limited 

listed entities from which the person has resigned 
in the past three years 

Nil 

Shareholding of directors in the Company as on 
31.03.2024 

200 Shares 

Number of meetings of the Board attended during 
the year 

He attended 10 Board meetings held during FY 2023-24. 

Directorship of other Companies as on 31st 
March, 2024 

Madhya Bharat Agro Products Limited , Krishana  
Phoschem Limited and Ostwal Phoschem (India) Limited 

Chairmanship/Membership of committees of 
Companies as on 31st March 2024 

NILL 

Memberships/ Chairmanships of committees of 
other Companies as on 31st March 2024 

1.Audit Committee  
Chairman  
Madhya Bharat Agro Products Ltd.  
Ostwal Phoschem (India) Limited. 
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2.Nomination and Remeuneration Committee  
Chairman  
Madhya Bharat Agro Products Ltd.  
Member  
Ostwal Phoschem (India) Limited. 
 
3.Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 
 Member  
Madhya Bharat Agro Products Ltd 
Ostwal Phoschem (India) Limited 

 
 
2. To Appointment Mrs. Shruti Babel DIN (07667313) as an Independent Director:  
 
Mrs. Shruti Babel aged 33 years, has Masters in Human Resource from University of Rajasthan, and 
having 3 years’ experience in Business and management consultancy. 
 
 She also had three years stint in various capacities with consultancy firms, where her job involved 
focus on customers and inclusive execution of customer centric value in the market and in the 
Business & Management in Human Resource Development field.  
 
She has been appointed as an Non–Executive Independent Director of the Company with effect 
from August 17, 2024.  
 
Mrs. Shruti Babel is not a relative to the any of Directors of the Company. She is not a Chairman in 
any Committees and Member of independent Committees of the Board of Company. Mrs. Shruti 
Babel, does not hold shares of the Company. 
 
Mrs. Shruti Babel does not hold any shares of the Company. 
 
Certain additional information about Mrs. Shruti Babel is as under: 
 
 
Name of the Director Shruti Babel 
DIN 07667313 
Date of Birth 19/12/1991 
Qualification Masters in Human Resource from University  

of Rajasthan, 
Nature of expertise in specific functional areas Extensive experience in the field customers  

and inclusive execution of customer centric  
value in the market 

Disclosure of relationships between directors 
 inter-se 

Mrs. Shruti Babel is not a relative to any of  
Directors of the Company 

Names of listed entities in which the person also 
 holds the directorship 

Madhya Bharat Agro Products Limited 
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listed entities from which the person has resigned in 
the past three years 

Nil 

Shareholding of directors in the Company  
as on 31.03.2024 

Nil 

Number of meetings of the Board attended  
during the year 

Not applicable 

Directorship of other Companies as on  
31st March, 2024 

Madhya Bharat Agro Products Limited 

Chairmanship/Membership of committees  
of Companies as on 31st March 2024 

Nil        

Memberships/ Chairmanships of committees of  
other Companies as on 31st March 2024 

Chairperson 

 
Member: Nil 

Name of the Company Committee 
Madhya Bharat  
Agro Products Limited 
 

Stakeholders  
Relationship Committee 

 
3. Mr. Sunil Kothari (DIN 02056569) retires by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General 
Meeting and is eligible for reappointment & appointment of Whole time director. 
 
Mr. Sunil Kothari aged 43 years, is the Whole Time Director & Chief Financial Officer of our 
Company. He is a Chartered Accountant by qualification. He is associated with our Company since 
2008. He assisted in managing the financial matters of the company. He has been appointed as the 
Chief Financial Officer of the Company with effect from July 16, 2014 and Director with effect from 
February 14, 2008. He is young and dynamic person, having 17 years’ experience and he is presently 
looking into the financial and technical matters of the Company.  
 
Mr. Sunil Kothari is not a relative to the Chairman and Managing Director.  
 
Mr. Sunil Kothari is Chief Financial Officer of Krishana Phoschem Limited. He is a Member of Audit 
Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility Committees of the 
Board of Company.  
 
Mr. Sunil Kothari does not hold any shares of the Company. 
 
Certain additional information about Mr. Sunil Kothari is as under: 
 
Name of the Director Sunil Kothari 
DIN 02056569 
Date of Birth 04/05/1976 
Date of first appointment on the Board 14/02/2008 
Qualification Chartered Accountant (CA) 
Nature of expertise in specific functional areas Extensive experience in the field of financial and 

technical matters 
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Disclosure of relationships between directors  
inter-se 

Mr. Sunil Kothari is not a relative to any of Directors of  
the Company 

Names of listed entities in which the person  
also holds the directorship 

Nil 

listed entities from which the person has  
resigned in the past three years 

Nil 

Shareholding of directors in the Company  
as on 31.03.2024 

Nil 

Number of meetings of the Board attended  
during the year 

He attended 10 Board meetings held during FY 2023-24. 

Directorship of other Companies as on  
31st March, 2024 

Nil 

Chairmanship/Membership of committees of 
Companies as on 31st March 2024 

1.Audit Committee  
Member 
 
2.Stakeholders Relationship Committee 
Member 
        
3.Risk Management Committee     
 Member  
 
4.Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 
Member        

Memberships/ Chairmanships of committees of 
other Companies as on 31st March 2024 

NIL 
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 DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
For the Year 2023-24 

 

Dear Members,  
 
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 20th Annual Report on the business and operations 
of the Company together with the Audited Accounts of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 
2024. 
 
FINANCIAL RESULT 
The summary of financial results for the year and appropriation of divisible profits is given below:                                                                                                                                

                                                                                                                                                    (Rs. in Lakhs) 
Particulars 2023-2024 2022-2023 

Turnover 92389.77 32281.76 

Profit Before Taxation 5906.93 3893.86 

Taxation 1862.64 1220.26 

Profit /(Loss) after Tax 4044.29 2673.60 

Profit Before Tax Margin (%) 6.39 12.06 

Profit After Tax Margin (%) 4.36 8.28 

 
PERFORMANCE REVIEW AND STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIR: 
During the period under review the company has achieved turnover of Rs 92389.77 lakhs and the 
profit of the company before tax is Rs 5906.93 lakhs and profit after tax is Rs 4044.29 lakhs. 
The production of 61526 M.T. of Beneficiated Rock Phosphate, 113291 M.T. of Single Super Phosphate 
(including consumption of micronutrient Zinc Sulphate and Boron), 150466 M.T. of Sulphuric Acid, 
Oleum, Coloro Sulphonic Acid, and other Products, 97671 MT of Nitrogen Phosphate & Potassium 
(NPK), 48171 MT of Phosphoric Acid, 51291 MT of Di Ammonia Phosphate. 
  
The profit of the company before tax is Rs 5906.93 lakhs and profit after tax is Rs 4044.29 lakhs. 
 
CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS OF COMPANY 
During the year under review, there is no change in the nature of business of Company. 

 
LISTING OF THE COMPANY 

The Shares of your Company are Listed on “National Stock Exchange” Platform with stock code 

“KRISHANA” The annual Listing Fees for the Year 2024-25 has been Paid by the company to the 

exchange. 
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SHARE CAPITAL  

 

The Authorized Equity Share Capital of your company has been increased from Rs. 40,00,00,000 to 

Rs. 70,00,00,000 during the year under review. The Authorized Equity Share Capital of Company 

as on 31st March, 2024 stood at Rs.70,00,00,000/- (Rupees Seventy Crore Only) comprising of 

7,00,00,000 (Seven Crore) Equity Shares of Face Value of `10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each.  

 

The paid-up share capital of your company has been increased from Rs. 30,91,38,000 to Rs. 

61,82,76,000 during the year under review. The Company has issued and allotted 3,09,13,800 fully 

paid-up Bonus Equity shares of Rs 10 each on 25th October 2023 in the ratio of 1:1(i.e 1 Bonus Equity 

shares for every 1 existing equity shares of the company).  

 

Post Bonus, the paid-up Equity Share Capital of the company stands at 61,82,76,00 equity shares of 

10 each, aggregating to Rs. 61,82,76,000.  

 

 

ANNUAL RETURN (SECTION 92): 

The information required pursuant to the provisions of Section 134 (3) (a) and Section 92 (3) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12 of Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 
2014, the Annual Return for the financial year ended on March 31st, 2024 is available on the website 
of the Company viz. http://www.krishnaphoschem.com 

 
 
BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 
Pursuant to Regulation 34 of the Listing Regulations, the Business Responsibility and Sustainability 

Report for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024, is provided in Annexure I forming part of this 

report and the same is also available on the website of the Company. 

 

STATUTORY AUDITORS’ & STATUTORY AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit 

and Auditors) Rules, 2014, M/s Ashok Kanther & Associates, Chartered Accountants, was 

appointed as the Auditor of the Company for a period of 5 consecutive years till the conclusion of 

23rd AGM to be held in the year 2027.  

 

The Auditor’s Report is self-explanatory and therefore, does not call for any further comments/ 

clarifications and Auditor’s report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse 

remarks 

http://www.krishnaphoschem.com/
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SECRETARIAL AUDITOR & SECRETARIAL AUDITORS’ REPORT 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 
(Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial personnel) Rules, 2014, the company has Re-
appointed M/s Sourabh Bapna & Associates, a Proprietorship firm of company Secretaries in 
practice to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for financial year 2024-25.  The Company 
has received their consent for Re-appointment. 
 
The Secretarial Audit report for financial year 2023-24 received from Sourabh Bapna & Associates is 
provided in Annexure II forming part of this report.  
 
The Secretarial Audit report received from M/s Sourabh Bapna & Associates does not contain any 
qualification, reservation or adverse remarks. 

 
COST AUDITOR 
M/s. K. C. Moondra & Associates, Cost Accountant, was re-appointed as Cost Auditors of your 
Company for FY 2024-2025. 
 

For the financial year 2023-24, M/s. K. C. Moondra & Associates, Cost Accountant have conducted 
the audit of the cost records of the Company. 
 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, and on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board 
has Re-appointed M/s K.C. Moondra & Associates, Cost Accountants (Registration No. 101814),  at 
such remuneration as fixed by board of directors to conduct the audit of the cost records of the 
Company for the financial year ending 31stMarch, 2025. The Re-appointment and the remuneration 
of the Cost Auditor is required to be ratified subsequently by the Members of the Company and 
further subject to the approval of the Central Government. 
 
The Company has received their written consent and confirmation that the Re-appointment will be 
in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Act and rules framed thereunder. 

 
INTERNAL AUDITOR & AUDITORS’ REPORT 
As per section 138 of The Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 13 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014, the company has Re-appointed M/s Sourabh Bapna & Associates, Practising Company 
Secretaries as Internal Auditor to conduct Internal Audit for the Financial Year 2024-25. The 
Company has received their consent for Re-appointment. 
 
 
The Internal Audit Report is received by the Company and the same is reviewed and approved by 
the Audit Committee and Board of Directors for the year 2023-2024. All the observations made by 
the Internal Auditors have been attended to. 
 
 

 



     KRISHANA PHOSCHEM LIMITED 

 
 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM 
The company has in place an adequate internal control system, which is commensurate with the 
size, scale and complexity of the company. The internal auditors independently evaluate the 
adequacy of internal controls and concurrently audit the majority of the transactions in value terms. 
Independence of the audit compliance is ensured by the direct reporting of Internal Audit Division 
and Internal Auditors to the Audit Committee of the Board. 
 
During the period under review the Internal Financial Control were tested and no reportable 
material weakness in the design or operation were observed. 
 
REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS, IF ANY: 
No fraud has been reported by auditors under section 143 (12) of the companies act 2013.  
 
RESERVES 
During the Year under review, The Board of Director of company have recommended to transfer 
Rs. 3889.72 lakhs to Retained Earnings and issue bonus share of Rs.3091.38 from retained earning 
reserves hence, the retained earnings has increased to Rs 16,845.10 lakhs. 
 
DIVIDEND  

After considering earnings, requirement for funds and with the objective of rewarding the 
Shareholders, the Board has recommended final dividend of 5% being Rs. 0.50 per equity share of 
Rs. 10/- each for the financial year 2023-24, subject to approval at the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting.  
 
The Dividend payout for the Financial Year under review is in accordance with the Company’s 
Dividend Distribution Policy. 
 
In terms of Regulation 43A of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Dividend Distribution Policy of the Company is 
made available on the website of the Company. The same can be accessed on 
http://www.krishnaphoschem.com 
 
DEPOSITS: 

During the year, the Company has not accepted deposits from the public under section 73 chater V 
of the Companies Act, 2013.  
 
NO DEFAULT: 

The company has not defaulted in payment of interest and/or repayment of loan to any of the 

financial institutions and/or bank. 

 

 

 

 

http://www.krishnaphoschem.com/
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DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

 
In accordance with provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and company’s Articles of Association, Mr. 

Sunil Kothari (DIN: 02056569), Director of the Company, retire by rotation and being eligible, offers 

himself for re-appointment. The Board recommends his  re-appointment. 

 

During the year, Mr. Praveen Ostwal Managing Director of the Company, Mr. Sunil Kothari, Whole 
Time Director & Chief Financial Officer,Ms. Priyanka Bansal, Company Secretary & Compliance 
Officer of the Company (Resigned w.e.f 30.09.2023) and Mr. Ankit Mundra Company Secretary & 
Compliance Officer of the Company(appointed w.e.f 13.12.2023) were designated as Key Managerial 
Personnel of the Company pursuant to Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

 
POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION AND OTHER DETAILS 
The policy on appointment of directors, remuneration and other matters provided in Section 178(3) 
of the Act has been disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report, which is a part of this report and 
is also available on the Company’s website at  http://www.krishnaphoschem.com. 
 
DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:  
The Company has received necessary declaration from each Independent Director under Section 
149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the effect that they meet the criteria of independence laid down 
in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. The terms and conditions for appointment of the 
Independent Directors are incorporated on the website of the Company. 
 
The Board is of the opinion that the Independent Directors of the Company possess requisite 
qualifications, experience and expertise and that they hold highest standards of integrity 

 

 

NUMBER OF MEETING OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 

The Board of Directors duly met 10 (Ten) times on 21st April 2023, 12h June 2023, 10th August 2023, 

29th August 2023,23rd September 2023, 30th September 2023,25th October 2023, 10th November 2023, 

13th December 2023 and 12thFebruary 2024 in the Financial Year 2023-24 in respect of each meetings, 

proper notices were given and the proceedings were properly recorded and signed in the Minutes 

Book maintained for the purpose. The details of Board Meetings and the attendance of the Directors 

there at are provided in the Corporate Governance Report. The intervening time gap between two 

consecutive Meetings of the Board was within the limit prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

 

 

 

http://www.krishnaphoschem.com/
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INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE & ONE-TIME SETTLEMENT  

The company does not make any application under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 and 

There is no proceeding pending against the Company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 

2016 (IBC Code).  

 

Further, there has not been any instance of one-time settlement of the Company with any bank or 

financial institution. 

 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 
The information required pursuant to the Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 
5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in 
respect of ratio of remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the 
Company is provided in Annexure III forming part of this report. 
 
ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTGOING 
The details as required under section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rule 8 of 

Companies (Account) Rule, 2014 for conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign 

Exchange earnings and outgo are  given in Annexure IV forming part of this report. 

 

PARTICULAR OF LOAN, GUARANTEE AND INVESTMENT UNDER SECTION 186: 

The information required for loans given, investment made or guarantee given or security 
provided under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rule 11 of Companies 
(Meetings of Board and its power) Rule, 2014 is given in Annexure V forming part of this report 
and also provided in the financial statement of the Company (please refer Notes of the balance 
sheet). 
 

 

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY : 

Proper Risk Management Practices have been followed for the purpose of risk identification, 
analysis, response planning, and monitoring, controlling, and reporting. Although, all risks cannot 
be eliminated, but mitigation and contingency plans have been developed to lessen their impact if 
they occur. 
 
The Company has constituted a Risk Management Committee, as per the details set out in the 
Corporate Governance Report. The Company has formulated a Risk Management Policy to ensure 
risks associated with the business operations are identified and risk mitigation plans put in place. 
Details of the key risk associated with the business are given in the Management Discussion 
and Analysis Report. 
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE SECRETARIAL STANDARDS: 

The Company is in compliance with the Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India (ICSI), as applicable. 
 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION UNDER SECTION 188  
All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on arm’s length 
basis and were in the ordinary course of the business. There are no materially significant related 
party transactions made by the company during the financial year which were in the conflict of 
interest of the company.  
 
Information on transactions with related parties pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) of the Act read with 
rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are given in Annexure VI in Form AOC-2 and 
the same forms part of this report. 
 
Related party transactions as required under the Indian Accounting Standards are disclosed in 
Notes to the financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2024. The 
Policy on Related Party Transaction is available on the Company's website at 
http://www.krishnaphoschem.com. 
 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORTS 
The Corporate Governance and Management Discussion & Analysis Report, as required pursuant 
to the SEBI ((Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, is provided in 
Annexure VII and Annexure VIII   respectively forming part of this report. 

 
BOARD EVALUATION:  
Pursuant to the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing regulations, the 
Board has carried out an annual performance evaluation of its own, working of its Committees and 
the Directors. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has carried out evaluation of every 
Director. The Independent Directors evaluated performance of the Non-Independent Directors, the 
Board as whole and the Chairperson of the Company. 
 
COMMITTEES OF BOARD:    
The Board of Directors of your Company has constituted the following committees in terms of the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures 
Requirements), Regulation, 2015: 
 
AUDIT COMMITTEE DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 177: 
The Audit Committee of the Company consists of 2 Independent Directors and 1 Executive Director. 
The Chairman of the Audit Committee is financially literate and majority of them having accounting 
or related financial management experience. Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Committee.  
 

 
The following Directors are the members of Audit Committee. 
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(1) Mr. Pradeep Agrawal    Chairman 
(2) Mrs. Priyanka Surana                Member 
(3) Mr. Sunil Kothari                                                Member 

 

During the year the Committee had 4 Meetings i.e. on 21st April 2023, 10th August 2023, 10th 
November 2023 and 12th February 2024. 
 
NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 178: 
In  pursuant  to  the  provisions  of  section  178 (4) of  the Companies Act,  2013, Nomination and 
Remuneration Policy recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration committee is duly 
approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. Policy is disclosed on the website of the 
Company http://www.krishnaphoschem.com 
 

The following Directors are the members of Nomination and Remuneration Committee. 
(1) Mr. Pradeep Agrawal    Chairman 
(2) Mr. Gopal Inani     Member 
(3) Mr. Priyanka Surana    Member 
 
The Committee meets twice in a year and also as and when any remuneration is to be fixed for any 
Director /Managing Director and Key Managerial Personnel. During the year the Committee had 2 
Meetings i.e. on 25th October 2023 and 13th December 2023. 
Mr. Sunil Kothari was appointed as a member of committee w.e.f 10.08.2023 in place of Mr. Praveen 
Ostwal.                                            
 
INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS COMMITTEE: 
The following are the members of independent directors committee: 
(1) Mr. Pradeep Agarwal        Chairman 
(2) Mr. Gopal Inani                                           Member 
(3) Mrs. Priyanka Surana                                 Member 
During the year  one Independent Directors Committee Meeting were held on 30th March 2024. 
 
STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE: 
 
The following Committee of Directors looks after the Investor Grievances: 
(1) Mr.Pradeep Agarwal        Chairman 
(2) Mr. Gopal Inani                                           Member 
(3) Mr. Sunil Kothari                                          Member 

 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.krishnaphoschem.com/
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During the year the 4 Stakeholder Relationship Committee Meetings were held on 21st April 2023, 
10th August 2023, 10th November 2023 and 12th February 2024 the complaints received and their 
disposal has been reviewed. 

 
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY: 
In  pursuant  to  the  provisions  of  section  135  and  schedule VII  of  the Companies Act,  2013, 
CSR Committee of  the Board of Directors was formed  to recommend (a)  the policy on Corporate 
Social Responsibility (CSR) and (b) implementation of the CSR Projects or Programs to be 
undertaken by the Company as per CSR Policy for consideration and approval by the Board of 
Directors. CSR Policy is disclosed on the website of the Company viz. 
http://www.krishnaphoschem.com. 

 
As per provision of new enacted Company Act, 2013, the Board of Directors have framed Corporate 
Social Responsibilities Committee having the following members: -  
(1)  Mr. Pradeep Agarwal                     Chairman  
(2)  Mr. Gopal Inani                                Member  
(3) Mr. Sunil Kothari                              Member 
 

Our Company considers social responsibility as an integral part of its business activities and 
endeavors to utilize allocable CSR budget for the benefit of society.  
 
Krishana Phoschem Limited (KPL) contributed immensely to help the marginalized sections of the 
society.  
 
Your company as part of its responsibility towards society has been taking welfare measures from 
time to time.  

 
During the year the Committee had 2 Meetings i.e., on 30th September 2023 and 30th March 2024. 

The CSR Report for the financial year ended on March 31st, 2024 is provided in Annexure IX 
forming part of this report. 

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE: 
The Board of Directors of the Company have constituted a Risk Management Committee to inter-
alia, assist the Board in overseeing the responsibilities with regard to identification, evaluation and 
mitigation of operational, strategic and external environmental risks. 
 
The following Directors are the members of Risk Management Committee.: 
(1) Mrs. Priyanka Surana       Chairman 
(2) Mr. Pradeep Agarwal    Member 
(3) Mr. Sunil Kothari                                               Member 
 
 
 

http://www.krishnaphoschem.com/
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During the year the 2 Risk Management Committee Meetings were held on 10st August 2023 and 
25th October 2023. 
 
WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY / VIGIL MECHANISM 
The Board of Directors has adopted Whistle Blower Policy. The Whistle Blower Policy aims for 
conducting the affairs in a fair and transparent manner by adopting highest standards of 
professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical behaviour. A mechanism has been established for 
employees to report concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of 
Code of Conduct and Ethics. It also provides for adequate safeguards against the victimization of 
employees who avail of the mechanism and allows direct access to the Chairperson of the audit 
committee in exceptional cases. 
 
The whistle Blower Policy has been uploaded on the website of the Company 
(www.krishnaphoschem.com). 

 
MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS: 
There have been no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the 
Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the 
financial statements relate and the date of this report. 
 
SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS 
No significant and material orders have been passed by the regulators or Courts or Tribunals 
which impact the going concern status of your Company and the Company’s operations in future. 

 
SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE AND ASSOCIATE COMPANY: 
The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture and Associate Company. 
 
CREDIT RATINGS: 
During financial Year 2023-24 CRISIL Rating has assigned overall Credit Ratings in respect of 
borrowings availed by the Company as ‘CRISIL A/Stable’. 
 
DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 
The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirement of The 
Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 
Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set up to redress complaints received regarding 
sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainee) are covered under 
this policy. 
 

The following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed off during the 
year 2023-24. 
 

No. of complaints received:  Nil 
No. of complaints disposed off: Nil 

 

http://www.krishnaphoschem.com/
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 
Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134 (3) (c) & 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 with 
respect to Directors Responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed that: 
 

(a) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2024, the 
applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to 
material departures;  
 

(b) The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of 
the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of 
the company for the year under review; 

 
 

(c) The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of 
the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

 

(d) The directors had prepared the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024 
on a going concern basis;  

 

(e) That the Directors had  laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company 
and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.  

 

(f) The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all        
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.  

 
HEALTH, SAFETY, QUALITY AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION  
Your Company is ISO 9001:2015 certified and maintains high quality of product and processes. The 
quality assurance is ensured at all stages of manufacturing processes, maintenance and support 
services. Quality reviews are regularly conducted and feedback from end users (farmers) is 
accorded utmost importance. Sophisticated instruments are in place for monitoring of critical 
quality parameters. 
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 Date: 17.08.2024                                                   Sd/-                                             Sd/- 
 Place: Bhilwara                                                   Praveen Ostwal                        Sunil Kothari 
                                                                               (Managing Director)               (Whole time Director & CFO) 
                                                                                (DIN: 00412207)                       (DIN: 02056569) 
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ANNEXURE- I 

 Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report 2023-24 

Krishana Phoschem Limited always put sustainability at the heart of its business approach. We 
always put our responsibilities on priority basis to our stakeholders. We have balanced success as 
a business with unwavering focus on exemplary governance and responsiveness to the needs of 
the ecology and society. 
 
 

SECTION A: GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY 

1. CIN L24124RJ2004PLC019288 

2. Name of the Company Krishana Phoschem Limited 

3. Year of Incorporation  14/05/2004 

4. Address of Registered office  5-O-20, Basement, R.C. Vyas Colony 
Bhilwara (Raj.) 311001 

5. Address of Corporate Office 5-O-20, Basement, R.C. Vyas Colony 
Bhilwara (Raj.) 311001 

6. E-mail ID  secretarial@krishnaphoschem.com 

7. Telephone No. 01482-237104, 239091 

8. Website https://www.krishnaphoschem.com 

9. Financial Year reported Financial Year 2023-24  

10. Name of the Stock Exchange(s) where 
shares are listed 

National Stock Exchange of India 
Limited (NSE) 

11. Paid up Capital (Rs.) ₹61,82,76,000 

12. Name and contact details (telephone, email 
address) of the person who may be 
contacted in case of any queries on the BRSR 
report 

Mr. Sunil Kothari  
(Whole time Director & CFO of the 
Company) 
Email Id: sunil@krishnaphoschem.com 
Mobile No. :- 9257011211 

13. Reporting boundary - Are the disclosures 
under this report made on a standalone basis 
(i.e. only for the entity) or on a consolidated 
basis (i.e. for the entity and all the entities 
which form a part of its consolidated 
financial statements, taken together). 

The disclosures under this report are 
made on a Standalone basis, unless 
otherwise specified.  
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II. PRODUCTS/SERVICES 

14. Details of business activities (accounting for 90% of the turnover): 

S. No. Description of 
Main Activity   
 

Description of Business Activity % of 
Turnover of 
the  entity 

1. Fertilizer  Manufacturing, Distribution, Sales & 
Marketing of crop Protection and crop 
Nutrition Products  

 92.92% 

2. Chemical 7.08% 

 

15. Products/Services sold by the entity (accounting for 90% of the entity’s Turnover): 

S. 
No. 

Product/Service  NIC Code % of total Turnover 
contributed 

1 Single Super Phosphate (SSP) 20122 15.25% 
2 Benefited rock Phosphate 20122 3.71% 
3 Di-ammonium Phosphate (DAP)/ 

Nitrogen, Phosphorus, and 
Potassium (NPK) 

20122 73.96% 

4 Sulphuric Acid  20112 0.27% 
5 Phosporic Acid 20112 6.41% 
6 Other FertilizerProducts 20121 0.40% 

 

III. Operations  

16. Number of locations where plants and/or operations/offices of the entity are situated: 

Location Number of plants Number of offices Total 

National 1 9 10 

International - - - 
 

17. Markets served by the entity: 

a) Number of locations 

Locations Number 

National (No. of States) 10 

International (No. of Countries) - 
 

b) What is the contribution of exports as a percentage of the total turnover of the entity? 

0% 
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c). A brief on types of customers 

The Company serves various customers including retailers, distributors and traders through 

its domestic business. The Company’s products are consumed within India. 

IV. Employees 

18. Details as at the end of Financial Year: 

a. Employees and workers (including differently abled): 

S. 
No. 

Particulars Total (A) Male Female 

No. (B) %  (B / A) No. (C) % (C / A) 

EMPLOYEES 

1. Permanent (D) 208 206 99.04 2 0.96 
2. Other than Permanent (E) 18 16 88.89 2 11.11 
3. Total employees  (D + E) 226 222 98.23 4 1.77 

WORKERS 

4. Permanent (F) 77 77 100  0 0 

5. Other than Permanent (G) 522 522 100  0 0 
6. Total workers  (F + G) 599 599 100  0 0 

 

b. Differently abled Employees and workers: 

S. 
No. 

Particulars Total (A) Male Female 

No. (B) %  (B / A) No. (C) % (C / A) 

DIFFERENTLY ABLED EMPLOYEES 

1. Permanent (D) - - - - - 

2. Other than Permanent (E) - - - - - 

3. Total employees  (D + E) - - - - - 

DIFFERENTLY ABLED WORKERS 

4. Permanent (F) - - - - - 

5. Other than Permanent (G) - - - - - 

6. Total workers  (F + G) - - - - - 

 

19. Participation/Inclusion/Representation of women 

 Total  (A) No. and percentage of Females 

No. (B) % (B / A) 

Board of Directors 8 1 12.50 

Key Management Personnel 3 0 00.00 
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20. Turnover rate for permanent employees and workers   

(Trends for the past 3 years) 

 FY- 2023-24 FY- 2022-23 FY- 2021-22 

 Male Female Total Male Female Total Male Female Total 

Permanent 
Employees 

21.75 40.00 22.02 13.07 22.22 35.29 13.99 28.57 14.67 

Permanent 
Workers 

11.03 0.00 11.03 3.54 0.00 3.54 11.11 0.00 11.11 

 

V. Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies (including joint ventures) 

21. (a) Names of holding / subsidiary / associate companies / joint ventures 

S. 
No. 

Name of the holding 
/ subsidiary / 
associate companies  
/ joint ventures (A) 

Whether 
holding/ 
Subsidiary/ 
Associate/ Joint 
Venture  
 

% of shares 
held by listed 
entity 

Does the entity indicated 
at column A, participate 
in the Business 
Responsibility 
initiatives of the listed 
entity? (Yes/No)   
 

1. Ostwal Phoschem 
(India) Limited 

Holding 66.47%  No 

 

VI. CSR Details 

22. (i) Whether CSR is applicable as per section 135 of Companies Act, 2013: Yes, refer to 

Annexure IX to the Board’s report               

(ii) Turnover as on March 31st 2024 (in Rs.) 92389.77 Lakhs         

(iii) Net Worth as on March 31st 2024 (in Rs.) 30059.07 Lakhs  

VII. Transparency and Disclosures Compliances 
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23. Complaints/Grievances on any of the principles (Principles 1 to 9) under the National 

Guidelines on Responsible Business Conduct: 

Stakeholder 

group from 

whom 

complaint is  

received 

Grievance 

Redressal 

Mechanism     in  

Place (Yes/No) 

FY 2023-24 

 

FY 2022-23 
 
 

 (If Yes, then 

provide web-link for 

grievance redress 

policy) 

Number 

of 

complain

ts  filed 

during 

the  year 

Number 

of 

complain

ts 

pending 

resolutio

n at close 

of the 

year 

Remar
ks 

Number 

of 

complain

ts filed 

during 

the year 

Number 

of 

complain

ts 

pending 

resolutio

n at close 

of the 

year 

Remar

ks 

Communities Yes 

https://www.krishnaphosch

em.com 

0 0 - 0 0 - 

Investors 

(other than 

shareholders) 

Yes 

https://www.krishnaphosch

em.com 

0 0 - 0 0 - 

Shareholders Yes 

https://www.krishnaphosch

em.com 

0 0 - 0 0 - 

Employees 

and workers 

Yes 

https://www.krishnaphosch

em.com 

0 0 - 0 0 - 

Customers Yes 

https://www.krishnaphosch

em.com 

0 0 - 0 0 - 

Value Chain 

Partners 

Yes 

https://www.krishnaphosch

em.com 

0 0 - 0 0 - 

Other (please 
specify) 

Yes 

https://www.krishnaphosch
em.com 

0 0 - 0 0 - 



     KRISHANA PHOSCHEM LIMITED 
 

https://www.krishnaphosch
em.com 

 

24. Overview of the entity’s material responsible business conduct issues  
The Company has structured an internal mechanism for identifying the risks on Environment, 
Social and Governance (ESG) matters and the same is being reviewed by the Board of the 
Company. The Company believes that a materiality assessment on sustainability issues will help 
to analyze and prioritize the issues that have the biggest impact from the Environment, Social 
and Governance (ESG) perspective. Further, the Company is in the process of enhancing this 
methodology by conducting this exercise on periodical basis. 

S. 
No. 

Material 

issue 

identified 

whether risk   

or 

opportunity 

(R/O) 

Rationale for  

identifying the risk

 / opportunity 

In case of risk, 

approach to  adapt

 or mitigate 

Financial 

implications 

of the risk or 

opportunity 

(Indicate 

positive or     

negative 

implications) 
1. Environmental 

Footprint–
Water 
management 
 
 
 

Risk Water scarcity can 
impair the 
company’s 
operations and 
disrupt business. 

Employee 
education around 
saving water, more 
efficient use of 
water in campuses, 
Rain water 
harvesting, 
recycling of waste 
water. 

Negative 

2. Environmental 
Footprint –
Waste 
management 
 
 

Risk Inadvertent non-
compliance to 
existing and 
emerging 
regulations around 
recycling and the 
circular economy 
can result in 
economic penalties 
and reputation 
damage. 

Reduction in waste 
generation, 
maximization of 
recycling and reuse. 

Negative 

3. Corporate 
Governance – 
Board 
oversight, 
Conflict of 

Risk Strong corporate 
governance is core to 
achieving the 
organization’s 
mission and any 

Kindly refer to 
“Material aspects 
and company 
approach to them” 
in 

Negative 
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Interest, 
Ethics, Risk 
and 
Compliance, 
Succession 
Planning 

risks can undermine 
stakeholder trust, 
damage reputation 
and disrupt 
business. 

Corporate 
Governance Report 

4. Changing 
expectations 
of the 
workforce 
and work 
environments 

Risk  
and 
Opportunity 

Opportunity 
 
• Facilitating 
best‑in-class 
employee 
experience and 
being recognized 
among the best 
employers in our 
key operating 
regions will help us 
attract, hire and 
retain the talent. 
 
• Creating a 
diverse workforce 
to attract best-in-
class talent and 
improve 
productivity 

 
 
Risk 
• Continued 
employee 
preference to work 
out of remote 
locations on a long-
term basis and our 
ability to grow 
profitably. 

We supported our 
employees to 
navigate the 
pandemic 
seamlessly through 
measures such as 
vaccination centers, 
hospital support,  
increased insurance 
coverage, and more. 

Positive 

5.  Safety risk Risk  
and 
Opportunity 

The manufacturing 
operations of the 
Company require 
employees to 
interact with plant, 
machinery, and 
material handling 

Adherence to safety 
standards, the 
Company’s 
Policy and highest 
operational 
standards for 

Positive: 
Adoption 
of latest and 
cutting edge 
safety 
related 
protocols 
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equipment, all of 
which carry an 
inherent risk of 
injury 

handling hazardous 
materials at plants. 

and 
measures to 
create a 
safe work 
environment 
Negative: 
Impact on 
health and 
well-being 
of employees 
at the 
Company. 

 

SECTION B: MANAGEMENT AND PROCESS DISCLOSURES 

This section is aimed at helping businesses demonstrate the structures, policies and processes   put 
in place towards adopting the NGRBC Principles and Core Elements. 

Disclosure 
Questions 

P 
1 

P 
2 

P 
3 

P 
4 

P 
5 

P 
6 

P 
7 

P 
8 

P 
9 

Policy and management processes 

1. a. Whether your entity’s 
policy/policies cover each principle 
and its core elements         of the NGRBCs. 
(Yes/No)  

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y 

       b. Has the policy been approved by 
the   Board? (Yes/No) 

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y 

       c.  Web Link of the Policies, if available www.krishnaphoschem.com 

2.   Whether the entity has translated the 
policy into procedures. (Yes / No) 

Guidelines & procedures have been developed in 
line with and covering all the 9 principles related 
to the respective policy 

3.    Do the enlisted policies extend to your 
value chain partners? (Yes/No) 

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y 

4.     Name of the national and international 
codes/certifications/labels/standard
s (e.g. Forest Stewardship Council, 
Fairtrade, Rainforest Alliance, Trustea) 
standards (e.g. SA 8000, OHSAS, ISO, 
BIS) adopted by your entity and 
mapped to each principle. 

 

• ISO 9001:2015,BIS 
 

5. Specific commitments, goals and 
targets set by the entity with defined 
timelines, if any. 

The Company is in process of implementing the 
identified Sustainability commitments, goals and 
targets. 

http://www.krishnaphoschem.com/
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6.   Performance of the entity against the 
specific commitments, goals and 
targets along-with reasons in case the 
same are not met. 

The Board of Directors of the Company has 
empowered the Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee to provide direction to the 
management and exercise oversight on the 
implementation of targets committed under 
ESG. 

 
Governance, leadership and oversight 
 
7. Statement by director responsible for the business responsibility report, highlighting ESG 

related challenges, targets and achievements (listed entity has flexibility regarding the 
placement of this disclosure) 

 
         “Our Company is committed to make the business truly sustainable and socially 

responsible.  
          

The Company is deeply committed to achieving ESG related objectives and continue to 
prioritize related agenda over the near and medium term. The Company’s focus on ESG 
parameters is best reflected through values (Integrity | Unity | Responsibility | 
Pioneering | Excellence) that are imbibed in all spheres of activity of the Company. 
The Company has adopted the Code of Conduct which guides our interactions with all 
key stakeholders including our Employees, Customers, Value Chain Partners, 
Communities, Investors, Environment & Society. Corporate Social Responsibility is an 
integral part of our culture.  

8. Details of the highest authority 
responsible for implementation and 
oversight of the Business 
Responsibility policy (ies). 

The Board of Directors of the Company and 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee oversee 
the implementation of the Business 
Responsibility policies.  

9. Does the entity have a specified 
Committee of the Board/ Director 
responsible for decision making on 
sustainability related issues? (Yes / 
No). If yes, provide details. 

The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee (SRC) 
of the Board of Directors is responsible for 
decision making on sustainability related issues. 
 

DIN Name Designation 

06458531 Pradeep 
Agarwal 
 

Chairman 

09642942 Gopal Inani 
 

Member                                           

02056569 Sunil 
Kothari 

Member                                           

 

10. Details of Review of NGRBCs by the Company: 
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Subject for Review Whether review was 
undertaken by Director / 
Committee of the Board/ 
Any other Committee 

Frequency 
(Annually/ Half yearly/ 
Quarterly/ Any other – please 
specify) 

 P 
1 

P 
2 

P 
3 

P 
4 

P 
5 

P 
6 

P 
7 

P 
8 

P 
9 

P 
1 

P 
2 

P 
3 

P 
4 

P 
5 

P 
6 

P 
7 

P 
8 

P 
9 

Performance 
against above 
policies and follow 
up action 

As a practice, policies of the Company are reviewed Annually or on a 
need basis director of the company. During this assessment, the efficacy 
of the policies is reviewed and necessary changes to policies and 
procedures are implemented 

Compliance with 
statutory 
requirements of 
relevance to the 
principles and 
rectification of 
any 
non-compliances 

The Company complies with all the applicable statutory requirements. 
 

11. Has the entity carried out independent 
assessment/ evaluation of the working of 
its policies by an external agency? 
(Yes/No). If yes, provide name of the 
agency. 

P 
1 

P 
2 

P 
3 

P 
4 

P 
5 

P 
6 

P 
7 

P 
8 

P 
9 

The processes and compliances, however, may be subject to scrutiny by internal auditors and 
regulatory compliances, as applicable. 

 
12. If answer to question (1) above is “No” i.e. not all Principles are covered by a policy, 

reasons to be stated: 

  Questions 
P 
1 

P 
2 

P 
3 

P 
4 

P 
5 

P 
6 

P 
7 

P 
8 

P 
9 

The entity does not consider the 
Principles material to its business 
(Yes/No) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
                       

Not Applicable 

The entity is not at a stage where it is in a 
position to formulate and implement the 
policies on specified principles (Yes/No) 

The entity does not have the financial 
or/human and technical resources 
available for the task (Yes/No) 

It is planned to be done in the next 
financial year (Yes/No) 

Any other reason (please specify) 
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SECTION C: PRINCIPLE WISE PERFORMANCE DISCLOSURE 

This section is aimed at helping entities demonstrate their performance in integrating the 

Principles and Core Elements with key processes and decisions. The information sought is 

categorized as “Essential” and “Leadership”. While the essential indicators are expected to be 

disclosed by every entity that is mandated to file this report, the leadership indicators may be 

voluntarily disclosed by entities which aspire to progress to a higher level in their quest to be 

socially, environmentally and ethically responsible. 

PRINCIPLE 1 BUSINESSES SHOULD CONDUCT AND GOVERN THEMSELVES WITH 

INTEGRITY, AND IN A MANNER THAT IS ETHICAL, TRANSPARENT AND 

ACCOUNTABLE 
 

1. Percentage coverage by training and awareness programmes on any of the Principles 
during the financial year: 

 

 

Segment Total number of 
training  and 
awareness 
programmes held 

Topics / 
principles covered under the 
training and  its impact 

% of persons in 
respective 
category covered 
by the awareness 
Programmes 

Board of 
Directors 
 

1 Business Conduct, Economy and 
environmental, social and 
governance parameters, 
Corporate Governance 

100% 

Key 
Managerial 
Personnel 

3 Leadership in Governance and 
Risk Management, Business 
Responsibility Reporting, 
Facilitating innovation in Board 
Governance 

100% 

Employees 
other than 
BOD and 
KMPs 

3 Health and Safety Related Issues, 
Human Right Issue and Webinar 
on Corporate Governance 
Symposium Series 

75% 

Workers 3 Health and Safety Related Issues 
and Human Right Issue 

75% 

 

2. Details of fines / penalties /punishment/ award/ compounding fees/ settlement amount 

paid in proceedings (by the entity or by directors / KMPs) with regulators/ law 

enforcement agencies/ judicial institutions, in the financial year, in the following format 

(Note: the entity shall make disclosures on the basis of materiality as specified in 
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Regulation 30 SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Obligations) Regulations, 2015 

and as disclosed on the of entity’s website): 
 

None 

 

3. Of the instances disclosed in Question 2 above, details of the Appeal/ Revision   

preferred in cases where monetary or non-monetary action has been appealed.  
 

None 

 

4. Does the entity have an anti-corruption or anti-bribery policy? If yes, provide details in 

brief and if available, provide a web-link to the policy. 
 

Yes. Our Code of Conduct contains guidelines on anti-bribery and anti-corruption. 

Company is committed to upholding the highest moral and ethical standards, and does 

not tolerate bribery or corruption in any form. 

5. Number of Directors/KMPs/employees/workers against whom disciplinary action was 

taken by any law enforcement agency for the charges of bribery/ corruption: 
 

There have been no cases involving disciplinary action taken by any law enforcement 

agency for the charges of bribery / corruption against directors / KMP / employees / 

workers that have been brought to our attention 

 

6. Details of complaints with regard to conflict of interest:- 
 

  None 
 

7. Provide details of any corrective action taken or underway on issues related to fines / 

penalties / action taken by regulators/ law enforcement agencies/ judicial institutions, on 

cases of corruption and conflicts of interest. 
 

None 

 

PRINCIPLE 2 BUSINESSES SHOULD PROVIDE GOODS AND SERVICES IN A      

MANNER THAT IS SUSTAINABLE AND SAFE 

 

Essential Indicators 

1. Percentage of R&D and capital expenditure (capex) investments in specific technologies 
to improve the environmental and social impacts of product and processes to total R&D 
and capex investments made by the entity, respectively. 
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 FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23 Details of improvement in 
Environmental and Social impacts 

R&D 0 0 - 

Capex 0 0 - 
 
 

2. a. Does the entity have procedures in place for sustainable sourcing? (Yes/No) 
     

      Yes, The Company considers the social, ethical and environmental performance factors in 
the process of selecting suppliers.  

 
b. If yes, what percentage of inputs were sourced sustainably? 

 

        68% of suppliers are covered in the responsible sourcing program. 
 

3. Describe the processes in place to safely reclaim your products for reusing, recycling and    
disposing at the end of life, for (a) Plastics (including packaging) (b) E-waste (c) 
Hazardous waste and (d) other waste. 
 
The Company has adopted best practices to manage waste in an eco-friendly manner. To 
achieve these objectives, the Company has implemented “Reduce, Reuse, Recycle” concept 
for effective waste management. The Company endeavours to sustainably use and recycled 
resources and create a circular economy where possible. 
This ensures the efficacy of wastewater management and ensures that the systems are 
running properly.  
 

Plastic Waste Management 
The Company has set up a system to collect plastic waste in order to meet its obligation of 
collecting the plastic waste like torn HDPE bags & Metal scrap generated due to its products 
The plastic waste is collected, segregated, and disposes off as per CPCB and MoEF Guide 
lines. 

 

Hazardous waste 
Hazardous waste is handled as per the regulations prescribed by the national and state 
pollution control boards. Some of the initiatives to reprocess and re-use waste include re-
processing the materials generated in the granulation of fertilizers as well as the sludge 
waste from raw materials.  
 

Water Waste Management  
Company have Implementing zero liquid discharge policy to enhance water efficiency of 
products and promoting water efficient crop management practices among farmers, all 
waste water generated in the process is recovered, treated and reused in process. 
 

4. Whether Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) is applicable to the entity’s activities 
(Yes / No). If yes, whether the waste collection plan is in line with the Extended Producer 
Responsibility (EPR) plan submitted to Pollution Control Boards? If not, provide steps 
taken to address the same. 
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Yes, EPR is applicable to the Company and we are in process to comply Extended Producer 
Responsibility. However, as a leading manufacturer it is a business imperative that the 
Company ensures safe disposal of the pre-consumer and post-consumer packaging. The 
Company has been ensuring the collection and safe disposal of its packaging waste through 
the waste minimization and recycling/reuse perspective. 
 

PRINCIPLE 3 BUSINESSES SHOULD RESPECT AND PROMOTE THE WELL-BEING 

OF ALL EMPLOYEES, INCLUDING THOSE IN THEIR VALUE CHAINS 

 

1. a. Details of measures for the well-being of employees: 
 

% of employees covered by 

Catego
ry 

Total 
(A) 

Health 
Insurance 
 

Accident 
insurance 

Maternity 
benefits 

Day Care 
facilities 

Number 
(b) 

%(B/
A) 

Number(
C) 

%(C/
A) 

Number 
(D) 

%(D/
A) 

Number 
(E) 

%(E
/A) 

                                                          Permanent employees 

Male 206 - - 206 100 - - - - 
Female 2 - - 2 100 - - - - 
Total 208 - - 208 100 - - - - 
                                               Other than Permanent employees 

Male 16 - - 16 100 - - - - 
Female 2 - - 2 100 - - - - 
Total 18 - - 18 100 - - - - 
 

 

b. Details of measures for the well-being of workers: 
 

%  % of employees covered by 

Category Total 

(A) 

Health 

Insurance 

 

Accident 

insurance 

Maternity 

benefits 

Paternity 

facilities 

Day Care 

facilities 

Num

ber 

(b) 

%(B/

A) 

Num

ber 

(C) 

%(C/

A) 

Num

ber 

(D) 

%(D

/A) 

Num

ber 

(E) 

%(E/

A) 

Num

ber 

(F) 

%(F/

A) 

Permanent Workers 

Male 77 - - 77 100% - - - - - - 

Female 0 - - 0 0 - - - - - - 

Total 77 - - 77 100% - - - - - - 

Other Than Permanent Workers 

Male 522 - - 522 100% - - - - - - 

Female 0 - - 0 0 - - - - - - 

Total 522 - - 522 100% - - - - - - 
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2. Details of retirement benefits, for Current FY and Previous Financial Year. 

 

3. Accessibility of workplaces 
Are the premises / offices of the entity accessible to differently abled employees and 
workers, as per the requirements of the Rights of Persons with Disabilities Act, 2016? If 
not, whether any steps are being taken by the entity in this regard. 

 
Our offices is accessible to differently abled employees and workers. While all of the current 
facilities may not be fully equipped for differently abled individuals, company is actively 
working to improve accessibility across the organization.  

 
4. Does the entity have an equal opportunity policy as per the Rights of Persons with   

Disabilities Act, 2016? If so, provide a web-link to the policy. 
 
The Company is governed by the code of conduct of the company whereby all the 
employees and those eligible are provided with equal opportunities. The Company is 
committed by an inclusive work culture without any discrimination on the grounds of race, 
caste, religion, color, marital status, gender, sex, age, nationality, ethnic origin, disability 
and such other grounds as prescribed and protected by the applicable laws. 
 

5. Return to work and Retention rates of permanent employees and workers that took 
parental leave. 

 

 Permanent employees 
 

Permanent workers 

Gender Return to work rate Retention 
rate 

Return to work rate Retention 
rate 

Male 100% 100% 100% 100% 

Female 100% 100% 100% 100% 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Benefits 
 

FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23 

No. of 
employees 
Covered as 
%of total 
employees 

No. of 
workers 
Covered as 
%of total 
employees 

Deducted 
and 
deposited 
with the 
authority 

No. of 
employees 
Covered as 
%of total 
employees 

No. of 
workers 
Covered as 
%of total 
employees 

Deducted 
and 
deposited 
with the 
authority 

PF 93.75% 100% Y 89.06% 100% Y 

GRAT. 100% 100% Y 99.24% 100% Y 

ESI - - - - - - 

OTHER - - - - - - 
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6. Is there a mechanism available to receive and redress grievances for the following    
categories of employees and worker? If yes, give details of the mechanism in brief. 

 
7. Membership of employees and worker in association(s) or Unions recognized by the 

listed entity: 
The Company does not have any employee associations. The Company, however, 
recognizes the right to freedom of association. 

 

 
 

Permanent Worker 
 
 

The Company has always believed in open and transparent 
communication. Employees are encouraged to share their 
concerns with their HODs, HR or the members of the Senior 
Leadership Team. In addition, new employees are 
sensitised on Code of Conduct principles, which also forms 
part of the employee induction programme. The Company 
have put Complaint Box at every plant locations and office 
and maintain Complaint Register to redress grievances of 
employees and workers. The company has in place 
prevention of sexual harassment at the workplace policy 
and Whistle blower policy applicable to all employees. 

Other than Permanent 
Worker 
 
 

Permanent Employees 
 
 

Other than Permanent 
Employees 

 Current FY Previous FY 
 Total 

employees 
/workers in 
respective 
category(A
) 
 

No.of 
employees / 
Workers in 
respective 
category, 
who are 
part of 
association
(s)or  
Union(B) 

%(B/A
) 

Total 
employees 
/ workers 
in 
respective 
category(
C) 
 

No. of 
employees/ 
workers in 
respective 
category, 
who      are part 
of 
association(
s) or Union 
(D) 

%(D/C
) 

Total 
Permanent 
Employees 

- - - - - - 

Male - - - - - - 

Female  - - - - - - 

Total 
Permanent 
Workers 

- - - - - - 

Male - - - - - - 

Female  - - - - - - 
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8.Details of training given to employees and workers:  
 
The Company provides regular trainings on Health & Safety to all its employees. The 
Company aims to provide highest quality training and minimizing workplace accidents, 
without focusing upon the number of hours spent in the training. 
 

Category FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23 

 Total 
(A) 

On health and 
safety 
measures  

On skills 
upgradation 

Total 
(D) 

On health 
and safety 
measures  

On skills 
upgradation 

 No. 
(B) 

%B/A  No. 
(C) 

%C/A  No. 
(E) 

%E/D  No. 
(F) 

%F/D 

Employees 

Male 222 200 90% 222 100% 182 136 75% 136 75% 

Female 4 3    75% 4 100% 5 4 80% 4 80% 

Total 226 203 90% 226 100% 187 140 75% 140 75% 

Workers 

Male 77 70 90% 77 100% 68 55 81% 55 81% 

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 77 70 90% 77 100% 68 55 81% 55 81% 
 
9.Details of Performance and career development reviews of employees and   workers  
 

Category FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23 

Current Financial Year Previous Financial Year 

Total (A) No. (B) % (B/A) Total (D)  No. (E) % (E/D) 

Employee 

Male 222 222 100% 182 182 100% 

Female 4 4 100% 5 5 100% 

Total 226 226 100% 187 187 100% 

Workers 

Male 77 77 100% 68 68 100% 

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 77 77 100% 68 68 100% 

 
All employees of the Company undergo an appraisal process as determined by the Company. 
The appraisal process is based on criteria on the basis of timely and systematic working, 
accountability, additional contribution to work, contribution to the overall performance of the 
Company. 
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10.   Health and safety management system: 

a. Whether an occupational health and safety management system has been  
implemented by the entity? (Yes/ No). If yes, the coverage such system? 

 
Yes, safety is a core value over which no business objective can have a higher priority The 
Safety & Health Management system covers activities across all manufacturing locations, 
offices and supply chain partners and ensures the protection of environment, health & 
safety of its employees, contractors, visitors and all other relevant stakeholders. 
 
The Company has also adopted Environment, Health & Safety Policy which can be 
accessed on its website at: https:// www.krishnaphoschem.com. 
 

b. What are the processes used to identify work-related hazards and assess risks on a  
routine and non-routine basis by the entity? 

 
The Company provides Regular site review, inspections and audits to assess safety 
preparedness, Regular mock drills for fire as well as medical emergencies. Employee 
engagement campaigns on health & safety topics such as fire safety, road safety, 
emergency evacuation to managing the hazards and identifying its risks. 
 

c. Whether you have processes for workers to report the work related hazards and to 
remove themselves from such risks. (Y/N) 
 
Yes. The process is available at all the locations. The processes include direct interaction 
with controller or safety officer, suggestion box, approaching the Health and Safety Team, 
Regular site review, inspections and audits to assess safety preparedness, Regular mock 
drills for fire as well as medical emergencies. Employee engagement campaigns on health 
& safety topics such as fire safety, road safety, emergency evacuation, ergonomics among 
others. 
 

d. Do the employees/ worker of the entity have access to non-occupational medical and 
healthcare services? (Yes/ No) 
 

Yes. All employees are covered under the Group Personal Accident Policy. 
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11. Details of safety related incidents, in the following format: 
 

 
 

12. Describe the measures taken by the entity to ensure a safe and healthy work place. 
 

Safety has been a core value and always is the top priority in the company. The Company 
has structured safety organization for monitoring, implementing and taking corrective 
actions for safety improvements. 
 

KPL is committed to provide safe workplaces focusing on preventing injuries, illnesses, 
and continuously strives to eliminate hazards and reduce risks. Hazard identification is 
conducted to identify such risk and ensure that proper mitigation measures are put in 
place to create a healthy and safe work environment. 
 

The Company has a systematic process for identification of work-related hazards. The 
Company has in place a mechanism for identification of fire hazards, preparation of action 
plan for control system and plans to mitigate or eliminate hazards.  
 

Some of the mitigation measures to prevent or mitigate significant occupational health & 
safety impacts include – 
• Provision and maintenance of fire detection, alarm and suppression systems 
• Regular site review, inspections and audits to assess safety preparedness 
• Regular mock drills for fire as well as medical emergencies. 

  • Employee engagement campaigns on health & safety topics such as fire   safety, road    
safety, emergency evacuation, ergonomics among others. 

 13. Number of Complaints on the following made by employees and workers: 

 FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23 
Filed 
during 
the year 

Pending 
resolution 
at the end 
of year 

Remarks Filed 
during 
the year 

Pending 
resolution 
at the end 
of year 

Remarks 

Working 
Conditions 

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Health & 
Safety 

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Safety Incident/Number Category Current 
Financial Year 

Previous 
Financial  Year 

Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate 
(LTIFR) (per one million-person 
hours worked) 

Employees 
 

- - 

Workers - - 

Total recordable work-related  
injuries 

Employees - - 

Workers - - 

No. of fatalities Employees - - 

Workers - - 

High consequence work-related 
injury or ill-health (excluding 
fatalities) 

Employees - - 

Workers - - 
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14. Assessments for the year: 

 
 % of your plants and offices that were assessed (by 

entity or statutory authorities or third parties) 
Health and safety practices 100% of plants and offices were assessed by entity 

through internal audits. Working Conditions 

 
15. Provide details of any corrective action taken or underway to address safety-related 

incidents (if any) and on significant risks / concerns arising from assessments of health 
& safety practices and working conditions. 

 
The following corrective action taken or underway to address safety-related incidents: 

• Organized Safety training programs to create the awareness on safety; 

• Employees have been advised to wear the PPE's in the workplace; 

• Work instructions & Safe Work Practices were made & readily available. 
 

 
PRINCIPLE 4: BUSINESSES SHOULD RESPECT THE INTERESTS OF AND BE 
RESPONSIVE TO ALL ITS STAKEHOLDERS 

 
Essential Indicators 

1. Describe the processes for identifying key stakeholder groups of the entity. 

 
Any individual or group of individuals that adds value to the business of the Company or 
who are impacted by us are identified as a core stakeholder of the Company. 
The Company has identified suppliers, customers, employees, local community and 
investors as its key stakeholders. 

2.  List stakeholder groups identified as key for your entity and the frequency of 
engagement with each stakeholder group. 

 
Stakeholder  
Group 

Whether  
Identified as As 
Vulnerable & 
Marginalized 
Group (Yes/No) 

Channels of  
Communication 
 
 

Frequency of  
Engagement 
(Annually/Half 
Yearly/Quarterly 
/Others-Please  
Specify) 

Purpose and Scope 
Of Engagement  
Including Key topics 
And concerns raised 
during such  
engagement 
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Customers 
 
 
 
 
 
 

No Email, SMS,  
Newspaper,  
Pamphlets, 
Advertisement 
Community  
Meetings, 
Notice Board 
Other Website, 
social media, 
Conferences 
events, Phone 
Calls. 

As and 
when  
required 

Understanding client, 
Customer satisfaction, 
industry and 
business challenges 
 

Investors/ 
Shareholders 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

No Email, 
Website, Analysts/ 
Investor 
 Calls, 
Annual 
 General 
Meetings, Press 
releases  
Newspaper 
advertisements 

Quarterly and 
need based 

To inform on how the 
company is currently 
doing and what it plans 
to do in near term 
future. Understanding 
shareholder 
expectations 

Employees No Direct, email, 
team meetings, 
video 
conferences; 
audio 
conference calls 

Regular Performance appraisal, 
Career growth, Skill 
development trainings, 
Fair remuneration, safe 
workplace, employee 
satisfaction. 

Suppliers No Email, Phone 
calls, 
Advertisements, 
website and 
social media 

As and 
when required 

Business/Project 
related 

Governments 
& 
Regulatory 
Authorities 

No Advertisements, 
website and 
social media, 
Phone calls, 
emails and 
meetings 

As and 
when required 

Discussions with 
regard to various 
regulations, 
amendments, 
inspections, approvals 
and assessments. 

Communities No Meetings, 
Training and 
workshops 
Advertisements, 
website and 
social media, 
Complaints and 
grievance 
mechanism 

As and 
when required 

Monitoring & 
implementing the CSR 
projects 
and activities 
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      PRINCIPLE 5:  BUSINESSES SHOULD RESPECT AND PROMOTE HUMAN RIGHTS 

 

Essential Indicators 

 

1. Employees and workers who have been provided training on human rights issues and 
policy(ies) of the entity, in the following format: 

Category FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23 
Total (A) No. of 

employees 
workers 
covered (B) 

% (B / 
A) 

Total (C) No. of 
employees 
workers 
covered (D) 

% (D / C) 

Employees 
Permanent 208 188 90% 187 165 88 % 
Other than permanent 18 11 61% - - - 

Total Employees 226   187 165 88 % 
Workers 

Permanent 77 42 54.55% 68 59 87 % 
Other than permanent 

 
- - - - - - 

Total Workers 77   68 59 87 % 
 
 

2. Details of minimum wages paid to employees and workers, in the following format: 
 

Category FY (2023-24)  FY (2022-23)  
Total 
(A) 

Equal to 
Minimum 

Wage 

More than 
Minimum 

Wage 

Total 
(D) 

Equal to 
Minimum 

Wage 

More than 
Minimum 

Wage 

No. 
(B) 

% (B 
/A) 

No. 
(C) 

% (C 
/A) 

No. 
(E) 

% (E 
/D)  

No
. 
(F) 

% (F 
/D) 

Employees 

Permanent                     

Male 206 9 4.37% 197 95.63% 124 10 8.06% 11
4 

92% 

Female 2 - 0% 2 100% 4 - 0% 4 100% 

Other -     - - - - - 

Other than 
Permanent 

     
     

Male 16 - 0% 16 100% 58 - 0% 58 100% 

Female 2 - 0% 2 100% 1 1 100% - 0% 

Other - - - - - - - - - - 
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Workers 

Permanent                     

Male 77 7 9.09% 70 90.91% 68 4 5.89% 64 94.1% 

Female - - - - - - - - - - 

Other - - - - - - - - - - 

Other than 
Permanent 

          

Male - - - - - - - - - - 
Female - - - - - - - - - - 

Other - - - - - - - - - - 
 
 

3. Details of remuneration/salary/wages, in the following format 

  
    Male 

 
    Female 

Number Median remuneration/ 
salary/ wages of 
respective category 

Number Median remuneration/ 
salary/ wages of 
respective category 

Board of Directors (BOD)  8  0  1  0 

Key Managerial  
Personnel 

 2  109441  0  0 

Employees other  than 
BOD and KMP 

220  15000 
 

 4  37062 

Workers 77  13000  0  0 
 
4. Do you have a focal point (Individual/ Committee) responsible for addressing human 

rights impacts or issues caused or contributed to by the business? (Yes/No) 
Yes, Human rights is a sensitive issue and Company has zero tolerance to Human Rights 
violation. Human Rights is one of the Key Focus area for the Organisation. For any Human 
Rights violation, whenever reported, the employees can raise their concerns related to 
human rights issues with the HR team. 

 

5. Describe the internal mechanisms in place to redress grievances related to human rights 
issues. 

 

For any grievances on human rights issues, the employees can reach out to Human 
Resources team. The grievances are duly addressed and corrective measures deemed fit 
are taken. 

 

6.   Number of Complaints on the following made by employees and workers: 
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 FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23 

Filed 
during 
the year 

Pending 
resolutio
n at the 
end of 
year 

Remarks Filed 
during 
the year 

Pending 
resolutio
n at the 
end of 
year 

Remarks 

Sexual Harassment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Discrimination at 
workplace 

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Child Labour Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Forced 
Labour/Involuntary 
Labour 

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Wages Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Other human 
Rights related 
issues 

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

 

7. Mechanisms to prevent adverse consequences to the complainant in discrimination 
and harassment cases. 
 
The Company has in place an appropriate Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment 
of Women at Workplace in accordance with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment 
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, to prevent 
sexual harassment of its employees. The company is intolerant to any discrimination 
and harassment related issues and takes timely measures to address the grievance. 
We sensitize the employees on prevention of sexual harassment at workplaces 
periodically through internal communications and training programmes. 
 

8. Do human rights requirements form part of your business agreements and 
contracts? 

 
Yes, the business agreements and contracts do include Company’s expectations to 
promote sustainability, fair competition and respect for human rights 

9. Assessments for the year: 

 % of your plants and offices that were assessed 
(by entity or statutory authorities or third parties) 

Child labour  
 
100 % Our Company internally monitors 
compliance for all relevant laws and policies 

Forced/involuntary labour 

Sexual harassment 
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Discrimination at workplace pertaining to these issues. There have been no 
observations by local statutory / third parties in 
India in FY 2023-24. 

Wages 

Others 
 

10. Provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway to address significant 
risks / concerns arising from the assessments at Question 9 above.       

               There were no significant risks or concerns. 
   

 

PRINCIPLE 6: BUSINESS SHOULD RESPECT AND MAKE EFFORTS TO PROTECT AND 
RESTORE THE ENVIRONMENT                                                       

Essential Indicators 

1. Details of total energy consumption (in Joules or multiples) and energy intensity, in the 

following format: 

Parameter FY 2023-24 

In GIGA Joules 

FY 2022-23 

In GIGA Joules 

Total electricity consumption (A) 155306.92 38383.68 

Total fuel consumption (B) 129701.66 56849.68 

Energy consumption through 

other sources (C) 
0.00 0.00 

Total energy consumption 

(A+B+C) 
285008.58 95233.36 

Energy intensity per rupee of turnover 

(Total energy consumption/turnover in Lakh rupees) 3.08 2.95 

Energy intensity per unit of production volume  
0.54 

 
0.40 

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by 

an external agency? (Y/N) If yes,   

No 

2. Does the entity have any sites / facilities identified as designated consumers (DCs) under 

the Performance, Achieve and Trade (PAT) Scheme of the Government of India? (Y/N) If 

yes, disclose whether targets set under the PAT scheme have been achieved. In case targets 

have not been achieved, provide the remedial action taken, if any - No 
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3. Provide details of the following disclosures related to water, in the following format: 

(i) Surface water 
 
 

0.00 0.00 

(ii) Ground water 
 
 

0.00 0.00 

(iii) Third party water 
 
 

707945 184582 

(iv) Seawater / desalinated water 
 
 

0.00 0.00 

(v) Others 
 

0.00 0.00 

Total volume of water withdrawal 

(in kilolitres) (i + ii + iii + iv + v) 
707945 184582 

Total volume of water consumption 

(in kilolitres) 
729971 187383 

Water intensity per rupee of turnover (Water 
consumed / turnover) 

7.90 5.80 

Water intensity per unit of production volume 1.40 0.79 

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by 

an external agency? (Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency.  

No 

4. Has the entity implemented a mechanism for Zero Liquid Discharge? If yes, provide details 

of its coverage and implementation. 
 

Yes, Company has achieved zero liquid discharge across all the campuses. KPL optimizes water 

consumption through conservation, sewage treatment and reuse, and rainwater harvesting. All 

new campuses have been designed for 100% treatment and recycling of sewage, and rainwater 

harvesting. 

 

 

Parameter FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23 

Water withdrawal by source (in kilolitres) 
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5. Please provide details of air emissions (other than GHG emissions) by the entity, in the 

following format: 

Parameter Please specify unit FY-2023-24   

(In MT) 

FY-2022-23 
(In MT) 

 
NOx 
 

 
Mg/NM3 

 

12.41               13.08 

 
Sox 
 

 
Mg/NM3 

 

402.32               90.96 

 
Particulate matter (PM) 

 

 
Mg/NM3 

 
 

124.66               27.07 

Persistent organic 

pollutants (POP) 

NA NA NA 

Volatile organic 

compounds (VOC) 

NA NA NA 

Hazardous air pollutants 
(HAP) 

 
Mg/NM3 

7.88                2.03 

Others - Ammonia Mg/NM3 77.43                2.16 

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by 

an external agency? (Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency. No 

 

6. Provide details of greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions) & 

its intensity, in the following format: 

 

 

Parameter Unit FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23 

Total Scope 1 emissions 

(Break-up of the GHG into 

CO2, CH4, N2O, HFCs, 

PFCs, 

SF6, NF3, if available) 

Metric tonnes                                of CO2 

Equiv  alent 

10533.60 5909.62 
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Total Scope 2 emissions 

(Break-up of the GHG into 

CO2, CH4, N2O, HFCs, 

PFCs, 

SF6, NF3, if available) 

Metric tonnes                                of CO2 

equivalent 

18679.97 4616.70 

Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 

emissions per rupee of 

turnover 

 0.32 0.33 

Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 

emission intensity Per unit of 

production volume 

 0.05 0.04 

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by 

an external agency? (Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency. 

No 

7. Does the entity have any project related to reducing Green House Gas emission? If 

Yes, then provide details. 

 

No, Company do not have any project related to reducing Green House Gas emission but 

company is actively working on the strategy of reduction of GHG emissions across its 

operations through plantations at each location contribute to reduce the GHG emissions. 

 

8. Provide details related to waste management by the entity, in the following format: 

Parameter FY 2023-24 

 

FY 2022-23 

Total Waste generated (in metric tonnes) 
 

Plastic waste (A) - - 

E-waste (B)                     0.25 MT 0.5 MT 

Bio-medical waste (C) - - 

Construction and demolition 

waste (D) 

- - 

Battery waste (E) - - 

Radioactive waste (F) - - 

Other Hazardous waste. Please 

specify, if any. (G) 

I – Silica  

Spent Oil 

 

 
 
43.50 MTPA  
50 LTPA 

 
 
47.89 MTPA 
52 LTPA 
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II – Gypsum & Iron Sludge 

SOX,NOX SLURRY 

III Spent Catalyst, Sludge, Acid Mist 

 

 - 
 - 

0.08 MTPA 

 

2448.96 MTPA 
- 

3.59 MTPA 

Other Non-hazardous waste generated (H). Please 

specify, if any. 

(Break-up by composition i.e. by materials 
relevant to the sector) 

I 

Scrap 
 

II 

Spray Drier Ash 

III 

Empty Barrel 

 
 
 
 
 
As per generation 
 
 
- 
 
 
- 

 
 
 
 
 
As per generation 
 
 
- 
 
 
0.05MTPA 

Total (A+B + C + D + E + F + G 

+ H) 

 

  

For each category of waste generated, total waste recovered through recycling, re-using or 
other recovery operations (in metric tonnes) 

Category of waste 
 

(i) Recycled - - 

(ii) Re-used - - 

(iii) Other recovery operations - - 

Total - - 

For each category of waste generated, total waste disposed by nature of disposal method (in 

metric tonnes) 

 

Category of waste   

(i) Incineration - - 

(ii) Landfilling 43.50 47.89 

(iii) Other disposal operations - - 

Total 43.50 47.89 
 

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried 

out by an external agency? (Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency 

No 

9. Briefly describe the waste management practices adopted in your establishments. 
Describe           the strategy adopted by your company to reduce usage of hazardous and toxic 
chemicals in your products and processes and the practices adopted to manage such 
wastes. 
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Generated hazardous waste collected and stored in bag in covered shed. Disposal of the 
same is being done as per prescribed norms to the TSDF along with manifest. Detail of the 
same is shared to Pollution Control Board on yearly basic in the annual return etc. 
 

10. If the entity has operations/offices in/around ecologically sensitive areas (such as 

national parks, wildlife sanctuaries, biosphere reserves, wetlands, biodiversity 

hotspots, forests, coastal regulation zones etc.) where environmental approvals / 

clearances are required, please specify details in the following format: 

Not Applicable. The Company does not have any facilities in and around ecologically 

sensitive areas. 
 , 

11. Details of environmental impact assessments of projects undertaken by the entity 

based on applicable laws, in the current financial year: NIL 
 
 

12. Is the entity compliant with the applicable environmental law/ regulations/ guidelines 

in India; such as the Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, Air (Prevention 

and Control of Pollution) Act, Environment protection act and rules thereunder (Y/N). 

If not, provide details of all such non-compliances, in the following format: 
 

Yes. We are compliant with the applicable environmental law / regulations / guidelines in 

India. 

PRINCIPLE 7: BUSINESSES, WHEN ENGAGING IN INFLUENCING PUBLIC AND 

REGULATORY POLICY, SHOULD DO SO IN A MANNER THAT IS RESPONSIBLE AND 

TRANSPARENT. 

 Essential Indicators 

1. a. Number of affiliations with trade and industry chambers/associations. 

  The Company is affiliated with 1 (one) trade and industry chambers/associations. 

 

b. List the top 10 trade and industry chambers/ associations (determined based on the 

total members of such body) the entity is a member of/ affiliated to. 

S. No. Name of the trade and industry chambers/ 
associations 

Reach of trade and industry 
chambers/ associations 
(State/National) 
 

1  Fertilizer association of India National 
 
 

 

2.    Provide details of corrective action taken or underway on any issues related to 

anticompetitive conduct by the entity, based on adverse orders from regulatory 

authorities -   Not Applicable.  
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PRINCIPLE 8: BUSINESS SHOULD PROMOTE INCLUSIVE GROWTH AND 

EQUITABLE DEVELOPMENT: 

                                                             Essential Indicators  

1. Details of Social Impact Assessments (SIA) of projects undertaken by the entity based 
on applicable laws, in the current financial year. 
 

Name and brief 

details of project 

SIA 
Notification 

No. 

Date Whether 

conducted by 

independent 

external 

agency 

(Yes / No)  

Results 

communica

ted in 

public 

domain 

(Yes / No) 

Relevant 

Web link 

NA NA NA NA NA NA 

2. Provide information on project(s) for which ongoing Rehabilitation and Resettlement 
(R&R) is being undertaken by your entity, in the following format: 

Not Applicable 

 

3. Describe the mechanisms to receive and redress grievances of the community. 
 
The Company has internal grievance redressal mechanism in place to address the grievance 
raised by the stakeholders. The Board reviews the status of the grievance raised, pending, 
disposed. 

 

4. Percentage of input material (inputs to total inputs by value) sourced from suppliers: 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 FY 2023-24 
 

FY 2022-23 

Directly sourced from MSMEs/ small 
producers 
 

6% 0.73% 

Sourced directly from within the district and 
neighbouring districts 
 
 

14% 26% 
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PRINCIPLE 9:  BUSINESSES SHOULD ENGAGE WITH AND PROVIDE VALUE TO 

THEIR CUSTOMERS IN A RESPONSIBLE MANNER. 
 

Essential Indicators 
,  

1. Describe the mechanisms in place to receive and respond to consumer complaints and               
feedback. 

The Company has Customer Care number, Email, Website to enable customers to log any 
complaints or feedbacks. Customer can also provide feedback through Social Media. 

2. Turnover of products and/ services as a percentage of turnover from all products/service 
that carry information about: 

 

 As a Percentage to  total turnover 

Environmental and Social Parameters 
relevant to the product (Energy Used, 
Water Consumed, No. of People 
involved in production, etc.) 

- 

Safe and Responsible Usage 100 

Recycling and/or safe disposal 100 
 

3. Number of consumer complaints in respect of the following: 
 

 FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23 

Receive
d during 
the year 

Pending 
resolution at 
end of  year 

Remarks Received 
during 
the year 

Pending 
resolution at 
end of year 

Remarks 

Data privacy  
 
 
 
We do not have any consumer complaints in respect of data privacy, 
advertising, cybersecurity, delivery of essential services, restrictive trade 
practices, unfair trade practices. 

Advertising 

Cyber-
security 
Delivery 
of 
essential 
services 
Restrictive 
Trade 
Practices 
Unfair 
Trade 
Practices 
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Other 
 

4. Details of instances of product recalls on account of safety issues: 

There have been no instances of product recall (voluntary or forced) on account of safety 
issues during the financial year 2023-24. 

 

5. Does the entity have a framework/ policy on cyber security and risks related to data 
privacy? (Yes/No) If available, provide a web-link of the policy. 
 

 

Yes. The Company has under the Code of Conduct, included the Cyber security, including 
data and information security which includes the Cyber Security Risk. The Code of Conduct 

is available on www.krishnaphoschem.com 

 
 

6. Provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway on issues relating to 
advertising, and delivery of essential services; cyber security and data privacy of 
customers; re-occurrence of instances of product recalls; penalty / action taken by 
regulatory authorities on safety of products / services. 
 

None 
                                      For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors 

 

 Date: 17.08.2024                                                   Sd/-                                             Sd/- 

 Place: Bhilwara                                                   Praveen Ostwal                        Sunil Kothari  

                                                                               (Managing Director)               (Whole time Director & CFO) 

                                                                                (DIN: 00412207)                       (DIN: 02056569) 

http://www.krishnaphoschem.com/
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ANNEXURE-II 

Form No. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 2023-24 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 

No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) 

Rules, 2014] 

 

To, 

The Members, 

Krishana Phoschem Limited 

5-O-20, Basement, R.C. Vyas Colony,  

Bhilwara (Rajasthan) 311001 

 

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 

adherence to good corporate practices by Krishana Phoschem Limited. Secretarial Audit was 

conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 

conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the Krishana Phoschem Limited books, papers, minute books, forms 

and returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided 

by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of 

secretarial audit. We hereby report that in my/our opinion, the company has, during the audit 

period covering the financial year ended 31st March, 2024 complied with the statutory provisions 

listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-

mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 

maintained by Krishana Phoschem Limited (“the Company”) for the financial year ended on 31st 

March, 2024 according to the provisions of: 
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(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

(iv)Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of 

Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):- 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015; 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011; 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2018 and amendments from time to time;  

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits )Regulations, 2014 and the  

Securities and exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity ) Regulations , 

2021 ; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; The 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021; 

(Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; (Not Applicable to the Company 

during the Audit Period);  

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 and The 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; and (Not Applicable 

to the Company during the Audit Period); 

  

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (not applicable 

during the year under review);  
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I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(i)Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 
(ii)The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 

 

I further report that 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 

Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of 

the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in 

compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes 

on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining 

further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful 

participation at the meeting. 

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting member’s views are captured and recorded 

as part of the minutes. 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the 

size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, 

regulations and guidelines. 
 

For Sourabh Bapna & Associates  

Practicing Company Secretaries 

 Sd/- 

     (Sourabh Bapna) 

Proprietor 

C.P. No. 19968 

M. No. 51505 
Date: : 22.05.2024 

Place:  Bhilwara 

UDIN :- A051505F000422656 

PR No:   3058 
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ANNEXURE- III 
 

Particulars of employee 
 

Details Pertaining to Remuneration as Required Under Section 197(12) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 Read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 
 

(i) The ratio of the remuneration of each 
director to the median remuneration of the 
employees of the company for the financial 
year. 

1. Mr. Praveen Ostwal                    87.50 
2. Mr. Sunil Kothari                          6.33 
 

(ii) The percentage increase in remuneration 
of each director, Chief Financial Officer, 
Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary 
or Manager, if any, in the financial year. 

1. Praveen Ostwal (Managing Director)         14.10% 
 

2. Sunil Kothari (Whole Time Director &        8.52% 
   Chief Financial Officer) 

(iii)The percentage increase in the median 
remuneration of employees in the financial 
year 

There has been increase of 2.53% in the median 
remuneration of employees as large number of 
work force joined during the last quarter of financial 
year. 

(iv) The number of permanent employees 
on the rolls of company. 

285 Employees 

(v) Average percentage increase already 
made in the salaries of employees other than 
the managerial personnel in the last financial 
year and its comparison with the percentage 
increase in the managerial remuneration and 
justification thereof and point out if there are 
any exceptional circumstances for increase in 
the managerial remuneration. 

There has been increase of 12.50% in the total salary 
of employees which is not an actual comparable 
figure with last year since a large number of work 
force joined during the last quarter of financial 
year.  
 
However, there is increase in managerial personnel 
of 13.71 % which linked to the Company’s 
performance in general and their performance for 
the relevant year which is measured against major 
performance areas which are closely associated to 
Company’s objectives. 
 

(vi) Affirmation that the remuneration is as 
per the remuneration policy of the 
company. 

The company affirmed that the remuneration is as 
per the Nomination and Remuneration Policy for 
the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Other 
Employees of the Company, formulated pursuant to 
the provisions of section 178 of the Companies Act, 
2013. 
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Details of the employees of the Company – Pursuant to Section 197 (Rule 5) of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

 
(i) Employed throughout the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for that year which, in 

the aggregate, was not less than one crore and two lakh rupees:  
 
 

Name  
& Age 

Designati
on 

Remuneration 
p.a. (Rs.  
in Crore) 

Qualifications  
and 
experience 

Date  
of 
commencement 
of employment 
and nature of 
employment 

Last 
employ
ment 
held  
by 
employe
e before 
joining 

Number of  
equity share  
held 

Relation 
with 
Director  
or 
Manager 

Praveen 
Ostwal 
43 Years 

Managing 
Director 

1.92  C.A., B.Com. 
21 Years 

06/04/2007 N.A. 13,83,942 Brother 
of 
Pankaj 
Ostwal, 
Director 
and Son 
of Sh. 
Mahend
ra 
Kumar 
Ostwal, 
Chairma
n cum 
Director  
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(ii) Employed for a part of the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for any part of that year, 
at a rate which, in the aggregate, was not less than eight lakhs and fifty thousand rupees per 
month: NA  
 

(iii) Employed throughout the financial year or part thereof receiving remuneration in excess of the 
amount drawn by Managing Director: NA 
 

                                   For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors  

 
 Date: 17.08.2024                                                   Sd/-                                             Sd/- 
 Place: Bhilwara                                                   Praveen Ostwal                        Sunil Kothari 
                                                                               (Managing Director)               (Whole time Director & CFO) 

                                                                                (DIN: 00412207)                       (DIN: 02056569) 
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ANNEXURE IV 
 

Details of Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earning 
and Outgo 

 
Information pursuant to section 134 (c) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies 
(Companies (Accounts) rule 2014) Rule, 8 and forming part of the Directors Report for the year 
ended 31st March 2024. 
 
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 
(a)The Company takes adequate steps for the conservation of energy at every stage of production 
and remains conscious about conserving energy resources. 
 
(b)The Company has made adequate investment on various measures for conservation of energy 
which has resulted in optimizing energy consumption and saving in cost.  
 
(c)The capital investment on energy conservation equipment: Nil 
 
 

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 
(i) Efforts made towards technology absorption: 

The Company is continuously endeavoring to upgrade its technology from time to time in all aspects 
through in-house R&D primarily aiming at reduction of cost of production and improving the 
quality of the product. The Company has strengthened the infrastructure for R & D and carried out 
improvement in quality systems. This has resulted into consistency in achieving standard quality 
parameters as per Government of India. The Company will continue to thrust on R & D activities of 
the Company.  
 
(ii) The benefits derived therefrom: 

        The Company could successfully reduce the cost of production, by using the in-house developed 
alternative raw materials, power consumption and improving technical efficiencies and 
productivity. 

 
(iii) In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the 

beginning of the financial year) – 
 

(a)The details of technology imported; None 
(b) The year of import; None 
(c) Whether the technology been fully absorbed; None 
(d) If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons thereof; None 
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 
The figure of earnings and expenditure in foreign currency during the year is as under: 

                (Rs. In Lakhs) 

Particulars 2023-2024 2022-2023 

Foreign Currency Earning 0.00 0.00 

Foreign Currency outgo  12455.54 9267.75 

 
                     For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors 

 
 Date: 17.08.2024                                                   Sd/-                                             Sd/- 
 Place: Bhilwara                                                   Praveen Ostwal                        Sunil Kothari 
                                                                               (Managing Director)               (Whole time Director & CFO) 

                                                                                (DIN: 00412207)                       (DIN: 02056569) 
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ANNEXURE-V 

 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186: 

(Pursuant to clause (g) of sub-section (3) of section 134 & section 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013)  

  
    (Rs. In Lakhs) 

 
  
 

                                              For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors  

 
 Date: 17.08.2024                                                   Sd/-                                             Sd/- 
 Place: Bhilwara                                                   Praveen Ostwal                        Sunil Kothari 
                                                                               (Managing Director)               (Whole time Director & CFO) 

                                                                                (DIN: 00412207)                       (DIN: 02056569) 
     
 
 

    

   
   
 

 

 Particulars as 
As at 31st 

March,2024 

As at 31st March,2016 
As at 31st 

March,2023 

(A) Loan Given - - 

   

   

(B) Investment made - - 

   

   

(C) Guarantee given -                - 
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ANNEXURE VI 
 

Form No. AOC-2 
 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8(2) 
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the 
company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under Fourth proviso 
thereto 
 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis –N.A. 
 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis: - 
 

 

Name(s) of the related party Nature of relationship Duration 
of contract 

Salient 
terms  

Amount 
(In lakhs) 

Purchase of Material     
Madhya Bharat Agro Products Ltd. Interested Director FY 23-24 See note-1 2245.30 

Ostwal Phoschem (India) Limited Holding Company FY 23-24 See note-1 3049.66 
     
Sale of Material     
Ostwal Phoschem (India) Limited Holding Company FY 23-24 See note-1 8656.72 

Madhya Bharat Agro Products Ltd. Interested Director FY 23-24 See note-1 7132.36 
Shri Ganpati Fertilizers Ltd Interested Director FY 23-24 See note-1 847.83 
     

Loan received     
Madhya Bharat Agro Products Ltd. Interested Director FY 23-24 See note-1 2090.00 

Shri Praveen Ostwal Director FY 23-24 See note-1 45.00 
     
Loan Given     
Madhya Bharat Agro Products Ltd. Interested Director FY 23-24 See note-1 7365.00 

Ostwal Phoschem (India) Limited Holding Company FY 23-24 See note-1 1985.00 

Shri Ganpati Fertilizers Ltd Interested Director FY 23-24 See note-1 698.00 

Note: 
1. Terms of the contract conform to the prevailing market rates and all the care has been taken 

to ensure reasonability of prices compare to the prevailing rates in the market, better 
quality products and timely supply. 
 

2. Appropriate approvals have been taken for related party transactions.  
 

3. Advance paid have been adjusted against billing, wherever applicable. 

 
                                   For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors  

 
 Date: 17.08.2024                                                   Sd/-                                             Sd/- 
 Place: Bhilwara                                                   Praveen Ostwal                        Sunil Kothari 
                                                                               (Managing Director)               (Whole time Director & CFO) 
                                                                                (DIN: 00412207)                       (DIN: 02056569 
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ANNEXURE VII 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 2023-24 

1. Corporate Governance Philosophy on Code of Corporate Governance 
Corporate Governance has been an integral part of the way we are doing our business. As a good 
corporate citizen, the Company is committed to sound corporate practices based on conscience, 
openness, fairness, professionalism and accountability in building confidence of its various 
stakeholders in it thereby paving the way for its long-term success. The Company believes that good 
Corporate Governance emerges from the application of the best and sound management practices and 
compliance with the laws coupled with adherence to the highest standards of transparency and 
business ethics. 

The Company believes that sound ethical practices, transparency in operations and timely disclosures 
go a long way in enhancing long-term shareholders’ value while safeguarding the interest of all the 
stakeholders. It is this conviction that has lead the Company to make strong corporate governance 
values intrinsic to all its operations. The Company is lead by a distinguished Board, which includes 
independent directors. The Board provides strong oversight and strategic counsel. The Company has 
established systems and procedures to ensure that the Board of the Company is well-informed and 
well-equipped to fulfill its oversight responsibilities and to provide management the strategic direction 
it needs. In terms of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the details of compliances, are as follows: - 

 

2. Board of Directors 
Composition of the Board 

As on March 31, 2024, the Company’s Board comprised of 8(Eight) Directors viz., 3(Three) Non-

Executive Independent Directors; 1 (One) Women Independent Non-Executive Director, 1 (One) 
Promoter and Managing Director, 1 (One) Whole time Director and CFO, and a 2(Two) Promoter and 
Non-Executive Director. The Chairman of the Board is also Promoter Non –Executive Director. 

 

Details of Board of Director’s category, attendance at the Board Meetings and last Annual 
General Meeting (AGM), number of other Directorships and Committee positions as on 31st 
March,2024 are given below: 
Sr 
N
o. 

Name 
of the 
Directo
r 

Category/St
atus of 
Directorship 

No. of 
Board 
Meeting
s during 
year 

No. of 
Board 
Meetings
attended
during 
year 

Whet
her 
Atten
ded 
AGM 

No. of 
Directorships 
In Other Public 
Limited 
Companies 

No. of Committee 
positions held in 
Public 
Limited Companies 

No. of 
EquityS
hareshel
d in the 
Compan
y Chairman Member 

1 Praveen
Ostwal 

Managing 
Director 

10 10 Yes 1. Ostwal 
Phoschem 
(India) 
Limited(Non-
Executive 
Director) 
2. Madhya 
Bharat Agro 
Products 
Limited(Non-
Executive 
Director) 

- 0 13,83,942 

 



 

 

2 Sunil 
Kothari 

Whole Time 
Director and 
Chief 
Financial 
Officer 

10 10 Yes - - 4 - 

3 Gopal 
Inani 

Non-
Executive 
Independent 
Director 

10 10 Yes 1. Madhya 
Bharat Agro 
Products 
Limited 
(Independent  
Director) 
2.Shri Ganpati 
Fertilizers 
Limited  
(Independent  

Director) 

4 9 - 

4 Pradeep 
Agarwal 

Non-
Executive 
Independent 

Director 

10 10 Yes - 5 1 - 

5 Priyanka 
Surana 

Non-
Executive 
Women 
Independent 
Director 

10 10 No 1.Shri 
Ganpati 
Fertilizers 
Limited  
(Independent  

  Director) 

3 4 - 

6 Mahendr
a Kumar 
Ostwal 

Chairman 
cum 
Non-
Executive 
Director 

10 10 Yes 1. Ostwal 
Phoschem(I
ndia) 
Limited 
(Managing 
Director) 
2. Madhya 
Bharat Agro 
Products 
Limited (Non-
Executive 
Director) 

  -  - 2,40,821 

 

7 Pankaj 
Ostwal 

Non-
Executive 
Director 

10 10 Yes 1. Ostwal 
Phoschem 
(India) 
Limited 
(Non-Executive 
Director) 
2. Madhya 
Bharat Agro 
Products 
Limited 
(Managing 
Director) 
3.Shri Ganpati 
Fertilizers 
Limited  
(Executive 

Director) 

 - 2,48,570 

 



 

8. Bheru 
Lal 
Ostwal 

Non-
Executive 
Director and 
Independent
Director 

10 10 No 1. Ostwal 
Phoschem 
(India)Limited 
(Non-Executive 
Independent 
Director) 
2.Madhya 
Bharat Agro 
Products 
Limited (Non-
Executive 
Independent 
Director) 

3 5 200 

 

Number of Board Meetings 

The Board of Directors duly met 10 (Ten) times on 21st April 2023, 12h June 2023, 10th August 
2023, 29th August 2023,23rd September 2023, 30th September 2023,25th October 2023, 10th 
November 2023, 13th December 2023 and 12thFebruary 2024 in the Financial Year 2023-24.The 
maximum time gap between any two consecutive board meetings was less than 120 days. 

 
Disclosure of relationships between directors inter-se 

Mr. Praveen Ostwal, Managing Director on the Board of Directors is the brother of Mr. Pankaj 
Ostwal, Non-Executive Director. Mr. Praveen Ostwal, Managing Director and Mr. Pankaj 
Ostwal, Non-Executive Director are the Son of Mr. Mahendra Kumar Ostwal, Chairman cum 
Non-Executive Director in the Company. 

 
Number of shares and convertible instruments held by non-executive directors 

Mr. Pankaj Ostwal, who holds 2,48,570 Equity Shares, Mr. Mahendra Kumar Ostwal who holds 
2,40,821 Equity Shares, and Mr. Bheru Lal Ostwal who holds 200 Equity Shares in the Company. 

 
Web link where details of familiarization programmes imparted to Independent Directors is 
disclosed: 
All Independent Directors are familiarized with the Company and their roles, rights, 
responsibilities, nature of the industry in which the Company operates, business model of the 
Company, etc. from time to time. 

 

The details regarding Independent Directors’ Familiarization Programmes are given on the 
website of the Company and can be accessed at www.krishnaphoschem.com. 

 

Separate Meeting of the Independent Directors 
During the reporting financial year, a separate Meeting of the Independent Directors of the 
Company, was held on 30th March, 2024, at the Registered Office of the Company at 5-O-20, 
Basement, R.C. Vyas Colony, Bhilwara 311001, whereat the following items as enumerated under 
Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015 were discussed: 

a) Review of performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole. 
b) Review of performance of the Chairperson of the Company. 
c) Assessment of the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the 

Company management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and 
reasonably perform their duties. 
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List of skills/ expertise/ competencies required to function the business effectively: 
The following list of core skills/expertise/competencies are identified by the Board of Directors 
as required in the context of Business(es) and sector(s) for it to function effectively and those 
actually available with the Board of Directors. 

 
 

Qualification &Knowledge: Directors should be financially literate and have a sound 
understanding of business strategy, corporate governance and board operations. 
 

 

Integrity and Judgment: Directors should have the highest level of integrity, ethical character 
and the ability to exercise sound business judgment on a broad range of issues consistent with 
the Company’s values. 
 

 
Experience and Accomplishments: Directors should have significant experience and proven 
Superior performance in professional endeavors whether this experience is in business, 
government, and academic or with non-profit organizations. 

 
 

Independence: Directors who are not current or former management should meet the spirit as 
well as the letter of the applicable independence standards. In addition, all Directors should be 
independent in their thought and judgment so that they represent the long-term interests of all 
shareholders of the Company. 

 
 

Diversity: Directors should be capable of representing the multi-cultural nature of our global 
corporation with consideration being given to a diverse board in terms of gender and ethnic 
membership. In addition, the Committee shall take into account diversity in professional 
experience, skills and background. 

 
 

Board Interaction: Directors should value board and team performance over individual 
performance, demonstrate respect for others and facilitate superior board performance. 
Directors should be willing and able to devote the time required to become familiar with 
Company’s business and to be actively involved in the Board and its decision-making. 

 

Skills: Directors should have expertise in one or more of the areas such as accounting and 
finance, technology, management, international business, compensation, legal, HR, corporate 
governance, strategy, industry knowledge and general business matters. 

 
Confirmation pertaining to independent directors of the company: 
In the opinion of the Board of Directors of the Company, Mr. Gopal Inani, Mr. Pradeep 
Agarwal, Mrs. Priyanka Surana and Mr. Bheru Lal Ostwal, Non -Executive Independent 
Directors are Independent from the management and complies with the criteria of Independent 
Director as placed in Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
 
 



 

3. Audit Committee 
 

(a) Brief description of terms of reference: 
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in line with the provisions of Section 177 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. The role of the Audit Committee is to provide oversight over the accounting 
systems, financial reporting and internal controls of the Company. 
The powers and role of the Audit Committee are as set out in the Listing Agreement and 
Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

(b) Composition, Name of Members and Chairperson: 
The Audit Committee comprises 3 (Three) Directors as members. All members are financially 
literate and possess sound knowledge of accounts, finance and audit matters. The Company 
Secretary of the Company acts as Secretary to the Audit Committee. The Internal Auditors of 
the Company attend the Meetings of the Audit Committee on invitation of the Chairman of the 
Committee. The Composition of Audit Committee of the Company, is given below: 

 

Sr. 
No. 

Name Name Designation Position in Committee 

1. Mr. Pradeep Agarwal Non-Executive-Independent 
Director 

Chairman 

2. Mr. Gopal Inani Non-Executive-Independent 
Director 

Member 

3. Mr. Praveen Ostwal Managing Director Member 

4. Mr. Sunil Kothari Executive Director Member 

           Mr. Sunil Kothari and Mrs. Priyanka Surana was appointed as Member of the Committee on 10th 
August 2023 and Mr. Praveen Ostwal and Gopal Inani was ceased to member of the Committee 
from 10th August 2023 

 
(c) Meetings and attendance during the year: 
Four Audit Committee Meetings were held during the year ended March 31, 2024. The 
maximum time gap between any of the two meetings was not more than one hundred and 
twenty day. 

 

The dates on which the Audit Committee meetings held are 21st April 2023, 10th August 2023, 
November 2023 and 12th February 2024.  

 

Details of the Members participation at the Meetings of the Committee are as under: 
 

Name of Director Designation Number of Meetings 

 No of 
Meetings held 
during their 
Tenure 

Attended 

Pradeep Agarwal Chairman 4 4 

Gopal Inani Member 4 2 

Praveen Ostwal Member 4 2 

Sunil Kothari Member 4 2 
 



 

4. Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

 
(a) Brief description of terms of reference: 

1.  Identify persons who are qualified to become directors and may be appointed in senior 
management in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their 
appointment and removal and shall carry out evaluation of every director’s performance; 

 

2.  Formulate the criteria for determining the qualifications, positive attributes and 
independence of a director and recommend to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration 
for directors, KMPs and other employees; 

 

3. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the board 
of directors; 

 

4. Devising a policy on diversity of board of directors; 
 

5. Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the 
basis of their performance evaluation of independent directors; 

6. Determine our Company’s policy on specific remuneration package for the Whole Time 
Director/ Executive Director including pension rights. 

7. Decide the salary, allowances, perquisites, bonuses, notice period, severance fees and 
increment of Executive Directors; 

8. Define and implement the Performance Linked Incentive Scheme (including ESOP of the 
Company) and evaluate the performance and determine the amount of incentive of the 
Executive Directors for that purpose. 

 

9. Decide the amount of Commission payable to the Whole time Directors; 
 

10. Review and suggest revision of the total remuneration package of the Executive Directors 
keeping in view the performance of the Company, standards prevailing in the industry, 
statutory guidelines etc. 
 

11. To formulate and administer the Employee Stock Option Scheme. 
 

         (a)Composition, Name of Members and Chairperson: 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee was constituted by the Board with three 
Independent Directors. The Chairman of this Committee is Independent Director. 
 

The company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committee. 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company as under: - 

 

Sr. 
No. 

Name Designation Position in 
Committee 

1. Mr. Pradeep Agarwal Non-Executive Independent 
Director 

Chairman 

2. Mr. Gopal Inani Non-Executive-Independent 
Director 

Member 

3. Mrs. Priyanka Surana Non-Executive-Independent 
Director 

Member 

 
 



 

(b) Meetings and attendance during the year: 

The dates on which the Nomination and Remuneration Committee meetings held is 25th October 
2023 and 13th December 2023. 
 

Details of the Members participation at the Meetings of the Committee are as under: 

Name of Director Designation Number of Meetings 

Held Attended 

Pradeep Agarwal  Chairman 2 2 

Gopal Inani Member 2 2 

Priyanka Surana Member 2 2 
 

         (c)Performance evaluation criteria for Independent Directors: 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board laid out the evaluation criteria for 
performance evaluation of the Board, its Committees and all the individual directors, in 
adherence of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The 
performance evaluation for the financial year was carried out in accordance with the criteria 
laid out by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The evaluation of all directors 
(including Independent Directors) was done by the entire Board of Directors (excluding the 
Director being evaluated). 

 

5. Remuneration of director 
 

(a) All pecuniary relationship or transactions of the non-executive director’s visà- vis 
Company:  None 

 
(b) Criteria of making payments to Non-Executive Directors: 
The company has adopted Nomination and Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel and other Employees; regulated by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of 
the Board. The Policy is also available on the website of the Company www. Krishna 
phoschem.com in the ‘Investor Handbook’ section in ‘Investor Relation’. 

 

6. Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee 

Composition, Name of Members and Chairperson: 

The Stakeholder Relationship Committee was constituted by the Board with two Independent 
Directors and one executive Director. The Chairman of this Committee is Independent Director. 
 
The constituted Stakeholders Relationship Committee comprises the following: 
Sr. 
No. 

Name Designation Position in Committee 
 

1. Pradeep Agarwal Non-Executive-
Independent Director 

Chairman 

2. Gopal Inani Non-Executive-Independent 
Director 

Member 

3. Praveen Ostwal Managing Director Member 

4. Sunil Kothari Executive Director Member 
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Mr. Sunil Kothari was appointed as Member of the Committee on 10th August 2023 and Mr. 
Praveen Ostwal was ceased to member of the Committee from 10th August 2023 
 

Meetings and attendance during the year: 

During the Year the 4 stakeholder Relationship Committee Meetings were held on 21st April 2023, 
10th August 2023, 10th November 2023 and 12th February 2024  

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committee. 
 

Details of the Members participation at the Meetings of the Committee are as under: 
 

Name of Director Designation Number of Meetings 

Held Attended 

Pradeep Agarwal Chairman 4 4 

Gopal Inani Member 4 4 

Praveen Ostwal Member 4 2 

Sunil Kothari Executive 
Director 

4 2 

           
           Name of Non-Executive Director heading the Committee: 

Mr. Pradeep Agarwal, Non-Executive Independent Director was appointed as the Chairman 
of the Stakeholders Relationship/ Grievance Redressal Committee. 
 

(b)Name and designation of Compliance officer: Ms. Priyanka Bansal, Company Secretary 
till 30.09.2023 & Mr. Ankit Mundra Company Secretary from 13.12.2023 to 31.03.2024 

 

(c) A Summary of complaints received and resolved by the Company during the period 
under review is given below: 

 

No. of Investor Complaints 
received 

No. of Investor Complaints 
disposed 

No. of Investor Complaints 
Those remaining unresolved 

0 0 0 
 

        

7. RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE: 
The terms of reference of the Risk Management Committee are in accordance with and covers all 
the matters specified in Regulation 21 of the Listing Regulations and inter alia, include: 
 
1. To review and evaluate management’s identification of all major Risks to the business and 

cyber security. 
2. To assess the adequacy of management’s Risk Assessment, its plans for Risk control or 

mitigation. 
3. To review, assess and discuss with the Management 

(i) any significant risks or exposures. 
(ii) the steps management has taken to minimize such risks or exposures. 

 
4. To review and approve/amend from time to time the Company’s underlying policies with 

respect to risk assessment and risk management 
  

During the year 2 (Two) Risk Management Committee Meetings were held on 10st August 2023 
and 25th October 2023. 



 

The composition of the RMC and attendance of its members at its meetings held during the year 
is as follows: 
S.
N. 

Name Designation Position in 
Committee 
 

No. of 
Meetings 
held 
during 
tenure 

No. of 
Meetings 
attended 

1. Priyanka 
Surana    

Non-Executive-
Independent Director 

Chairman 2 2 

2. Pradeep 
Agarwal 

Non-Executive-
Independent Director 

Member 2 2 

3. Praveen 
Ostwal 

Managing Director Member 2 1 

4. Sunil 
Kothari 

Executive Director Member 2 1 

 

        Mr. Sunil Kothari was appointed as Member of the Committee on 10th August 2023 and Mr. Praveen 
Ost             Ostwal was ceased to member of the Committee from 10th August 2023 

         8.Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 
In compliance of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the Board has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility 
Committee. The composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee as at 
March 31, 2023 is as under: 
 

Name of the Director Designation Nature of Directorship 

 Mr. Pradeep Agarwal Chairman Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

Mr.  Sunil Kothari Member Whole Time Director 

Mr.  Gopal Inani Member Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

 

                    During the year the Committee had 2 Meetings i.e., on i.e., on 30th September 2023 and 30th March 2024 

8. General Body Meetings  
     Annual General Meeting (“AGM”): 

Particulars of Last Three Annual General Meetings: 
 

   

AGM Year Ended Venue Date Time 

19th  March 31, 2023 Meeting conducted through 
Through two – way Video 
Conferencing (“VC”) or 
Other Audio-Visual Means 
(“OAVM”) pursuant to the 
MCA Circular 

28th September, 2023 11:00 P.M 

18th  March 31, 2022 Meeting conducted through 
Through two – way Video 
Conferencing (“VC”) or 
Other Audio-Visual Means 
(“OAVM”) pursuant to the 
MCA Circular 

28th September, 2022 03:30 P.M 



 

 

 

Extraordinary General Meeting: 
         During the year no extraordinary general meeting of the members was held. 

Special Resolutions passed in previous three Annual General Meetings 

Following Special resolutions were passed by the Company during the last three Annual 
General Meetings(AGM) of the Company.      
 
Date Particulars 
28th September,2023 There is no special resolution passed in the AGM. 

28th September,2022 There is no special resolution passed in the AGM. 

27th September,2021 1.To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without 
modification(s), to re-appoint Mrs. Priyanka Surana as an women 
Independent Director. 
 
2. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without 
modification(s), to approve and increase the overall managerial 
remuneration limit. 

 

 
3.To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without 
modification(s), revision of remuneration of Mr. Praveen Ostwal as 
Managing Director of the Company. 
 

4. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without 
modification(s), to approve payment of Salary or Commission to 
Non- Executive of the Company. 

Resolution proposed to be passed through Postal Ballot 
None of Business proposed to be transacted in the ensuring Annual General Meeting required 
the passing of a resolution by way of postal ballot. 

   

 10.Means of Communication 

1) The unaudited quarterly results are announced within forty-five days from the close of the 
Quarter and the Audited results are announced within sixty days from the close of the financial 
year. The financial results are immediately sent to the Stock Exchanges and also uploaded on the 
website of the Company -www.krishnaphoschem.com. 

2) The Company has normally published in two newspapers viz. The Financial Express (English 
Edition) and Business Remedies (Hindi Edition). 

 

3) The Company’s website, www.krishnaphoschem.com provides comprehensive 
information to the Shareholders. 

 

4) The Company has display the news release and Investor Presentations on Company’s 
website, www.krishnaphoschem.com 

 

17th  March 31, 2021 Meeting conducted through 
Through two – way Video 
Conferencing (“VC”) or 
Other Audio-Visual Means 
(“OAVM”)  pursuant to the 
MCA Circular 

27th September, 2021 11:00 A.M 
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11.General Shareholders Information 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Salient Items of Interest Particulars 

1. Annual General Meeting 
Date/Day/Time/Venue/Mode 

On Friday, September 20, 2024. 
12:30 PM 
Meeting conducted through Video Conference 
(“VC”)/Other Audio-Visual Means 
(“OAVM”) 

2. Financial Year April 1st 2023 to March 31st ,2024 

3. Dividend Payment Date Dividend will be paid within 30 days of the approval  
of the same in the Annual General Meeting. 
 

4. Listing on Stock Exchanges he Company’s equity shares are listed on National Stock 
Exchange (NSE) Platform. The Listing fee for the same 
has been paid. 
 

5 Symbol KRISHANA 
ISIN: INE506W01012 

6. Market Price Data: High, Low during each month in Last Financial Year 
 Month High Low 

 Apr-23 499.95 465.75 

 May-23 491.00 442.00 

 June- 23 466.00 435.15 

 July-23 452.45 413.10 

 Aug-23 477.00 417.10 

 Sep-23 503.90 403.55 

 Oct-23 522.20 245.00 

 Nov-23 270.95 223.60 

 Dec-23 256.45 230.00 

 Jan-24 263.45 227.15 

 Feb-24 257.65 205.05 

 Mar-24 272.45 236.00 

 7. Register and Transfer 
Agents 

LINK IN TIME INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED  

C-101, 247Park, L.B.S. Marg, 
Vikhroli (West), Mumbai–400083, Maharashtra, 
India.Tel:91-22–49186000 
Fax:91-22–49186060 
Website: www.linkintime.co 
Investor Grievance Email: 
rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in 

 Contact Person: Miss. Shweta Poojari 
SEBI Regn. No.: INR000004058 

8. Share Transfer System As all the shares are held in dematerialized mode, the transfer 
takes place instantaneously between the transferor, transferee, 
and the Depository Participant through electronic debit/credit 
of the accounts involved. 
 

9.  
Distribution of Shareholding (as on 31.03.2024) 
 

 
 
Shareholding No. of 

Shareholder 
Percentage of   
Shareholder 

 Share Amount Percentage of 
Shareholding 
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1 to 500 7878 85.9668 617723 0.9991 
501 to 1000 454 4.9542 354277 0.573 
1001 to 2000 296 3.23 442045 0.715 
2001 to 3000 114 1.244 283533 0.4586 
3001 to 4000 66 0.7202 235984 0.3817 
4001 to 5000 61 0.6656 280126 0.4531 
5001 to 10000 133 1.4513 951331 1.5387 
10001 to 99999999999 162 1.7678 58662581 94.8809 
9164 100 61827600 100 9164 

10. Dematerialization of 
shares and Liquidity 

All the Equity shares i.e. 100 % of the total issued, 
subscribed and paid-up equity share capital of the 
Company was held in Dematerialized form. 

11. Outstanding 
GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any 
Convertible instruments, 
conversion date and 
Likely impact on equity 

None. 

12. Plant Locations 1. Plot No.115,116,117 and 
118-A, 118-B, 119, 120, and 
126 – 133, Meghnagar 
Jhabua, Madhya Pradesh 

2. Plot No. 142 and 143, 
Meghnagar Jhabua, 
Madhya Pradesh 

3. PlotNo.126-A and 134, 
Meghnagar Jhabua, 
Madhya Pradesh 

4. Plot no. 141,144 & 145, Meghnagar,  
         Jhabua, Madhya Pradesh. 

13. Address for correspondence 5-O-20, Basement 
RC Vyas Colony, 
Bhilwara 311001, 
Rajasthan, India. 
Ph.No.91-1482-237104/239091/230060 
Email: secretarial@krishnaphoschem.com; 

Website: www.krishnaphoschem.com 
14. List of all credit ratings obtained by 

the entity along with any revisions 
there to during the relevant 
financial year, for all debt 
instruments of such entity or any 
fixed deposit programme or any 
scheme or proposal of the listed 
entity involving 
Mobilization of funds, whether in 
India or abroad 

Not Applicable 

 

12.Other Disclosures 

(a) Related Party Transactions: 

During the year, none of the transactions with the related parties were in conflict with the interest of 
the Company at large. 
All the related party transactions have been disclosed in the notes to the accounts of the Balance 
Sheet presented in the Annual Report. 
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(b) Details of non-compliance: 

There were no strict strictures or penalties imposed by either SEBI or Stock Exchanges or any 
Statutory Authority for non-compliance of any matter related to the capital markets during the 
last three years. 
 

(c ) Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy: 

The Company has formulated Whistle Blower Policy for vigil mechanism of Directors and 
employees to report to the management about the unethical behavior, fraud or violation of 
Company’s Code of Conduct. None of the person of the Company has been denied access to the 
Audit Committee.  
The Whistle Blower Policy is displayed on the Company’s website viz. 
http://www.krishnaphoschem.com. 

 

(d) Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-mandatory 
requirements: 
The Company has fully complied with the mandatory requirements of   SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 

(e) Web link where policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries is disclosed:  
The policy for determining‘ material ’subsidiaries is available on the website of the Company at 
www.krishnaphoschem.com 
 

(f) Web link where policy on dealing with related party transactions is disclosed: 

  The policy on dealing with related party transactions is available on the website of the Company 
at www.krishnaphoschem.com 

 
 

(g) Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities: 

 The Company has a proper Risk Management Practices and any risk arising from exposure to 
foreign currency for exports and imports is being hedged on a continuous basis. As of now, the 
Company does not hedge any commodity price risk. 

 
 

(h) Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified 
institutional placement as specified under regulation 32(7A): Funds raised through preferential 
allotment by the company is undertaking an issue and allotment of certain equity shares, the 
proceeds of which will be primarily used to meet the needs for the further expansion of business 
activities and for the growing business of the Company, including long term capital 
requirements for pursuing growth plans, and for general corporate purposes. meeting other long 
term fund requirements including projection of new Projects. 

 

(i) Certificate from the Practicing Company Secretary for the Non – Disqualification of 
Directors under SEBI (LODR), 2015- Regulation 34(3): 

The Company has received Certificate from Practicing Company secretary, M/s. Sourabh Bapna 
& Associates, regarding that none of the directors on the Board of the Company have been 
debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as a director of companies by the 
Board, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any other statutory authority as on March 31, 2024. 
 

(j) Where the Board has not accepted any recommendation of any committee of the Board 
which is mandatorily required in the relevant financial year the same to be disclosed along 
with the reason thereof: - Not Applicable 
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(K) Total fees of all service paid by the listed company and its Subsidiary, on a consolidated 
basis, to the statutory auditor and all entities in the network firm/network entity of which the 
statutory auditor is a part: - Rs. 2,00,000 per annum. 
 

(l)Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. 

The company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirement of the 
Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) 
Act,2013. Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set up to redress complaints received 
regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainee) are 
covered under this policy. 
 

 

The following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed off during the 
year 2023-24. 
 
No. of complaints received: Nil No. 
of complaints disposed of: Nil 
 
(m) Disclosure by listed entity and its subsidiaries of ‘Loans and advances in the nature of 
loans to firms/companies in which directors are interested by name and amount (Provided 
that this requirement shall be applicable to all listed entities except for listed banks):   

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Particulars Outstanding as 
at 31st March 

2024 

Outstanding as 
at 31st March 

2023 

i)  Loan to Holding Company - - 

ii) Loan to Associates Company - - 

iii)  In the nature of loans to 
firms/companies in which directors 
are interested 

- - 

 
 
(n)Details of material subsidiaries of the listed entity; including the date and place of 
incorporation and the name and date of appointment of the statutory auditors of such 
subsidiaries: N.A. 
 
(o) The Company have any share in the demat suspense account or unclaimed suspense 
account: None 

 
(p) Instance of non-Compliance of any requirement of corporate governance report:
 There has been no instance of non-compliance of any requirement of corporate governance 
report. 

 
(q)Disclosure of compliance of regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub regulation (2) 
of regulation 46: The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements specified in 
Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub–regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 

 
 



 

(r)Disclosure of Accounting Treatment: 
In the preparation of the financial statements, the Company has followed the Accounting 
Standards referred to in Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. The significant accounting 
policies which are consistently applied are set out in the Notes to the Financial Statements. 

 
(s) CEO and CFO Certification 
The Chairman and Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer of the Company give annual 
Compliance Certificate in accordance with Regulation 17(8) read with Part B of Schedule II of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015 with the Stock Exchange(s). 
The annual Compliance Certificate given by Chairman and Managing Director and Chief 
Financial Officer is attached with this Report an integral part of the Annual Report. 

 
(t) Code of conduct for Board Members and Senior Management Personnel 

The Board had approved a code of conduct for Board Members and Senior Management Personnel 
of the company which also incorporates the duties of Independent directors as laid down in 
Companies act, 2013. The Code has been displayed on the company’s website 
www.krishnaphoschem.com.  The Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have 
affirmed compliance with the aforesaid code. 

 
(u) Compliance certificate from either the auditors or practicing company secretaries 
regarding compliance of conditions of corporate governance: 
The Certificate from Practicing Company secretaries, M/s. Sourabh Bapna & Associates, regarding 
compliance of conditions of corporate governance is attached with this Report an integral part of 
the Annual Report. 

                        For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors 

     
Date: 17.08.2024                                           Sd/-                                             Sd/- 
Place: Bhilwara                                           Praveen Ostwal                        Sunil Kothari 
                                                                       (Managing Director)               (Whole time Director & CFO) 
                                                                        (DIN: 00412207)                       (DIN: 02056569) 
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CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE CONDITIONS 
OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

To  
The Members, 
Krishana Phoschem Limited 

 
We have examined the compliance conditions of corporate governance by Krishana Phoschem 

Limited for the Financial year ended March 31, 2024 as stipulated in Chapter IV of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 pursuant to the Listing Agreement of 
the said Company with stock exchanges.  
 
The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. 
Our examination was in accordance with the Guidance Note on Certification of Corporate 
Governance, issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and was limited to procedures 
and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance of the conditions of 
Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial 
statements of the Company. 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
  
We certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as 
stipulated in the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs 
of the Company. 
 
For Sourabh Bapna & Associates 
Practicing Company Secretary 
           
Sd/- 
(Sourabh Bapna) 
Proprietor 
C.P. No. 19968 
M. No. A51505 
Date:   17.08.2024 
Place:  Bhilwara 
 
 



 
 KRISHANA PHOSCHEM LIMITED 

 

CERTIFICATION FROM THE MANAGING DIRECTOR AND THE CFO 
 

In terms of Regulation 34(3) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulation,2015, we hereby certify as under: 
 
a) We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 
2024 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief: 
 
i. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 
statements that might be misleading; 
 
ii.These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in 
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 
 
b)There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company 
during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violates the Code of Conduct of the Company. 
 
c)We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting 
and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to 
financial reporting. We have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the 
design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have 
taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies. 
 
d)We do further certify that there has been: 
i. No Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year; 
ii. No Significant changes in accounting policies during the year; 
iii. No Instances of fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, of the 
management or an employee having significant role in the Company’s internal control system over 
financial reporting. 

                                   For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors  

 
 Date: 11.05.2024                                                   Sd/-                                             Sd/- 
 Place: Bhilwara                                                   Praveen Ostwal                        Sunil Kothari 
                                                                               (Managing Director)               (Whole time Director & CFO) 

                                                                                (DIN: 00412207)                       (DIN: 02056569) 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
                



 
 KRISHANA PHOSCHEM LIMITED 

 

 
 

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 
 

Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

 
To,  
The Members of  
Krishana Phoschem Limited 
5-O-20, Basement, R.C. Vyas Colony,  
Bhilwara, Rajasthan 
 
 

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of 
Krishana Phoschem Limited having CIN L24124RJ2004PLC019288 and having registered office at 5-O-20, 
Basement R.C Vyas Colony Bhilwara 311001 Rajasthan (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced 

before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) 
read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors 
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations 
furnished to me by the Company & its officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the 
Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2024 have been debarred or 
disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority 

  
    
Sr. No DIN Name Date of Appointment in Company 

1 00412207 PRAVEEN OSTWAL 06/06/2007 

2 06458531 PRADEEP AGARWAL 17/12/2012 

3 02586806 PANKAJ OSTWAL 26/03/2019 

4 00412163 
MAHENDRA KUMAR 
OSTWAL 26/03/2019 

5 08377262 BHERU OSTWAL LAL 26/03/2019 

6 02056569 SUNIL KOTHARI 14/02/2008 

7 07679675 PRIYANKA SURANA 19/12/2016 

8 09642942 GOPAL INANI 25/07/2022 
 

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility 
of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our 
verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

                                                                                                                
      Sourabh Bapna & Associates 

Membership No.: 51505 
CP No.: 19968  
Place: Bhilwara 
Date:  11.05.2024                                                                             
 
 
  

 



 
KRISHANA PHOSCHEM LIMITED 

 

ANNEXURE-IX 
 

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY  
 

 
1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company. 
CSR activities at Krishana Phoschem Limited is already in existence for the benefit of the society. 
It is recognized that integrating social, environmental and ethical responsibilities into the 
governance of businesses ensures the long-term success, competitiveness and sustainability. 
 
Further, Corporate Social Responsibility makes a business sense as companies with effective CSR 
brings improvement in social strata which ultimately comes back to the company through 
increased demand of products. It also improves image as a socially responsible company. 
 
The main objective of CSR policy is to make CSR a key business process for sustainable 
development of the society. Krishana Phoschem Limited will act as a good corporate citizen and 
aims at supplementing the role of Government in enhancing the welfare measures of the society 
within the framework of its policy. 
 
The Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company is available on the website of the 
Companyhttp://www.krishnaphoschem.com.in the ‘Investor Handbook’ under ‘Investor Relation’. 
 

2. Composition of CSR Committee-  
 

Sl.No. Name of Director Designation / 
Nature of 
Directorship 

Number of meetings 
of CSR Committee 
held during the year 

Number of meetings 
of CSR Committee 
attended during the 
year 

 1. Mr. Pradeep Agarwal  Chairman 2 2 
 2.  Mr. Gopal Inani  Member 2 2 
 3.  Mr. Sunil Kothari   Member 2 2 
 
3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects 

approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company: -
http://www.krishnaphoschem.com 
 

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-
rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if 
applicable (attach the report): -Not Applicable 

 

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the 
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for 
set off for the financial year, if any 
 
 
 



 
KRISHANA PHOSCHEM LIMITED 

 

Sl. No. Financial Year Amount available for 
set-off from preceding 
financial years (in Rs. 
Lakhs) 

Amount required to be set- 
off for the financial year, if 
any (in Rs. Lakhs) 

1 2022-2023 2.64 - 

2 2021-2022 1.25 - 

3 2020-2021 0.58 - 

 TOTAL                        

 
6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): - 3670.65 lakhs 

 
7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): - 73.41 lakhs 

 
(b)Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the previous financial 
years: Nil 
 
(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: -Nil 
 
(d)Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b- 7c): - 73.41 Lakhs 
 

 

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: 
 

 
Total Amount 
Spent for the 
Financial Year. 
(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Amount Unspent (Rs. In Lakhs) 

Total Amount transferred to Unspent 
CSR Account as per section 135(6) 

Amount transferred to any fund specified under 
Schedule VII as per second proviso to section 
135(5) 

Amount Date of transfer Name of the Fund Amount Date of transfer 

 73.41   NA NA NA NA NA 

 

 
(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: - NIL 
 
(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial 
year: 

 
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

S. 
No. 

Name of the 
Project 

Item from 
the list of 
activities in 
schedule 
VII to the 
Act. 

Local 
area 
(Yes/
No). 

Location of the 
project. 

Amounts 
paid for 
the 
project 
(Rs. in 
Lakhs). 

Mode of 
Implemen
tation on 
Direct 
Yes/N
o 

Mode of 
implementation–
Through 
implementing 
agency 

 
State. 

 
District. 

 
Name. 

 
CSR 
registr
ation 
No. 

1 Educational Promoting 
education 

 Rajasthan Bhilwara 16.67 Yes         - - 



 
KRISHANA PHOSCHEM LIMITED 

 

    2 Poverty and 
malnutrition 

Eradicating 
hunger, 
poverty and 
malnutrition 

 Rajasthan Bhilwara 42.35 Yes          - - 

3 
 
 Ensuring      
environment  
sustainability 

Conservation 
of natural 
resources and 
maintaining 
quality of soil, 
air and water 

 Madhya 
Pradesh 

Meghnagar 10.41 Yes         - - 

4 Employment 
enhancing 
vocational skills. 

Farmers 
awareness 
programme 

 Madhya 
Pradesh 

Meghnagar 5.30 Yes        - - 

 Total     74.73    

 
 
(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Not Applicable 
 
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable 
 
(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): 74.73 Lakhs 
 
(g) Excess amount for set off, if any  
 

S.No. Particular Amount (Rs. in Lakhs) 

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) 73.41 

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 74.73 

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 1.31 

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the 
previous financial years, if any 

NIL 

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] 1.31 

 
 
 

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: 
 

S. 
No. 

Preceding 
Financial 
Year. 

Amount 
transferred 
to Unspent 
CSR 
Account 
under 
section135
(6)(in Rs.) 

Amount 
spent in the 
Reporting 
Financial 
Year(in 
Rs.). 

Amount transferred to any fund 
specified under Schedule VII as per 
section 135(6), if any. 

Amount 
remaining 
to be spent 
in 
succeeding
financial 
years.(in 
Rs.) 

Nam
e of 
the 
Fun
d 

 
Amount (in 
Rs). 

 
Date of 
transfer. 

1.        

2. NA 
   

3.        



 
KRISHANA PHOSCHEM LIMITED 

 

 Total       

 
(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding 
financial year(s): 
 

(1) (2) (3
) 

(4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) 

S. 
No. 

Project ID. Name 
of the 
Project. 

Financial
Year        
in 
Which the 
project 
was 
commenc
ed. 

Project
duratio
n. 

Total 
amount
allocate
d for 
the 
project 
(in Rs.). 

Amount 
spent on 
the 
project in 
the 
reporting
Financial
Year (in 
Rs). 

Cumulative
amount 
spent at the 
end of 
reporting 
Financial 
Year (in 
Rs.) 

Status of the 
project - 

 
Completed 
/Ongoing. 

N.A. 

 TOTAL        

 
10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so 

created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year: -  
(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s) – Not Applicable 
(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset - Not Applicable. 
(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset 
is registered, their address etc.- Not Applicable 
(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and 
location of the capital asset) - Not Applicable. 
 
 

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net 
profit as per section 135(5): -Not Applicable 
 
 

                                   For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors  

 
 Date: 11.05.2024                                                   Sd/-                                             Sd/- 
 Place: Bhilwara                                                   Praveen Ostwal                        Pradeep Agarwal 
                                                                               (Managing Director)               (Chairman CSR Committee) 

                                                                                (DIN: 00412207)                       (DIN: 06458531) 
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Website: www.krishnaphoschem.com Email: secretarial@krishnaphoschem.com; CIN: LZALZ4RJZOOAILCOlg2gg

d"\

BATANCE SHEET AS AT 31.t MARCH 2024

I

il

Particula rs Note No. As at 31't March 2024 As at 31't March 2023
ASSETS

Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment
(b) Capital Work-in-Progress
(c) Financial Assets

(i) Other Financial Assets
(d) Other Non-Current Assets

Total Non-Current assets

Current assets
(a) lnventories
(hi Financial Assets

(i) Trade Receivables
(ii) Cash and Cash equivalents
(iiiJ Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents as above (ii)
(iv) Loans
(v) Other Current Financial Assets

(c) Other Current Assets
fotal Current assets

3

3

4

5

6

7
0

8A

9

10
1.1.

3),230.42
4,141.41

495.L9
L77.09

35,845 21

500.85
326.98

37,203.74 36,995.42

74,226.1.2

26,414.1_8

262.51
258.8L

L4.2I
670.44

5,422.08

11,A89.77

1,408.02

0.23
7.23

L,429.67
1",284.87

47,268.4t 21,22L.92
Iotal Assets 84,472.L5 58,217.34

I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

I rquity

| (a) rouitv Share Capital

| (b) other Eouitv

lTotal Equity
lLtnstLtttrs
I Non-Current Liabilities
| (a) rinancial Liabilities

| 1i1 aorrowingst.....| (il) Lease L,ab,lrtres
(ii) Other Financial Liabilities

(b) Provisions
(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

Total Non-Current Liabilities
Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings
(ii) Trade Payables

(A) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
(B) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small

e nte rp rises
(iii) Lease Liabilities
(iv) Other Financial Liabilities

(b) Other Current Liabilities
(c) Provisions
(d) Current Tax Iiabilities (Net)

Total Current Liabilities

12

13

L4

15

16

22

17

18

19

15

20

2L

22

23

6,\82 76
23,875 31

j,091 38
23,089 80

30,059.O7 26,LgL,L8

15,896.54
89.4L

844.62

37..19
L,897.64

14,5 85.94

E 18.75

25.84
1,09 1.48

18,766.00 16,61L.95

27,620.57

768.98

s,101.65

0.51

328.L4
1.,7L1 .79

20.97
89.04

13,050.41

72.76

872.)4
0.49

324.26

1,107.56
6.93

50.16
35,647.O8 L5,424.2t

I Otat tqulty and Ltablltties 84,472.t5 58,217.34
Significant Accounting Policies & the accompanying notes forming integral part of
the Financial Statements
As per our report of even date.
For Ashok Kanther & Associates
Chartered Accountants

"1" to "48

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

{f w"
\

(Praveen Ostwal)
Managing Director
O,t,O.*rrrlffi:,

Company Secretary

Membership No. 4,67949

*AL-: ^, tJ
\9;5'tw-'1

(;;;,.. Kumarostwal)
Director

DIN :00412163

('- l-u (Sunii Kothari)
Whole Time Director & CFO

,x9:\-r.
a6m*'4'wMember No: 043571

lwara

' )u 'trN;_ &L{0 u 3s.+J_ gyF-Jst4 a,4+J_

DIN : 02056569



STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31't MARCH 2024
Rs. in

Note No.
For the year ended 31"t

March 2024

For the year ended 31't March
2023

REVENUE:

Revenue from operations
Other income
TOTAL INCOME

EXPENSES:

Cost of materials consumed

Purchases of Stock-in-Trade
Changes in inventories offinished goods and Stock-in-Trade

Ernployee benefits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortization expense

Other expenses

TOTAL EXPENSES

Profit Before Exceptional ltems and Tax

Exceptional ltems
Profit Before Tax

Tax Expense:
(1) Current Tax

(2) Deferred Tax

(3) (Excess)/Short Tax expenses for earlier years

Profit After Tax

Other Comprehensive lncome

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Re-measurement gains / (losses) on defined benefit plans

lTax relating to Remeasurement of defined benefits plans

Total Other Comprehensive lncome for the period

Total Comprehensive lncome for the period

i 
g.rnin*, per equity share of face value of Rs 10 each

I 
Basic (in Rs.)

Diluted (in Rs.)

26

21

2B

79

30

31

24

25

32

92,389.77
94.54

92,484.3\

58,304.77
8,6t2.93

(s,3L7.L4)
1,145.OA

3,676.L8
3,415.95

16,139.69

32,281..76

288.96
32,570.72

L5,463.97
5,71.1.97

(3 s8.76)
r no1 7q

68 2.41

868.09
5,215.48

86,577.38 28,676.86

5,906.93 3,893.86

5,906.93

1.,O51..6L

811.03

J,U9J.6b

710.55
510.84

( 1.13

1,862.64 L,220.26

4,O44.29 2,673.60

( 16.6s)

4.86

(8.e6)

7.61-

(11.83) (6.3s)

4,032.46 2,667.25

6.54
6.54

8.80
8.65

Significant Accounting Policies & the accompanying notes forming integral

part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date.

For Ashok Kanther & Associates
Chartered Accountants

May,1"lth2024

to*t

illi l !I\i J'. !

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

@ri*+
(Mahendra Kumar Ostwal)

Director
DIN : 00412163

'l

f- -- \ (sunil Kothari)

Whole Time Director & CFO

KRISHANA PHOSCHEM LIMITED

5-0-20, Basement, R.C. Vyas Colony, Bhilwara (Raj.) INDIA

Website: www.krishnaphoschem.com Email:secretarial@krishnaphoschem.com; CIN: 124124RJ2004P1C019288

,,1., to ,,48''

(Praveen Ostwal)
Managing Director
DIN :00412207

h,*t'
(Ankit Mundra)
Company Seretary
Membership No. 4-67949 DIN : 02055569

No: 043571-



KRISHANA PHOSCHEM LIMITED

5-0-20, Basement, R.C. Vyas Colony, Bhilwara (Raj.) INDIA
Website: www.krishnaphoschem.com Email: secretarial@krishnaphoschem.com; CtN: 124124RJ2004P1C019288

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31't MARCH 2024
tn

Particular
For the year ended 31

March 2024

For the year ended 31

March 2023
Audited Audited

A) CASH FLOW FROM OPERAT|NG ACTtVtTtES:

Net profit before tax
Adiustments for:
Depreciation and Amortization
lnterest lncome
Actuarial (Loss)/ Gains on Defined Benefit Obligations
lnterest paid on Lease Liabilities
Finance Costs

Operating profit before working capital change
Adiustments for:
lncrease/(Decrease) in Trade payable

lncrease/(Decrease) in Other Current Liability
(lncrease)/Decrease in lnventories
(lncrease)/Decrease in Trade Receivable
(lncrease)/Decrease in Other FinanciaI Assets
(lncrease)/Decrease in Other Current Assets
(lncrease)/Decrease in Other Financial Assets -Loans
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Financial Liability
I ncrease/(Decrease) in Short-term Provisions
Net changes in working capital
Cash Generated from/(used in) operations

5,906.93

3,4L5.95
(128.se)

(16.6e)

6.0s
3,670.13

L2,853.78

4,986.23

609.63
(3,136.3s)

( 19,006.16)

656.20
(4,L37.2Ll

(6.s8)

3.93
25.99

120,004.72)
(7,1s0.94)

3,893.86

868.09
(23e.88)

(8. e6)

6.92

675,19

5,195.52

( 1,208.81)

56.98
(s,ss 1.82)
(2,181.37)

381.57
510.05

(4.85)

L91.49

11.85

(7,800.92)
(2.60s.40)

Direct Taxes paid 1.,012.7s (672.L4
Net cash from/(Used in) operatins activities {A) (8,r.63.69) 8.277.531
B) CASH FLOW FROM TNVESTTNG ACTTV|TIES:
)urchase of Property, Plant & Equipment
ieceipt of Government Grants
nterest lncome

(3,71e.83\

L28.59

(19,339 31)

85.1.-10

239.88
Net cash from investins activities {B) (3,65L.24\ (19,014.43)
c) cAsH FLOW FROM FtNANC|NG ACT|VTTTES

Proceeds from lssue of Share Capltal/Share Warrants
Proceeds of Long Term Borrowings
Repayment of Long Term Borrowings
Proceeds/(Repayment) in Short Term Borrowings (net)

Repayment of Lease Liabilities
Finance Costs (lncluding Lease Liabilities lnterest)
Dividends Paid (including Dividend Distribution Tax)

Securitv Deposits from Buvers '''

3,500.00
(887.76)

1.3,268.s2

(6.s6)
(3,670.13)

( 1s4.s7)
25.87

1,558.69
10,500.21

(37e.41)

14,634.75
(7.36)

(6ts.4e)
(14t.9t)

809.s0

Net cash from financing activities (C) 72,075.37 22,292.92
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 260.44 0.96
Cash and cash equivalents as at Beginning 2.t3 1..L]
Cash and cash equivalents as at End 262.57 2.1,3

As per our report of even date.
For :M/s Ashok Kanther & Associates

Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 050014C)

For and on

Q (INJ.:
\

(Praveen Ostwal)
Managing Director
DIN :00412207

tN$z
(Ankit Mundra)
Company Secretary

Membership No. 4-67949

No: 043571

llr'h 2024

Behalf of the Board of Directors
/\t\M{'.-.-*

(Mahendra Kumar Ostwal)
Di rector

DIN :00412163

| '-*-\u lSunil Korhari)
Whole Time Director & CFO

Dated:: May, DIN : 02056569
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31st/2024

CORPORATE I N FORMATION :

Krishana Phoschem Limited ("the Company") is a public limited company, incorporated and domiciled

in lndia having its registered office at 5-0-20, Basement, R.C. Vyas Colony, Bhilwara (Rajasthan)

311001. The equity shares of the Company are listed on NSE Limited. The company is engaged in the
manufacturing of fertilizers & chemicals having manufacturing facility located at A.K.V.N. lndustrial
Area, Meghnagar Dist. Jhabua (M.P.)

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2024 are approved for issue by

the Company's Board of Directors on Llth May,2024

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES & KEY ACCOUNITNG ESTIMATES & JUDGEMENTS

L.T BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

A. Statement of compliance:
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the lndian
Accounting Standards (lnd AS) notified under Section L33 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

[Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] Companies (lndian Accounting Standards)

Amendment Rules,2016.

The Financial Statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting
policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially
adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy

hitherto in use.

These lnd AS had been adopted w.e.f. 1't April, 2018 as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs
. under the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 20L5.

The FinancialStatements includes Balance Sheet as at 31't March, 2024,the Statement of Profit &
Loss including Other Comprehensive lncome, Cash Flows Statement, and Statement of Change in

Equity for the year ended 31"'t March, 2024 and significant accounting policy and other explanatory
information.

Functional and presentati.on currency
These financial statements are presented in lndian Rupees (lNR), which is the Company's functional
currency. All financial information presented in INR has been rounded off to the nearest Lakhs,

except as stated otherwise.

Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on accrual basis.

The following items are measured on each reporting date as under:
. Defined benefit plans - plan assets at fair value

:

Historical cost is generally based on the fai.r value of the consideration given in exchange for goods

and services.

, Fair value is the price that would be received to sell as asset or paid to
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

c.

69EN
{Iffird'3
eh#z

transfer a liability in an



D.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 37'1,2024

Use of estimates and ludgemeits

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with lnd AS requires the management to
make estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect
the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the period.

The application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving complex
and subjective judgments and the use of assumptions in these financial statements have been
disclosed in Note no. 1.2.
Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes
in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial
statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in
the notes to the standalone financial statements.

Use of CriticalJudgments, Estimates and Assumptions
The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial years are described below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates or parameters available when the financial statements were prepared.
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

A. Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and tntangible Assets
Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the
company. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate
of an asset's expected useful life and the expected residualvalue at the end of its life.

The useful life and residual values of Company's assets are determined by management at the time
the asset is acquired. The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as well as
anticipation of future events, which may impact their life, such as changes in technology.

B. Employee benefits
Defined benefit plans and other long-term benefits are evaluated with reference to uncertain
events and based upon actuarial assumptions including among others discount rates, expected
rates of return on plan assets, expecte.d rates of salary increases, estimated retirement dates,
mortality rates. The significant assumptions used to account for Employee benefits are described in

L.2

@*s
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Note no M.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31"t,2024

C. Revenue Recognition
The company assesses the services promised in a contract and identifies distinct performance
obligations in the contract. Judgement is also required to determine the transaction price for thecontract' The Company allocates the elements of variable considerations to all the performance
obligations of the contract unless there is observable evidence that they pertain to one or moredistinct performance obligations. The company exercises judgement in determining whether theperformance obligation is satisfied at a point in time or over a period of time.

D. Leases

The company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of rnd ASL16' ldentification of a lease requires significant judgment. The company uses significantjudgement in assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discountrate' The discount rate is generally based on the incrementar borrowing rate specific to the leasebeing.evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

E. Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable thattaxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant managementjudgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized,
based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future taxplanning strategies.

F. Contingencies
' on an ongoing basis, company reviews pending cases, claims by third parties and othercontingencies and obligations' obligations relating to proiect Executions is largely depends uponperformance of services by respective contractors. For contingent losses that are consideredprobable' an estimated loss is recorded as an accrual in financiar statements. Loss contingenciesthat are considered possible are not provided for but disclosed as contingent Iiabilities in thefinancial statements. contingencies the likelihood of which is remote are not disclosed in thefinancial statements.'Gain contingencies are not recognised until the contingency has beenresolved and amounts are received or receivable.

2. SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POL!CIES:

A. Current and non,current classification
Any asset or liability is crassified as current or non-current based on company,s normar- bperating
cycle and other criteria as set out in the Division ll of schedule lil to the companies Act, 2013.

Asset/ Liability is classified as current, if it satisfies any of the following conditions:
' the asset/liability is expected to be realized/settled in the company,s normal operating cycle;. the asset is intended for sale or consumption;

'+ o the asset/liabirity is herd primariry for the purpose of trading;
' the asset/liability is expected to be realized/settled within twelve months after the reporting

period;

' the asset is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from beirig

. settle a liability for at least twerve montirs after the reporting date;



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31"1,2024

. ln the case of a liability, the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

All other assets/ liabilities are classified as noncurrent.
For the purpose of current/non-current classification of assets and liabilities, the Company has

ascertained its normal operating cycle as twelve months. This is based on the nature of product
and the time between the acquisition of assets or inventories for processing and their realization in
cash and cash equivalents.

B. Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

An item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if it is probable that the future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured
reliably. This recognition principle is applied to the costs incurred initially to acquire an item of
property, plant and equipment and also to the costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace part
of, or service it. All other repair and maintenance costs, including regular servicing, are recognised
in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. When a replacement occurs, the carrying value of
the replaced part is de-recognised. Where an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
major components having different useful lives, these components are accounted for as separate
items.

All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition cost.net of accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost of an item of property, plant and

equipment comprises of its purchase price including import duties and other non-refundable
purchase taxes or levies, directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for
its intended use and the initial estimate of decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, if
any. Any trade discount or rebate is deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Cost includes cost
of replacing a part of a plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met.
Items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment that meet the definition of
property, plant and equipment are capitalized at cost and depreciated over their useful life. Costs

in nature of repairs and maintenance are recognized in the statement of profit and loss as and

when incurred.

Capital work-in-progress includes cost of prope,rty, plant and equipment not ready for the intended
use as at the balance sheet date. Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and

equipment outstanding at each Balance Sheet date is classified as 'capital advances' under other
non-current assets.

The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the Financial Statements upon
sale or retirement of the property, plant and equipment and the resultant gains or losses are

recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Property, plant and equipment to be disposed of are

reported at the lower of the carrying value or the fair value less cost of disposal.

The Company had elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and

equipment appearing in the financial statements prepared as per accounting standards notified
under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,

2014 (Generally Accepted Accounting Standards "Previous GAAP") as the deerned cost of the

#rs
i6ssls)i
a##z



c.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31"1,2024

Depreciation and amortization
Depreciation method, estimated useful lives and residual values are determined based on technical
parameters / assessment, taking into account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the
asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological
changes, manufacturers warranties and maintenance support, etc.
The estimated useful life of Property, Plant & Equipment are as follows:

Assets Useful life (Years)

30 -60

Plant and Machinery 8 -15

Office Equipment ::5'.

Furniture & Fixtures 1_0

Vehicles 8 -10

Computers 3

,,

15

Pollution Control Equipment 15

Electric lnstallations 15

The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair
approximation of the period over which the Property, Plant and Equipment are likely to be used.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on pro rata basis using the straight-line
method based on usefullife of the assets as prescribed in Schedule llto the CompaniesAct,2013 in

consideration with useful life of the assets as estimated by the management.
Depreciation on an, item of property, plant and equipment sold, discarded, demolished or
scrapped, is provided up to the date on which such item of property, plant and equipment is sold,

discarded, demolished or scrapped

The estimated useful lives, r6sidual values and methods of depreciation of property, plant &
equipment are reviewed at the end of each financial year. lf any of these expectations differ from
previous estimates, such change is accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate and

adjusted prospectively, if any.

D. lmpairment of assets

As at the end of each accounting year, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its property,
plant and. equipment (PPE) and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. lf such indication exists, the said assets are tested

for impairment so as to determine the impairment loss, if any. The intangible assets with indefinite

life are tested for impairment each year.

linpairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable

amount. Recoverable amount is determined:

a) ln the case of an individual asset,'at the higher of the.net
and

selling price and the value in use;

Buildings

Enersv Saving Equipment
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b) ln the case of a cash generating unit (a group of assets that generates identified,
independent cash flows), at the higher of the cash generating unit's net selling price and
the value in use.

The amount of value in use is determined as the present value of estimated future cash flows from
the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life.
For this purpose, a cash generating unit is ascertained as the smallest identifiable group of assets
that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss is recognized for the asset (or cash generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in the Statement of profit and Loss.

E. Leases:

As a Lessee

The Company implemented a single accounting model as per lnd AS 116, requiring lessees to
recognize assets and liabilities for all leases excluding exceptions listed in the standard. The

' Company elected to apply exemptions to short term leases or for leases for which the underlying
asset is of low value.

Based on the accounting policy applied the Company recognizes a right-of-use''asset and a lease
liability at the commencement date of the contract for all leases conveying the right to control the
use of an identified assets for a period of time. The commencement date is the date on which a

lessor makes an underlying asset available for use by a lessee.
The right-of-use assets are initially measured at cost, which comprises:

- The amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability,

- Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives,
- Any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee,

- An estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying
assets or restoring the site on which the assets are located.
Afterthe commencem'ent date the right-of-use assets are measured at cost less any accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses and adjusted for any re-measurement of the
lease liability. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over the shorter of lease
term or useful of underlying assets.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at that date. These include:

-fixed payments, less any lease incentives receivable;

- Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or
rate as at the commencement date;

- Amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;

- The exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option;
and

' - Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an

option to terminate the lease.

The lease payments exclude variable elements which are dependent on external factors. Variable
lease payments not included in the initial fll€asurement of the lease liability are recognized directly
in.the profit and loss. The lease payments are discounted using the Company's incremental
borrowing rate or the rate implicit in the lease contract.
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F. Financiallnstruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

i) Financialassets

The Company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are recognized
at fair value on initial recognition and adjusted for transaction costs that are attributable to
the acquisition or issues of financial assets and financial liabilities in case of financial assets or
financial liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss account.
Where the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities at initial recognition is different
from its transaction price, the difference between the fair value and transaction price is

. 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

However, trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are initially
measured at transaction price.

Financial assets are subsequently classified as measured at:
. amortized cost
. fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
. fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets measured at amortised cost
A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if both of the following
conditions are met:

' lf is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset irr order to collect
contractual cash flows, and

' The contractualterms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

This category applies to trade receivables, loans and other financial assets of the Company
measured using the Effective lnterest Rate (ElR) method less impairment, if any, and the
amortisation of'ftn and loss arising from impairment, if any is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

Financiat assets ,"rrrr.i at fair value
A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if both of the
following conditions are met:

' lf it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold thesi assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows and to sell these financial assets, and

' The contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Fair.value movements are recogniied in the other comprehensive income.
A financial asset not classified as either amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income is carried at fair value through the statement of profit and loss.

lt.
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De-recognition of Financial err"t,

A financial asset is de-recognised only when

The contractual rights to cash flows from the financialasset expire;
The Company has transferred the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the
financial asset or;

. Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financialasset, but assumes
a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. ln such cases, the financial
asset is de-recognised. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not de-recognised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retained substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is de-recognised if the Company has
not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial
asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the
financial asset.

lmpairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances if any using the expected credit loss (tCL) mociel for the
financial assets which are not fair valued through the statement of profit and loss.

Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECL.

ii) Financialliabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method.

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments irrr"a by a Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as

equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a

financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity lnstrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the entity
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognized at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial Liability

a

a

Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value,

subsequently measured at amortised tost using the effective

net o'f transaction costs and are

.l'.$>_:ai1
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liabilities carried at fair vatue tnrough profit or loss are measured at fair value with all changes in
fair value recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

lnterest bearing loans and overdrafts are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate method. Any difference between proceeds
(net of transaction cost) and the settlement amount of borrowing is recognised over the terms of
the borrowings in the statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition of Financial liabilities

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or has expired.

iii) Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet
where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in
the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.

G. Fair Value Measurement
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value in accordance with the accounting
policies mentioned above.

. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

. ln the principal market for asset or liability, or

' ln the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability and the pompany has access to the principal or the most advantageous market.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value i, ,"rrrr"d or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy that categorizes into three levels, described as follows :-

' Level 1 - quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or' liabilities
. Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within

the asset or liability, either directly ot indirectly
Level l that are observabie for

ffi
'. Level 3 - inputs that are unobservable for the asset or liability
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For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring
basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy
by re-assessing categorization at the end of each reporting period and discloses the same.
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and the risks of the asset or liability and the
level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. This note summarises accountrng policy for fair
value. other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.

, Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of the assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
All other borrowing costs are recognised in statement of profit and loss in the period in which they
are incurred.
Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the
arrangement of borrowings and exchange differences arising from foreign curren€y borrowings to
the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.

lncome tax
lncome tax expense for the year comprises current tax and deferred tax.
Current tax
Current tax is the amount of income tax payable in respect of taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from 'profit before tax' as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible.
Current tax is determined on the basis of taxable income and tax credits computed for Company, in
accordance with the lncome-tax Act, 1961 enacted in lndia and tax laws prevailing in the respective
tax jurisdiction where the Company operates. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the
amount are those that are enacted at the reporting date.
Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
Iiabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit under the lT Act.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. However, in
case of temporary differences that arise from initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a
transaction (other than business combination) that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized.

Deferred tax assets (including unused tax credits such as MAT credit) are generally recognized for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. However, in case of
temporary differences that arise from initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction
(pther than business combination) that affect neither the taxable profit nor thd accounting profit,
deferred tax assets are not recognized. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
.sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovere, 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 315t,2024

Deferred tax is calculated at tf,. tr* rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability
is settled or the asset is realised based on the tax rates and tax laws in force. The measurement of
deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to cover or settle the carrying
value of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable
right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability sim ulta neously.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in
lndia, which is likely to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against
future income tax liability. Accordingly, MAT credit is recognized as deferred tax asset in the
balance sheet when the asset can be measured reliably and it is probable that the future economic
benefit associated with the asset will be realized. Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) credit is
recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company
will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

Current and deferred tax are recognized in statement of profit and loss, exceSit when they relate to '
items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

lnventories

Raw Materials, Packing Materials, Consumable Stores and Spares including Fuel and Finished goods
are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value as under:

The cost of purchase comprises of the purchase price including duties and taxes (other than those
subsequently recoverable by the Company from the taxing authorities), freight inward and other
expenditure directly attributable to the acquisition but net of trade discount,.rebates, and other
similar items.

The cost of lnventories of finished goods comprises the cost of purchases, the cost of conversion
and the cost of packing materials.
The cost of conversion comprises of'depreciation and repairs and maintenance of plant and
machineries, power and fuel, factory management and administration expenses and consumable
stores and spares.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and estimated cost to make sale.

The company has switched from ERP Tally Prime to SAP 54 HANA for accounting & book keeping.
lnventory valuation has been done thro'ugh moving weighted average by SAP, earlier it was FIFO

basis. lmpact of such change is insignificant and considered in financials.

(i) Raw materials, Packing materials, Stores and Spares
including Fui!l

At Cost on Weighted Moving
Average

( ii )
Stotkrin tr,ade a.hd:f...,i.:.,! ed Goods ,{l fs5l, ,on Weighted MoVing

Aveiage
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 3I'I, 2024

Cash and cash equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash that are subject to an insignificant risk of change ih value and having

original maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents. Cash

and cash equivalents consist of balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and

usage.

Foreign currency translation
The functional currency and presentation currency of the Company is lndian Rupee.

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies entered into by the Company are recorded in the
functional currency (i.e. lndian Rupees), by applying the exchange rate prevailing on the date of
tra nsa ction.

Foreign currency denominated monetary items is restated at the closing exchange rates.
Non;monetary items are recorded at exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction. Non-

monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value is measured.

Exchange differences arising out of these translations are recognized in the statement of profit and

loss.

The forward exchange contracts are marked to market and gain/loss on such contracts are

recognised in the statement of profit and loss at the end of each reporting period.

Employee benefits

i) Short-term benefits:
All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are

classified as short-term employee benefits and they are recognized in the period in which the
employee renders the related service. The Company recognizes the undiscounted amount of
short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for services rendered as a

liability (accrued expense) after deducting any amount already paid.

t-
ii) Post-EmploymentBenefits:

i. Defined benefit plan

Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of actuarial

valuation on Project Unit Credit Method made at the end of each financial year. The

scheme is maintained and administered by Life lnsurance Corporation of lndia to which
the Company makes periodical contributions through its trustees.
Remeasurement actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and

changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur directly
in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement if
changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

ii. Defined contribution plan

A Defined Contribution Plan is plan under which the Company makes contribution to

Employee's Provident Fund administrated by the Central Government. The Company's

contribution is charged to the statement of profit and loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 315t,2024

iii) Other Long Term Employee Benefits - Leave Salary
The liability towards leave salary which is not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees render the related services is recognized
based on actuarial valuation carried out using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

The Code on Social Security, 2020 ('Code') relating to employee benefits during employment and
post-employment benefits received Presidential assent in September ZO2O. The Code has been
published in the Gazette of lndia. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has
not been notified. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and
will record any related impact in the period the code becomes effective.

N. Provision and contingent liabilities
The.Company sets up a provision when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of a past event and it will probably require an outflow of resources to settle the obligation and a

reliable estimate can be made. lf the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a

finance cost.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration
the present obligation at reporting date, taking into account the risks
surrounding the obligation.

required to settle
and uncertainties

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made where there is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not within the control of the Company or a present
obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation or where reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be
made. Contingent ''liabilities are disclosed on the basis of judgment of the management/
independent experts. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect
the current management estimate.

O. Revenue recognition:
Revenue from contracts with customer is recognized when the Company satisfies a performance
obligation by transferring the promised goods or services to a customer at a transaction price.

The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the company expects to be

entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer as per contract,
excluding amount of taxes collected on behalf of the government. The transaction price is

adjusted of trade discount, cash discount, volume rebate and other variable considerations as

per the terms of contract.

A. Sale of Goods.

Revenue from sale of products is recognised at a point in

. have been transferred to a customer i.e. when material is
shipping [erms, as may be specified in the contract.

time when the control on the goods

deliverEd to the customer or as per
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 37"1,2024

Government Subsidy

Subsidy has been recognized by the company on the basis of the notification received from the
ministry of Chemicals and fertilizers from time to time.
Other Operating revenue

i. lnterest income is accrued on a time proportion basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and the applicable interest rates.

ii' Claim lodged with insurance companies is recognized as income on acceptance by the
insurance Companies.

iii. Rental income is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on straight line basis.

P. Government Grant & Government Assistance
Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Company will
comply with th,e conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grant if relates to an expense item are recognised in the statement of profit and loss
on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Company recognise as expenses the related
costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

Post amendment in lnd AS 20, the government grant related to assets, including non-monetary
grant shall be presented at fair value in balance sheet either by setting up the grant as deferred
income or by grant by adjusting in the carrying amount of the asset.

Q. Segment Accounting
The Managing Directors monitor the operating results of the business Segments separately for the
purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on profit or loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in
the financial statements.
The Operating segme,nts have been identified on the basis of the nature of products.
i. Segment revenue includes sales and other income directly identifiable with/ allocable to the

Segment.

ii. Expenses that are directly identifiable with / allocable to segments are considered for
determining the segment result.

iii. Expenses which relate to the Company as a whole and not allocable to segments are included
under unallocable expenditure

iv. lncome which relates to the Company as a whole and not allocable to segments is included in
unallowable income.

v. Segment result represent the profit before interest and tax earned by each segment without
allocdtion of central administrative costs.

' vi. Segment assets and liabilities include those directly identifiable with the respective segments.

Unallocable assets and liabilities represent the assets and liabilities that relate to the Company
as a whole and not allocable to any segment.

B.

c.

Based on the management approach as defined in lnd AS 108 - Operating Segments,
Operating Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the company's performance and ailocates

the Chief
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 315t,2024

based on an analysis of urnlou, performance indicators of business segment/s in which the
company operates. The Company is primarily engaged in the business of Fertilizer manufacturing
and other products are backward integration therefore management and CODM recognise
Fertilizer segment as the sole business segment. Hence, disclosure of segment-wise information is
not required and accordingly not provided.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the financial year.

Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered
for deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares
that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Statement of Cash Flow
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method prescribed in lnd AS 7 'statement of Cash
Flows', whereby profit for the year is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature,
any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income
or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating,
investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated. The Compariy considers all highly "

liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash equi

s.
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KRISHANA PHOSCHEM TIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statement for the Year Ended 31 March 2024

4. OTHERFINANCIALASSETS (Rs in Lakhs)

* Pledged with government authori

5. OTHERNONCURRENTASSETS (Rs in Lakhs)

6.1. All the above inventories have been valued as per the accountlng policy (Refer Note No. 2 l)
6.2. The malor components of inventory in case of raw material are Rock-Phosphate, Sulphuric Acid & HDPE Bags, boron,'Zinc Sulphate, Napthelene,

Oleum, Castic Soda, Sulphur, Ammonia, Phophospric Acid etc. And in case of finlshed goods its includes Beneficiated Rock Phosphate(BRP), Single Super

Phosphate(SSP), Granular Single Super Phosphate(GSSP), Nitrogen Phosphorus and Potassium(NPK), Dl-Ammonia Phosphate(DAP), Phosphoric Acid,

Chemical Product {H-Acid),Sulphuric Acid,Oluem,Chloro & Liquid SO3 .

6.3. lnventories as above are hypothecated to secured short term borrowings (Refer Note No. 18.1)

7. TRADE RECETVABLES (Rs in Lakhs)

7.1. Above Trade receivables are hypothecated to secured short term borrowings (Refer Note No. 18.1)

7.2 for transactions with related party, Refer Note No. 36

(Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 31 March

2024
As at 31

March 2023

(Unsecured and Considered

Security Deposits*

Govt. Grant Receivables

Good)

349.1-9

146.00
328.85
112.00

Total 495.19 500.85
with thorities others

)articulars

As at 31 March
2024

As at 31

March 2023

(Unsecured and Considered Good)

Caoital Advances - Others 177.O9 3 26.9E

Iotal L77.09 126.98

Rs in

)a rticulars
As at 31 March

2024
As at 31

March 2023

{As taken ,valued & certified by the management)
A) Raw Materials
B) Finished Goods
C) Stores & Spares

D) Packins Materials

4,244.45
8,439.23
1,449.02

133.82

7,222.23
3,L22.O9

61-4.63

L30.82

total L4,?2.6.12 71,089.77

)articulars As at 31 March
2024

As at 31

March 2023

Trade receivables Unsecured, considered Good

Subsidv receivables Unsecured, considered Good

13,093,15
L3,32L.03

4,177.61-

3,230.41

rotal 26,414.1-8 7,408.07

Trade receivables ageing schedule for the year ended as on March 31,2024 and March 37, 2023: Rs in Lakhs)

Outstanding forfollowing periods from due date of payment
TotalLess than 6 5 months to 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3

Il) Undisputed Trade Receivables - Considered Good

\s at March 31,2024
4s ot Morch i7, 2023

72,543.02
7?171)

523.1-4

73.01

10.65
3.5i

0.29
1.5L

3.40
2.57

13,080.50
7,397.74

Itl) Undisputed Trade Receivables - Which Have

iignificant lncrease ln Credit Risk

qs at March 3L,2024
qs ot Morch 37,2023 2.66

2.39

6.68

14.2€'

nq4
L2.65
70.28

Total Trade Receivables
t2,543,02
7,317.72

523.L4
73.01

10.65
61q

2.68
91q

13.66
?,q1

13,093.15
7,408.02

Particulars
As at 31 March

7024
As at 31

March 2023

Cash on Hand

Balance with banks
- in Current Accounts

Deoosits with remainlng maturitv for less than 3 months 260.44

2.13

rotal . 262.57 2.!t



8A. CASH

party,

10. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS (Rs in Lakhs)

NOTES:-

l.Duringtheyearcompanyhasissuedandalloted3,09,l3,800fullypaidupBonusEqultysharesof Rs. 1O/ eachon25thOrtober2lt23inth-"ratioof 1:1
(i.e. 1 bonus equity share for every 1 exsiting equity share of the company) to the sharehoiders.

ii). Terms and Rights attached to Equity Shares

Each holder of Equity Shares is entitled to one vote per share. ln the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of Equity Shares will be entitled to
receive remaining assets ofthe Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of Equity
Shares held by the shareholders. There is no restriction on distributlon of dividend. However, same is subject to the approval of the sharehoiders in the

BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND

Particulars As at 31 March
2024

As at 31

March 2023

Earmarked Balances with Banks for Unclaimed & Unpaid Dividends
Deposits With remaining maturity for 3 months to 12 months

0.31

258.50
0.24

fotal 258.81 0.23

(Rs in Lakhs)

Pa rticula rs As at 31. March
2024

As at 31

March 2023

(Unsecured and Considered Good)
Loan to Employees 14.21. 7.23

fotal !4.27 7.23

Particulars As at 31 March
2024

As at 31

March 2023
Unsecured and Considered Good)

Security Deposit (EMD Tender)
VAT Receivables
Fixed Deposit for Buyer's Credit
Fixed Deposit for Bank Guarantee
Fixed Deposit for Collateral Security
Govt. Grant Receivables

1"56.44

2.00

512.00

13 8.98
2.00

769.47
82.09

35 2.13

85.00
fotal 670.44 r,429.67

ASSETS {Rs in Lakhs

Pa rticulars As at 31 lMarch
)o) L

A.s at 3t
March 2023

(Unsecured and Considered Good)
Prepaid Expenses

Advances to suppliers
GST Credit Receivables*

253.34
943.90

4,224.84

118.08
338.75
828.A4

Iotal 5,4?2.08 L,284.87

Sha re (Rs in Lakhs)

Pa rticulars As at 31 March
7n)a

As at 31

March 2023
Authorized Share Capital

7,00,00,000 (31 March 2023 - 4,O0,A0,A00) Equity Shares of Rs.1Ol- each fully paid up

lssued, Subscribed and Paid Up
6,18,27 ,600 (31 March 2023 - 3,O9,13,800 ) Equitv Shares of Rs.10/- each f ullv paid uo

7,000.00

6,L82.76

4,000.00

3,091.38
fotal issued, subscribed and fullv paid up share capital 6,782.76 3,091.38

Movement in Authorised share

Particulars Number of
shares

Amount (Rs.

in Lakhs)

As at 1st April, 2022
lncrease/(decrease) during the year
As at 31st March,2023
lncrease/(decrease) during the year

As at 31st March,2024

40,000,000

40,000,000
30,000,000
70,000,000

4,000.00

4,000.00
3,000.00
7,000.00

During the year ended 31st March 2024, the authorised share capltal was increased by Rs. 3000 lakhs, i.e., 300 lakhs Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each.

ffi
Annual General Meeting.

9.1



iii) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Pa rticulars
As at 31 March

zo24

As at 31

March 2023

As at the beginning of the year
Add: Shares lssued during the year

As at the end of the year

30, 9 1- 3,800
30,913,800
6L,827,600

29,638,800
1,275,444

30,913,800

iv) Shares of the company held by holding company
out of shares issued the shares held Its c are as below

Name of Shareholder
As at 31 March

2024

As at 31

March 2023

Ostwal Phoschem (lndia) Limited, holding Company
(holds 4,10,98,528 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)

4,109.85 1,978.L4

{Rs in Lakhs)

more than 5% shares in the
As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2023

of Promoters
ihare hold by Promoters at the end of the year

%Change
Juring the yearPromoter's Name

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

No. of Shares
Y" ol Total

sharac
No. of Shares % of Total Shares

1. Praveen Ostwal 7,383,942 2.24% 678,s00 2,19% 0.04%

2. Ekta Kanthed 275,453 0.45% s,000 o.02% 0.43%

3. Mahendra Kumar Ostwal 240,82L 0.39% 5,000 0.02% 0.37%

4. Pankai Ostwal 48,570 0.40% s,000 o.o2% 0.39%

5. Pankai Ostwal Huf. 10,000 o.o2% 5,000 0.02% 0.00%

6. Praveen Ostwal Huf . 10,000 0.02% 5,000 0.02% 0.00%

7. Mahendra Kumar Ostwal Huf. s,000 o.ot% 2.s00 0.07% 0.00%

8. Nitu Jain 34,099 o.06% 2,500 0.01% 0.05%

9. Ostwal Phoschem (lndia) Limited 41,098,528 66.47% L9,78L,402 63.99% 2.48%

10. Nirmala Realinfrastructure Private Limited 444,011- 4.72% 4.72%

11. Kanchi Resorts Private Limited 10,301 0.02% a.a2%

12. Mahendra Kumar Kothari 57,000 0.09% 0.09%

13. Navin Jain 27,164 a.a4% 4,390 o.0L%

14. Ashok Kumar Parakh 20,969 0.03% 0.02% 0.01%

15. Ashokkumar Haraklal Jain 78,438 0.o3% 9,219 0.03% o.ao%

16. Meena Devi Parakh Lt,572 0.02% 5,786 0.42% o.oo%

1.7. Shravan Kumar Kothari 5,O24 0.0L% 70,412 c.a6% -0.06%

18. Sagar Mal Ostwal 1,000 0.00L6% 0.a076%

19. Pehal Ostwal 700 0.0411% 350 0.00:" 1% 0.00%

20. Prem Singh Kothari 200 0 0003% 1C0 0.0003% c 0c%

21. Raiendra Prasad Ostwal 200 0.0003 7; 100 0.0003% 0.00%

22. Shanti Lal Kanther 52 0.0001% 98,026 -0.3174%

Securities Premium
Ba la nce at the begi n ni ng of the yea r

Add: Premium Amount from conversion of warrants
Balance at the end of the year

Retained Earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year

Add: Net Profit/(Net Loss) For the current year

Less: Appropriotions
' Dividend On Equity Shares

- lssue of Bonus Shares

Balance at the end of the year

Other Comprehensive lncome
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans

Balance at the beginning of the year

Addition during the year

7,A55.23

7,O55.23

1 6,046.76
4,044.29

L54.57

3,091.38
L6,445.70

5,104.,18

1,950.75
7,055.23

73,521,.35

2,673.64

L48.L9

L6,046.76

(s.81,
(6.3s,

shareholders



13.1 Nature and Purpose of Other Reserves / Other Equity
a. Securities Premium Reserve

Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue ofshares,
Act, 2013

13.2 Dividend

The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provislon ofthe Companies

14.1 ln respect of Secured Term Loan

i) Nature of Security- The term loans from HDFC Bank ttd. & AXIS Bank are secured by way of equitable mortgage of all immovable properties and
entire moveable properties, both exlsting & future of the company.

ii) Terms of repayment -
a)Term loans from HDFC Bank Ltd. are repayable in monthly installments and having fixed interest rate respectively @ 8.75 g.25%.

b) Term loans from AXIS Bank are repayable in monthly installments and having fixed interest rate respectively @ g.25%.

b) Term loans from lclCl Bank are repayable in monthly installments and having fixed interest rate respectively @ 9.25%.

iii) Guarantors - The bank loan for working capital is guaranteed by personal guarantee of Praveerr Ostwal (Mancrglrlg Drrector), Mahendra Kurnar
Osiwal, Pankaj Ostwal and corporate guarantee of Kanchi Resorts Pvt Ltd and Ostwal Phoschem lndia Limited.

16. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Rs in Lakhs)

dividends were declared and (Rs in takhs)

Particulars As at 31 March
2024

As at 31

March 2023

Final Dividend for the year ended 31st March, 2023 < 0.50 per Share 1-54.57 148.19
Iotal 154.57 148.19

14. CURRENT (Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31 March

zoz4
As at 31

March 2023

Secured

Term Loan From Banks

Rupee Loans 1s,896.s4 74,585.94
total 15,896.54 14,585.94

tn

Name of Banks and Loan amount
Date of

Maturity

No. of
lnsta lments

outstanding as

on 31.03.2024

As at 31 March 2024

Total
OutstandinB

Current
Maturities

Net Long Term

Borrowingi

HDFC Bank Ltd. {Term Loan of Rs. 2.77 crore) @9.25% 7 Sep 2424 6 44 E8 44.88
HDFC Bank Ltd. (Term Loan of Rs. 2.45 crore) @9.25% 1-Mar-2027 36 233.49 72.89 160.60
HDFC Bank Ltd. (Term Loan of Rs. 55.00 crore) @9.74% 1 iun 2432 101 5,3 30.49 433.51 4,896.98
AXIS Bank (Term Loan of Rs. 15.55 crore) @9.75% 30-5ep-2029 60 1,55s.00 154.80 1,404.24
AXIS Bank (Term Loan of Rs.79.45 crore\ @9.25% 30-Sep-2029 66 7,422.09 L,045.82 6,376.26
ClCl Bank (Term Loan of Rs. 35.00 crore) 30-Sep-2028 48 3,s00.00 431 .50 3,062.s0
fotal 18,085.95 2,189.40 15,895.54

Name of Banks and Loan amount
Date of

Maturity

No. of
'lnstalments
outstanding as

on 31.03.2023

As at 31 March 2023

Total
Outstanding

Current
Maturities

Net Long Term

Borrowings

HDFC Bank Ltd. (Term Loan of Rs. 6:50 crore) @8.75% 7-May-2023 2 18.25 18.25
HDFC Bank Ltd. (Term Loan of Rs.5.00 crore) @8.75% 7-Sep-2023 6 70.06 70.06
HDFC Bank Ltd- (Term Loan of Rs. 2.77 uotel @9.25% -\eo-)O) 4 18 1-40.42 95.54 44.88
HDFC Bank Ltd. (Term Loan of Rs. 2.45 crore\ @9.75% 7-Mar2O27 48 245.44 11.51 233.49
HDFC Bank Ltd. (Term Loan of Rs. 55.00 crore) @9.25% 7-Jun-2032 11-1- 5,499.98 169.49 5,330.49
AXIS Bank (Term Loan of Rs. 15.55 crote\ @9.25% 30-Sep-2029 60 1,5s5.00 1,555.00
AXIS Bank (Term Loan of Rs. 79.45 crore) @9.25% 30 5ep-2029 72 7,945.00 522.91 1,422.09

fotal 75,473.77 8A7.16 14,585.9 5

15. LEASE LIABILITIES in Lakhs)

Particula rs
As at 31 March

2024
As at 31

March 2023

Lease Liabilities - Non Current
Lease Liabilities - Current

89.41
c.54

89 94

0.49

fotal 89.95 90.43

As at 31 March
)o)a

As at 31

liy''er.h rO)a
Securitv Deposit from Buyers 844.62 818.75

'otal 844.62 818.75

ffi
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18. BORROWINGS-CURRENT (Rs in Lakhs)

i) Nature of Security- The bank loan for working capital is secured against hypothecation of company's entire current assets including raw materlal,
stock ln process, finished goods, store & spares, book debts, receivables including goods in transit along with document proof title to goods such as

MTRs/RRs/bills of lading etc. The same is also secured by second charge over property, plant & equipment (present & future) of the company.
ii) The bank joan for working capital is guaranteed by personal guarantee of Praveen Ostwal (Managing Director), Mahendra Kumar Ostwal, Pankaj

Ostwal and corporate guarantee of Kanchi Resorts Pvt Ltd and Ostwal Phoschem lndia Limited.

19. TRADE PAYABLES (Rs in Lakhs)

Additional Note :-
19.1 The Government of lndla has promulgated an act namely "The Micro, Small & Medlum Enterprises Development Act 2006" whlch comes into force
with effect from October,2 2006. As per The Act, the Company is required to identify the Micro & Small Enterprises & Pay them interest on overdue
beyond the specified period irrespective ofthe terms agreed wlth the enterprises. The Company has initiated the process of identificatlon of such

suppliers. This information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprlses Developrnent Act, 2C06 has been determlned to
the extent such parties have been ldentified on the basis of information available with the Corrpanv.

19.2 The balance outstanding with trade payables either debit or credit are subject to confirmation and reconciliation.

20. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Rs in Lakhs)

p rotection

?L, OTHERCURRENTLIABILITIES (Rs in Lakhs)

22. PROVISTONS (Rs in Lakhs)

(Rs in Lakhs)

,articulars
As at 31 March

,N?A
As at 31

Mar.h ?nr?
;ecured

Loans Repayable On Demand From Banks
Working Capita! from Bank

Credit facilitles from Bank (SBLC Credit)
Current Maturities of Lons Term Debt

18,942.40
6,528.11
2,189.40

3,708.69
8,453.96

887.76
rotal 27,620.57 13,050.4r.

)a rticula rs
As at 31 March

)o)d.
As at 31

Mar.h rOr?
Trade Payables Due to Micro and Small Enterprises
Trade Pavables - Due to others

768.98
5,101.65

72.1_6

812.24
fotal 5,870.63 884.40

2024 and March 31,2023:
Particulars Outstandingforfollowing periods from due date of pavment

Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years . More than 3 Iotal

(r) MsME
As at March 31,2024
As at March 31,2023

768.98
72.16

768.98
72.16

(ll) Others
As at March 3L,2024
As at March 31",2023

5,072.27
775.50 29.72 7.42

5,101.65
Rl).)4

Total trade payables 5,847.25
847.66 29.72

29.38
7.02

s,870.63
Rg/t 40

Particulars
As at 31 March

2024

As at 31

March 2023

Unpaid Dividends #

lnterest Accrued but not due on Borrowings
Liability towards Staff & Workers
Liability for Expenses

0.31
160.59

1-6.72

4.22
99.20

92.51_

Iotal 328.L4 324.26
Th ere overdue amount t ed to investor education

Particulars
As at 31 March As at 31

ll/l.atth )O)a
Statutory dues

Advance from customers
88.29

1,628.90
73.00

1,034.56

Total L,7t7.r9 1,L07.56

larticulars As at 31 March
2rj24

As at 31

^r.h tna2
:Of employee benefits-

Gratuity - Current
Leave Encashment - Non Current
Leave Encashment - Current

3.18
37.79
77.19

25.44
6.93

fotal 5d. /o 77

23. CURRENTTAX

)articulars As at 31 March
)o)d.

As at 31

M^r"h 7n)4

Provision for taxation (Net of advance tax) 89.04 50.16

Total _'=:\\-I 89.04 50.16

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS24. (Rs in Lakhs)

no



Particulars
lor the Year

ended 3L March
)n) L

FOr tne year

ended 31

Sale of Products
Government Subsidies
Trading Sales

49,472.36
33,82L.72
9,095.69

16,650.94
9,258.14
6,372.68

92,389.77 32,28L.76

25. OTHER INCOME

26. COST

(Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars
For the Year

ended 31 March
2024

For the year
ended 31

March 2023
lnterest lncome
Misceilaneous income
Other Non Operating lncome
Net Gain/(Loss) on Foreign Currency Fluctuation
Miscellanegus balance W/off

:t 28 5g

13.89
24.82

(8s.e2)

13.16

2M.8u
67.UU

2.34
(26. e0)

6.64
Total

94.54 288.95

MATERIALS CONSUMED

Particulars
For the Year

ended 3L March
2024

For the year

ended 3L

March2023
upenrng 5tocK

Add: Purchases

Less: Closing Stock

7,3s3.0s

55,329.59
4,377.87

2,460.91
20,356.05

7,353.05
I OIat

58,304.77 15,463.97

27. in inventories of finished goods and Stock-in- in I akh<

Particula rs
For the Year

ended 31 March
2024

For the year

ended 31

March 2023
Stock at the beginnlng of the year (A)

Stock at the end ot the year (B)
3,L22.O9

8,439.23
2,763.33
3,1,22.A9

(lncrease)/Decrease in stocks (B-A) (s,3L7.L4' (3s8.76

BENEFITS EXPENSE (Rs in Lakh(

Particulars
For the Year

ended 31 March
)n) tr

For the year
ended 31

5alaries, bonus and allowances
Contribution to Provident Fund
Contribution to Gratuity Fund
Staff welfare expenses

1,5 15.88
5 4.01
19.63
55.48

999.7,i
34.25

10.46
53.30

7,745.00 r,093.75

29. FINANCE (Rs in Lakhs)

Particula rs
For the Year

ended 31 March
2024

For the year

ended 31

March 2023
I nterest

lnterest on lease liabilities

Other Borrowing Costs

3,552.43

6.0s

L17.70

600.24

6.92
7E f (

3,676.L8 682.41

EXPENSE (Rs in Lakhsl

Particulars
' For the Year

ended 31 March
)n) a

For the year

ended 31

March 2023
Depreclation on Other Tangible Assets
Depreciation on Right of qse Assets

3,305.85
1 10.10

7 61,.29

106.80
3,415.95 868.09

31. OTHER (Rs in Lakhs)

Particula rs
For the Year

ended 31 March
)o)d

For the year

ended 31
M.r.h ?nr2

Manufacturing Expenses
Consumption of Stores & Spares parts
Power & Fuel

Repairs & Maintenance to Plant & Machinery
Other manufacturing expenses

.1,:167.81

2,487.17
L59.7 8

2,696.47

916 ',t 1

432.45

29.L1

830.22
Sub Total 7,5L1.83 2,207.89

@*s
sffiem)lw#

28.

Total

Total
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31"t,2024

33. FINANCIAT INSTRUMENTS - FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The carrying value of financial instruments by categories are as follows:

14,585 94

90 43

G,G0,'

il. Financial risk management
The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

- credit risk;

- liquidity risk; and

- Market risk

Risk management framework
The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of
the Company's risk management framework. The board of directors has established the processes

to ensure that executive management controls risk through the mechanism of property defined
framework.

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by

the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to
limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed by the board annually to reflect
changes in market conditions and the Coinpany's activities. The Company, through its training and

:'., ^ ",*r(

..

t.

(Rs. ln Lakhs)

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

Other Non-Current Financial Assets

Bank balances other than cash and

(A) Total outstanding dues of micro

(B) Total outstanding dues of
creditors other than micro



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31"t,2024

management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control
environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Company's Audit Committee oversees compliance with the Company's risk management
policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation
to the risks faced by the Company. The Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight role by lnternal
Audit. lnternal Audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and
procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit Committee.

ii. Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in

financial loss to the Company. The Company is exposed to credit risk for trade receivables and

other fina ncial assets.

The Company assess the counter party before entering into transactions and wherever necessary

supplies are made against advance payment. The Company on continuous basis monitor the credit
limit of the counter parties to mitigate or minimise the credit risk.

The carrying amount of following financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure:

Trade and other receivables

The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each

customer. However, management also considers the factors that may influenc6 the credit risk of its
customer base, including the default risk of the industry and country in which customers operate.

The Company Management has established a credit policy under which each new customer is

analysed individually for creditworthiness before the Company's standard payment and delivery
terms and conditions are offered. The Company's review includes market check, industry feedback,
past financials and external ratings, if they are available, and in some cases bank references.

Based on the credit aging of individual customer, the management considers that no provision on

such receivables has_been recognised as on the reporting date.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations
associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.

The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have

sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both n6rmal a'nd stressed

conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation.

The Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position on the basis of
expected cash flows. The Company's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of
funding and flexibility through the use of surplus funds, bank loans and intercorporate loans.

ilt.

ffi



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31"t,2024

Exposure to !iquidity risk
a) Maturities of financial liabilities

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date.
(Rs. ln Lakhs)

Carrying Amount Contractual cash flows
.,, ;r .AS.'.at3X

.l,:iMarth'4024i,, :

More than
=15 Vears,.,.

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 15,896.54 15,896.54 L3926.64 1969.90
Lease Liability 89.95 89.95 89.95
Other non-current Financial
Liabilities

844.62 844.62 844.62

Short Terms Borrowings 27,620.57 27,620.57 27,620.57

Trade Payables

(A) Total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises

768.98 768.98 768.98

(B) Total outstanding dues of
creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises

5,10L.65 5,1_0L.65 5,101.65

Other Current Financial Liabilities 328.1,4 328.1,4 328.1.4

Total Financial Liabilities 50,650.45 50,650.45 33,819.34 1.6,741,.16 89.9s

Carrying Amount Con ractual cash fiows

1.-5

i:::,VeafS
Financial Liabilities

Borrowings L4,585.g4 1,4,595.94 1_,978.13 1,2,607.91

Lease Liability 90.43 90.43 90.43
Other non-current Financial
Lia bilities

818.75 818.75 818.75

Short Terms Borrowings 13,050.4L 13,050.41 13,050.41

Trade Payables

(A)Total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises

72.1,6 72.16 7 2.1.6

(B) Total outstanding dues of
creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises

81,2.24 812.24 81.2.24

Other Current Fihancial Liabilities 324.26 324.26 324.26

Total Financial Liabilities 29,754.L9 29,754.19 L4,259.O7 2,796.99 12,698.24

Total
Within i.

Year
L-5

years

Particulars As at 31

March 2023
Total Within 1

Year
More than

5 years

ffi
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31'1,2024

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates
and commodity prices which will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of
financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

Foreign Currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk of impact related to fair value or future cash flows of an exposure in

foreign currency, which fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company's
exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchanges rates relates primarily to import of raw
materials. When a derivative is entered for the purpose of being a hedge, the Company negotiates
the terms of those derivatives to match the terms of the hedged exposure.
The Company evaluates exchange rate exposure arising from foreign currency transactions. The
Comp.any follows established risk management policies and standard operating procedures.

lnterest rate risk
lnterest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of
changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's short-term borrowing. The
Company constantly monitors the credit markets and rebalances its financing strategies to achieve
an optimal maturity profile and financing cost.

The exposure of the Company's financial liabilities to interest rate risk based on liabilities as at
reporting date is as fqllows:

Commodity price risk
Commodity price risk for the Company is mainly related to fluctuations of raw materials prices

linked to various external factors, which can affect the production cost of the Company. Company

actively manages inventory and in many cases sale prices are linked to major raw material prices.

To mana$e this risk, the Company enters into long-term supply agreement for Raw Material,
identifying new sources etc. Additionaliy, processes and policies related to such risks are reviewed

and managed by senior management on continuous basis.

(Amount in USD)

Particu lars As at 31.03.2024 As at 3L.03.2023

: :::::::

Trade and other payables
29,59,900 7,02,82,7!5

Trade and other receivables
L6,4L7.11

Advance Payables
5175.60

(Rs. ln Lakhs)

Pa rticu la rs lmpact on profit before tax
2023-24 2422-23

lncrease in interest rate bv 100 basis points (68.se) (s7.s7l
Decrease in interest rate by 100 basis points 68.99 57.57



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31"T,2024

34. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all
other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the
Company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains an efficient capital structure and healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to
optimise returns to shareholders. The capital structure of the Company is based on management's
judgement of its strategic and day-to-day needs with a focus on total equity so as to maintain investor,
creditors and market confidence. The management and the Board of Directors monitors the return on
capital as well as the level of dividends to shareholders. The Company may take appropriate steps in

order to maintain, or if necessary, adjust its capital structure.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is calculated by dividing Net Debt from the
Equity. The Company includes within Net Debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings less cash and
short-term deposits (including other bank balance) and under Equity, the Equity Share Capital plus

other Equity (excluding Preference Share Capital) is considered:

35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES:

1. Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt

(Rs. ln lakhs)

Particulars As at 31.03.2024 As at 3L.03.2023

Gross Debt ' 27,636.35

Less: Cash & Cash Equivalents 262.s7 2.L3

Net Debt (A) 43254.54 27,634.22

Total Equitv (B) 30,059.07 26,1,8L.L8

, ,,.,. 
t '".':.'.:::::

Ge,aring Ratio (A/B) L.44 1.06

Particulars 2023-2a (in t) 2022-23 (in<l

VAT liability under The Madhya
2002 in respect of:

a. Pradesh Value Added Tax Act,
7,97,052 7,97,052

b. Fine Payable for non-compliance of Schedule XIX - Para (2) of
SEBI(ICDR) Regulations,2OlS.

24,79,000

ffi

435L7.Ll



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 3751,2024

36. DISCTOSURE OF RELATED 
'O*" 

TRANSACTIONS PURSUANT TO tND AS 24 'RELATED PARTY
DtsclosuREs"

A. Details of Related Parties

B. Transactions with the Related Parti

a. Holding Company Ostwql Phoschem (lndia) Ltd.

b.
Key Managerial Personnel Shri Praveen Ostwal (Managing Director)

Shri Sunil Kothari (Whole Time Director & Chief Financial
Officer)
Shri Ankit Mundra (Company Secretary)

c.
Non-Executive Director/
lndependent Director

Shri Mahendra Kumar Ostwal
Shri Pankaj Ostwal
Shri Bheru LalOstwal
Shri Pradeep Agarwal
Shri Gopal lnani
Smt. Priyanka Surana

d.
Entities over which Key
Management Personnel are able
to exercise significant influence

Madhya Bharat Agro Products Ltd.
Shri Ganpati Fertilizers Ltd.
Seasons lnternational Pvt Ltd.
Nirmala Real lnfrastructure Private Limited
Kanchi Resorts Private Limited

e.
Relatives of Key Managerial
Personnel (KMP)

Mrs. Nitu Ostwal
Mrs. Ekta Jain

f.
Other Related Parties M.K. Ostwal HUF (Director is karta)

Pankaj Ostwal HUF (Director is karta)
Praveen Ostwal HUF (Director is karta)

rties ln Lakhs)
'5r. No; ,",,,,,.:2023-24' 2022-23

L Purchase of goods

Ostwal Phoschem (lndia) Ltd. 3049.66 L181.19
Madhya Bharat Agro Products Ltd. 2245.30 2967.64

Seasons lnternational Pvt. Ltd. 0.00 60.44

2 Sale of goods

Ostwal Phoschem (lndia) Ltd. 8656.72 5194.63
Madhya Bharat Agro Products Ltd. 71.32.36 5314.09

Shri Ganpati Fertilizers Ltd. 847.83 888.s8

3 Rent paid

Ostwal Phoschem (lndia) Ltd. 0.08 0.08

4 Royalty Paid

Ostwal Phoschem (lndia) Ltd. 1.18 0.00

5 lnterest paid to
Shri Praveen Ostwal 0.00 9.39

Madhya Bharat Agro Products Ltd. 4.7t 42.51

6 lnterest received from

Ostwal Phoschem (lndia) Ltd. 21.60 10.99

Madhya Bharat Agro Products Ltd. .27.LL L72.53

Shri Ganpati Fertilizers Ltd. 3.11 13.8e A &As"-\

Particulars



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR E}JDED NIARCH 37"1,2024

Seasons lnternational Pvt. Ltd.

lnsurance paid for

Shri Praveen Ostwal

to Key Managerial Personnel:

Short-term employment benefits /
(i) Key Managerial Personnel

Shri Praveen Ostwal

Shri Sunil Kothari

ShriAnkit Mundra

Ms. Priyanka Bansal

Shri Praveen Ostwal

Money received against Share Warrants

9$y{al Phoschem (lndia) Ltd.

Madhya Bharat Agro Products Ltd.

Shri Praveen Ostwal

Ostwal Phoschem (tndia) Ltd.

Madhya Bharat Agro Products Ltd.

Shri Ganpati Fertilizers Ltd.

Seasons lnternational Pvt. Ltd.

ment Against Loan Received

Madhva Bharat Products Ltd.

Shri Praveen Ostwal

Ostwal Phoschem (lndia) Ltd.

Madhya Bharat Agro Products Ltd.

Shri Ganpati Fertilizers Ltd.

Seasons International Pvt. Ltd.

Madhya Bharat Agro Products Ltd.

lnterest Paid on Security Deposits

Madhya Bharat Agro Products Ltd.

Ostwal Phoschem (lndia) Ltd.

Shri Praveen Ostwal

Shri Pankai Ostwal

Shri Mahendra Kumar Ostwal

,6f,
P le$\'
t \ lt'N

&;

0.03



Mrs. Ekta Jain 0.15 0.03
M.K. Ostwal (Karta of M.K. Ostwal HUF) 0.01 0.01
Pankaj Ostwal (Karta of Pankaj Ostwal HUF) 0.03 0.03
Praveen Ostwal (Karta of Praveen Ostwal HUF) 0.03 0.03
NIRMALA REALINFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED
From 1L105 /2023 0.78 0.00
ASHOKKUMAR HARAKLAL JAIN

From 11105/2023 0.05 0.05
NAVIN JAIN

From 11105 /2023 o.o7 0.00
SHANTI LAL KANTHER

From 1U05 /2023 0.48 0.49
MEENA DEVI PARAKH

From 1,1/05/2023 0.03 0.0L
ASHOK KUMAR PARAKH

From 11105 /2023 0.05 0.02
NORATAN DEVI KANTHER

From']..1./05/2023 0.43 0.68
All related party contracts / arrangements have been entered on arms' length basis.

NOTES TO THE F-INANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAI{ ENDED MARCH 37,1,2021

C. Amount due to/from related parties:

37. CORPORATE SOCTAL RESpONSIBILTTES (CSR)

(Rs. ln Lakhs)

(Rs. ln Lakhs)

Sr$o,. Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
OUTSTANDING AT THE YEAR END

1 Trade Receivables

Ostwal Phoschem (lndia) Ltd. 0.00 2598.37
Madhya Bharat Agro Products Ltd: 0.00 65.16

2 Advance from Customer

Madhya BharatAgro Products Ltd. L77.35 0.00

3 Deposit Payable

Madhya Bharat Agro Prqducts Ltd. 800.00 800.00

4

Compensation payable to Key Managerial personnel as on
3L.03.2024 & 31.03.2023

Shri Sunil Kothari o.74 o.87
Shri Praveen Ostwal 1.3.74 34.50
ShriAnkit Mundra 0.28 0.00

Particulars As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023

Amount required to be spent by the company during
the year

62.5s

Amount of expenditure incurred 74.73 65.19

73.4L



Shortfall at the end of the year

Total of previous years shortfall

Reason for shortfall

Nature of CSR activities Eradication of hunger and malnutrition,
promoting gender equality, empowering
women, promoting education, healthcare,
environment sustainability

Details of related party

transactions, €.g. Contribution to a

trutt controlled by the company in
relation to CSR expenditure as per

relevant Accounting Sta ndard(1)

18.50 1.51.

where a provision is made with
respect to a liability incurred by

entering into a contractual

obligation, the movements in the
provision during the year shall be

shown separately.

NA NA

{1) Represents contribution to l\irmala Devi seva santhan a controlled
socialactivity.

tr.ist t0 su0port the

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31"1,2024

38. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

a) Defined Contribution Plans:

The Company has recognized the following amounts in the Statement of profit and Loss which are
included under Coritfibution to provident and other funds;

(Rs. ln Lakhs)

b) Defined Benefit Plan & Other Long Term Benefits:
ll. Gratuity

The Company makes payment to vested employees as per provisions of payment of Gratuity
AcL,1972. The provision of Gratuity Liability as on the Balance Sheet date is done on actuarial
valuation basis for qualifying emplbyees, however the same is not funded to any trust or
scheme. The present value of the Defined Benefits obligation and the related current service
cost is measured using the Projected Unit Credit Actuarial Method at the end of Balance Sheet

. date by the Actuary.

For the year ended
3L't March 2023

l.) | Employers Contribution to provident Fund 54.01 30.25

For the year ended
31st March 2024
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 37'1,)024

Leave Encashment

The Company provides benefit of leave encashment to its employees as per defined rules. The

provision for liability for leave encashment as on date of Balance Sheet is recognised on the
basis of Actuarial certificate.

(Rs. ln Lakhs)

For the year ended
31't March 2024

For the year ended 31't
March 2023

A)
Changes in Defined Benefit Obligations :- Gratuity Earned

Leave

Gratuity Earned Leave

a) Defined Benefit Obligation at the beginning of the year

b) lnterest Cost

76.97

5.51
32.76

2.39

55.59

3.90

20.92

1..45

c) Current Service Cost

d) Benefits paid

19.30

(2.83)
17.67

0.00

10.24

(1.30)

9.87

(1.071

e) Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on Obligation 15.97 2.76 8.54 1.60

Present value of obligation at the end of year L1.4.90 s5.58 76.97 32.76

For the year ended
31't March 2024

For the year ended 31't
March 2023

B)

Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets during the year :- Gratuity Earned
Leave

Gratuity Earned Leave

a) Plan Assets at the beginning of the year
b) Adjustment to Opening Fair Value of Plan Asset

c) Expected Return on Plan Assets

d) Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on Assets

e) Employer's contribution

f) Benefits Paid

87.10

102

\0.72)
21..11

(2.83)

58.01

499

(0.42)
25.82

(1.30)

1..07

(1.07)

Fair Value of the plan assets at the end of the year Ltt.72 87.10

For the year ended
31't March 2024

For the year ended 31't
March 2023

c)
Reconciliation of Present value of Defined Benefit
Obligation and Fair Value of Plan Assets

Gratuity Earned
Leave

Gratuity Earned Leave

a) Present value of defined benefit obligation at end of
the year

b) Fair value of plan assets at end of the year

1.1.4.90

1,1,1.72

55.58 76.97

87.10

32.76

Fu nded status Su rplus/(oeficit) (3.18) (ss.s8) 10.L3 132.76)
For the year ended

3L't March 2024
For the year ended 31't

March 2023

D)

Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss Gratuity Earned
Leave

Gratuity Earned Leave

a) Current Service Cost

b) Net lnterest Cost

b) Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss

19.30

(1 s1)

1.7.61

2.39

2.76

1.0.24

(1 0e)

9.81

1.45

1.60

Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss 17.79 22.82 9.L5 72.91.

Particulars

PirticUlrrs

Particulars



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH g1"t,2024

L. The Weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting
period is 9.41Years.
The sensitiVity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact
on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end
of the reporting period. The sensitivity analysis may not be representative of the actual change in the
'defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of
one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated. Furthermore, in presenting the above
sensitivity analysis the present value of defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the

2.

For the year ended
31't March 2024

E) Expenses recognized in the Other Comprehensive
Income (OCl)

Gratuity Earned
Leave

Gratuity Earned Leave

a) Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in
demogra phic assumption
b) Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in financial
assumption
c) Actuarial (gain)/loss arising on account of experience
changes

d) (Gain)/ Loss on plan assets less interest on plan assets

2.1,1,

13.86

0.72

(1.40)

c).94

0.42
Expenses recognised in the Statement of Other
Comprehensive lncome

16.69 8.96

F)

lnvestment details - Plan assets:-
For the year ended

31st March 2023
LIC- Administrator of the plan fund L1_1..72 87.10

G)

The assumptions used in Actuarial Valuation:-
For the year ended

31't March 2024
For the year ended

31't March 2023
1. Financial Assumptions used in determining the
Defined Benefit Obligation Gratuity

Earned
Leave Gratuity

Earned
Leave

A) Discount rate (per an!um) 7.09% 7.09% 7.29% 7.29%
B)Salary escalation rate (per annum) 7.00% 7.00% 7.00% 7.00%
2. Demographic Assumptions used to determine the
Defined Benefit Obligation

A) Retirement Age 60 Years 60 Years
B) Mortality Table IALM 2012-201,4 |ALM (2012-201.4)
C) Employee Turnover/Attrition Rate 5.OO% 5.O0%

H) Sensitivity Analysis:- For the year ended 31't March 2024
Gratuity Earned Leave

lncrease Decrease lncrease Decrease
Discount rate {1% movement)
Expected rate of fu{ure salary increase (1% movement)

105.01
1.25.51,

126.56
105.61

52.01

59.60
59.75

52.08
r) Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation:-

i.:.-.::::t.t-.::

.,.,.,: l Fbfth e year ended 31't March2024
Gratuity Earned Leave

Within L Year 13.91 17.79
l--5 Years 31.07 66 43
Beyond 5 Years but up to 10 Years 36.63 94.56

projected unit credit method.

Particulars For the year ended 31't
March 2023

For the year ended
31't March 2024

,ffi,ftffi
ill-.-.a",



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31."1,2024

J) Description of Risk Exposures:
Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time. As such
company is exposed to various risks as follows -o Salary lncreases: - Actual salary increases will increase the Plan liability. lncrease in salary increase

rate assumption in future valuations will also increase the liability.
r lnvestment Risk: - lf Plan is funded then assets liabilities mismatch and actual investment return

on assets lower than the discount rate assumed at the last valuation date can impact the liability.o Discount Rate: - Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan,s
liability.

o Mortality & disability: - Actual deaths and disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in
the valuation can impact the liabilities.

o Withdrawals: - Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change
of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can impact plan's liability.

39. EARNTNGS PER SHARE (EPS) (Rs. In Lakhs)

40. MSME Disclosure

2423-24 2022-23

I

Net Profit after Tax as per statement of profit and Loss attributable to
Equity Shareholders t tn Lakhs

4,444.29 2,613.60

ii)
weighted Average Number of Equity Shares used as denominator for
calculating EPS 6,1,8,27,600 2,80,65,399

ilt
Weighted Average Potential Equity Shares 1-,99,452

iv)
Total Weighted Average number of Equity Shares used as
denominator for calculating Diluted EpS 6,1,8,27,600 2,82,64,952

v) Basic Earning per Share (t) 6.54 9.s3
vi) Diluted Earning per Share ({) 6.54 9.46
vii) Face Value per Equity Share ({) 10 10

#i#*i
are given as follows:

,Asa1.Mar,ch 31't;,,
,;,,:':=2;g;24,;l:,|;llii;;',,,;.--:i,t

Principal amount due 768.98 72.1.6
lnterest due on above
lnterest paid during the period beyond the appointed day
Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in
making payment without adding the interest specified under
the Act.

Amount of lnterest accrued and remainin$ unpaid at the end
of the period

Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even
in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest
dues as above are actually paid to small enterprises for the
purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under
Sec.23 of the Act

ffiW

Particulars

:eailicul .As at MqlCh 31'1,
,'.:,,=..,,: 2023 .,.-:..'



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31"t,20'A

Note: The above information and that given in Note No. l-9'Trade payables'regarding Micro
and Small Enterprises has been determined on the basis of information available with the
Company and has been relied upon by the auditors.

41. Additional Regulatory lnformation:

i. The title deeds of all the immovable properties, (other than immovable properties where the
Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the Company)' disclosed in the financial statements included in property, plant and equipment and capital
work-in progress are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date.

ii. The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment or intangible assets or both
. during the current or previous year.

iii. No loans are outstanding to the related parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013,) either
severally or jointly with any other person, that are repayable on demand or without specifying
any terms or period of repayment.

iv' The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or
pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.

v. The Company has borrowings from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The
quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the company with banks are in'
agreement with the books of accounts.

vi. The Company have not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
other lender.

vii. The company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.
viii. The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC

beyond the statutory period.

ix. The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section
2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

x. No Scheme of Arrangements has been approved by the Competent Authority in terms of
sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013.

xi. The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (lntermediaries) with the understanding that the
lntermediary shall:

a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
xii' The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign

entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise)
that the Company shall:

a) 'directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,
xiii. The Company have no such transaction which is not recorded in the bodks of accounts that

has been su.rrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
lncome Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the lncome
Tax Act, 1961). ,pkQx



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31St/2024

xiv. The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the
financialyear.

xv. The Company has used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific
purpose for which it was obtained.

Ratios:

The following are analytical ratios for the year ended March 31't,2024 and Morch 31't, 2023

Total Debts represents long term and short-term borrowings including current maturities of
long-term borrowings and lease liabilities.
Net Profit after,taxes + non-cash operating expenses + lnterest + other adjustments like loss

on sale of Fixed assets etc.

Tangible Net Worth + Total Debts + Deferred Tax liabilities + Lease Liabilities

Explanation for variances exceeding 25%:

t. Debt Equity Ratio increased due to higher availment of worl<ing capital limits.for new DAP/ NPK

plant operationalise in March 23.

2. Debt Service Coverage Ratio decreased due reduction in cash accruals due to mismatch in
movernent input prices Vs fertilizers subsidy and higher obligation of interest/instalment amounts.

3. lnventory Turnover Ratio increased due to better inventory management.
4. Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio decreased due to slow realisation from Co- operative societies

and Govt subsidy.

5. Trade Payables Turnover Ratio decreased due to payment made through M.1 Exchange for 90

Days credit facility instead of cash payment.

6. Net Capital Turnover Ratio increased due to full year benefits of DAP/ NPK plant.

XVI.

1..

2.

3.

Particulars Numerator Denominator As at 31

March 2024
As at 31

March 2023
Variance

Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilitv 1.33 1.38 (3.62%l
Debt-Equity Ratio Total Debts (1) Shareholders fund 1..45 1.06 36.98%
Debt ': :service

conar:ige Rati;,
Earnings available
for debt service (2)

D,e,bt Ser,vice 3.84 6.19 (37.ss%)

Return on Equity
Ratio

Net Profits after
taxes

Average

Shareholder's
Equity

L4.38% LL.80% 2.58%

lnventory'turnovei
ratio,,, :, ..

COGS Average lnventory 4.53 3.31 36.86%

Trade Receivables

turnover ratio
Revenue Average Trade

Receivable
5.L0 6.81 lzs.o7%)

Trad:e " payhbles

turnover ratio ,

Purchases Average Trade
Payables

4.75 6.91 (3L.24%)

Net capital
turnover ratio

Revenue Working Capital 7.95 5.57 42.78%

Net profit ratio Net Profit Revenue 4.38% 8.28% (3.e0%)
Return on Capital
employed

Earnings before
interest and taxes

Capital Employed
(3)

L3.t4% 8.74% 4.40%

6e3S
i("N$i$)i
'\fo--6J



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEATT tlNDED NIAI(C1 I 3I,, ]i)].1

42. Details of Sales:

(Rs In Lakhs)

43' Additional information required by Ministry of chemical & Fertilizer and Department of Fertilizer dated
1.8th January 2024 vide F.No.2 g}t t /g/ZOz

44' There is drastic change in fertilizer subsidy policy by Department of Fertilizer, Ministry of chemical
& Fertilizer during the year which are impacted the company's profitability, The changeS in subsidy
rates per ton of fertilizer is as under:

J

PrOd'ue5:
As at 3l March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

Qtv
(MT) Value Qty (Mr) Value

i) Sales

Beneficiated Rock phosphate 21,,137 21,03.78 1,4,264 1,,640.27
Single Super Phosphate (powder+Granular) 96,933 14030.91 1,,12,1-59 17,386.79
Chemical Product (H.Acid) 482 2,369.94
Sulphuric Acid, Oleum & other products 5,1-gg 232.74 27,357 3,828.19
Nitrogen Phosphate & potassium (NpK) 87,874 37048.19 1184 664.11
DiAmmonia Phosphate 48,694 2 3,585.1 3

l

Phosphoric Acid 6573.16 5360.94
Phospho Gypsum 559.18 19.81
Sales Other including Trading sales 9468.90 6,372.69

L.
.

L,,

Total I

iiesi: rhter. tran I

Net sales/lncome from Operations

Prqtit/Griblfqi
Fertilisers (Paf<) UnOe

I

Total 
r----+
I

Ad
I

L-__---Total Profit Before Tax 
--f

I

ilrLdKl15/

Amount

74,664.23

59,739.35

I,34,403.59

42,01,3.90

_:3t3:!
6,634.57

2,854.01,

A.

B.

2.

A.

B.

91488 58

__ 1475 re

_ 94.53

5,906.93

S.No. Products Subsidy rates as on 31't
rn94 2023 (Amt in pMT)

Subsidy rates from April-
23 to Sept 23 (Amt in pMT)

Subsidy rates from Oct-23
to March 24 (Amt in pMT)

1.
SSP 7513 6872 3540

2.
NPK 33787 23868 1.381.4

22541
3.

DAP 48433 32641

Above Drastic reduction in subsidy rates are hits our profitabitity adversely. ffi
S--#Z

Highlight

Highlight

Highlight

Highlight



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31s1,2024

45. APPROVAL OF F!NANCIAL STATEMENTS

i. The Financial Statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on, May 1Lth
2024. The Board of Directors have recommended dividend of Rs.0.50 per fully paid-up
equity share of Rs.10/- each, aggregating Rs.309.14 Lacs for the financial year 2023-24,
which is based on relevant share capital as on 31't March, 2024. The actual dividend
amount will be dependent on the relevant share capitaloutstanding as on the record date
/ book closure.

46. ln the opinion of the Board, all assets other than fixed assets and non-current investments, have a
realisable value in the ordinary course of business which is not significantly differ from the amount
at which it is stated.

47'rhe new Code on Social Security, 2020 (the Code) has been enacted, which would impact the
contributions by the Company towards Provident Fund and Gratuity. The effective date from which
the changes are applicable is yet to be notified. The Ministry of Labour and Employment (the
Ministry) has released draft rulesforthe Code on November 13th,2)2}and has invited suggestions
from stake holders which are under active consideration by the Ministry. The Company will
complete its evaluation and will give appropriate impact in its financial statements in the period in
which the code becomes effective and the related rules are published.

48. Previous year's figures have been reclassified, wherever necessary, to conform current year,s
presentation.

As per our report of even date
For Ashok Kanther & Associates

Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration. No. 050014C)

Pa rtner
Membership No:043571
Place: - Bhilwara

Dated: -1.LthMay,2024

For a'nd on Behalf of the Board of Directors

QcY, Sd/- Sd/- 51lt.^-{
(Praveen Ostwal) (Mahendra t<unitOstwal)
Managing Director Director
DIN:00412207 DtN: 00412163

.rX/ ' I

$c'so/ =\' (Ankit Mundra) (Sunit Kothari)
Company Secretary CFO
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